                                                           1

                           UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

                           FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA

            - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -X

            UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,          :

                                               :

                      PLAINTIFF,               :

                                               :

                 V.                            : C.A. NO. 98-1232

                                               :

            MICROSOFT CORPORATION,             :

                                               :

                      DEFENDANT.               :

            - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -X

            STATE OF NEW YORK, ET AL.,         :

                                               :

                      PLAINTIFFS,              :

                                               :

                 V.                            : C.A. NO. 98-1223

                                               :

            MICROSOFT CORPORATION,             :

                                               :

                      DEFENDANT.               :

            - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -X

            MICROSOFT CORPORATION,             :

                                               :

                      COUNTERCLAIM-PLAINTIFF,  :

                                               :

                 V.                            :

                                               :

            DENNIS C. VACCO, ET AL.,           :

                                               :

                      COUNTERCLAIM-DEFENDANTS. :

            - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -X  WASHINGTON, D.C.

                                                  FEBRUARY 25, 1999

                                                  2:05 P.M.

                                                  (P.M. SESSION)

                                   VOLUME 61

                               TRANSCRIPT OF TRIAL

                      BEFORE THE HONORABLE THOMAS P. JACKSON

                           UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE

                                                           2

            FOR THE PLAINTIFFS:       DAVID BOIES, ESQ.

                                      PHILLIP R. MALONE, ESQ.

                                      STEPHEN D. HOUCK, ESQ.

                                      RIDDHI JANI, ESQ.

                                      STEVEN C. HOLTZMAN, ESQ.

                                      MARK S. POPOFSKY, ESQ.

                                      ANTITRUST DIVISION

                                      U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

                                      P.O. BOX 36046

                                      SAN FRANCISCO, CA  94102

            FOR THE DEFENDANT:        JOHN L. WARDEN, ESQ.

                                      STEVEN L. HOLLEY, ESQ.

                                      RICHARD C. PEPPERMAN, II, ESQ.

                                      THEODORE EDELMAN, ESQ.

                                      RICHARD J. UROWSKY, ESQ.

                                      CHRISTOPHER MEYERS, ESQ.

                                      BRAD SMITH, ESQ.

                                      SULLIVAN & CROMWELL

                                      125 BROAD STREET

                                      NEW YORK, NY  10004

                                      WILLIAM H. NEUKOM, ESQ.

                                      DAVID A. HEINER, ESQ.

                                      ALLEN WILCOX, ESQ.

                                      MICROSOFT CORPORATION

                                      ONE MICROSOFT WAY

                                      REDMOND, WA  98052-6399

            COURT REPORTER:           DAVID A. KASDAN, RMR

                                      MILLER REPORTING CO., INC.

                                      507 C STREET, N.E.

                                      WASHINGTON, D.C.  20003

                                      (202) 546-6666

                                                           3

                                      INDEX

                                                                 PAGE

            CONTINUED CROSS-EXAMINATION OF JOACHIM KEMPIN         4

            GOVERNMENT'S EXHIBIT NO. 1883 ADMITTED                36

            END OF PROCEEDINGS IN OPEN COURT                      125

            PROCEEDINGS UNDER SEAL                                126

            END OF PROCEEDINGS UNDER SEAL                         129

                                                           4

         1                    P R O C E E D I N G S

         2                 CONTINUED CROSS-EXAMINATION

         3  BY MR. BOIES:

         4  Q.   MR. KEMPIN, I WOULD LIKE TO PICK UP WHERE WE LEFT OFF

         5  BEFORE THE LUNCHEON RECESS.  AND IN THAT CONNECTION, I

         6  WOULD LIKE YOU TO LOOK AT PARAGRAPH 13 OF YOUR DIRECT

         7  TESTIMONY.

         8  A.   IS THAT ON PAGE FIVE?

         9  Q.   IT IS.

        10           AND I WANT TO PARTICULARLY LOOK AT YOUR TESTIMONY

        11  WHERE YOU ASSERT THAT WEB-BROWSING TECHNOLOGIES HAVE

        12  ALWAYS BEEN AN INTEGRAL PART OF THE VERSIONS OF WINDOWS 95

        13  AND WINDOWS 98 LICENSE TO OEM'S.

        14           DO YOU SEE THAT?

        15  A.   I SEE THAT.

        16  Q.   NOW, WHEN YOU REFERRED TO WEB-BROWSING TECHNOLOGIES

        17  BEING AN INTEGRAL PART OF WINDOWS 95 AND WINDOWS 98, WHAT

        18  DID YOU MEAN BY "INTEGRAL"?

        19  A.   THAT WE NEVER LICENSE WINDOWS WITHOUT THESE FEATURES.

        20  Q.   DID YOU MEAN ANYTHING MORE THAN THAT?

        21  A.   YES, I BELIEVE SO, BECAUSE I BELIEVE THAT THESE

        22  FEATURES WERE INTEGRATED INTO WINDOWS FOR ME, AND SO I

        23  THINK AT THE BEGINNING IT WAS LESS AND AT THE END IT WAS

        24  MORE.

        25  Q.   WELL, WHEN YOU SAY "INTEGRATED"--
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         1  A.   TECHNICALLY INTEGRATED.

         2  Q.   --DOES THAT MEAN THAT IF YOU TOOK THEM OUT, THE

         3  OPERATING SYSTEM WOULDN'T WORK?

         4  A.   I MEAN, MY UNDERSTANDING IS THAT YOU NEED THAT IN

         5  ORDER TO HAVE THE OPERATING SYSTEM WORKING PROPERLY

         6  BECAUSE FOR ME, YOU KNOW, IT'S IN THE OEM MARKET, I HAVE

         7  NEVER SOLD WINDOWS WITHOUT IT.  AND SO, WHEN YOU TAKE IT

         8  AWAY, FOR ME, THE OPERATING SYSTEM WON'T WORK ANYMORE.

         9  IT'S JUST FROM THAT POINT OF VIEW.

        10  Q.   WELL, I KNOW YOU NEVER SOLD IT WITHOUT THE IE IN IT,

        11  BUT I'M ASKING A SLIGHTLY DIFFERENT QUESTION.

        12  A.   OKAY, LET ME FOLLOW YOU.

        13  Q.   OKAY.  I'M ASKING WHETHER IF YOU TOOK IE OUT OF

        14  WINDOWS, SAY, 95, IF YOU TOOK IE 1, IE 2 OR IE 3 OUT OF

        15  WINDOWS 95, WOULD THE OPERATING SYSTEM STILL FUNCTION?

        16           MR. HOLLEY:  YOUR HONOR, OBJECTION TO THE

        17  QUESTION AS COMPOUND.  COULD WE TAKE THEM ONE AT A TIME?

        18  BECAUSE THE ANSWER MAY BE VERY DIFFERENT.

        19           THE COURT:  FAIR ENOUGH.

        20           MR. BOIES:  I WILL TAKE THEM ONE AT A TIME.

        21  BY MR. BOIES:

        22  Q.   FIRST, THE INTERNET BROWSER THAT MICROSOFT HAD WAS

        23  IE 1; CORRECT, SIR?

        24  A.   YEAH, WE CALL THAT TECHNOLOGY IE 1.

        25  Q.   WHEN YOU SAY YOU CALL THAT "TECHNOLOGY."  YOU CALLED
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         1  IT A "BROWSER" AT THE TIME; RIGHT, SIR?

         2  A.   SOME PEOPLE MIGHT HAVE, NOT ALL OF THEM.

         3  Q.   WELL, YOU CALLED IT A BROWSER, DIDN'T YOU, SIR?

         4  A.   I MIGHT HAVE CALLED IT A BROWSER AS WELL.

         5  Q.   DID YOU EVER CALL IT A TECHNOLOGY IN ANYTHING THAT

         6  YOU WROTE BACK THEN?

         7  A.   I'M PRETTY SURE I DID.

         8  Q.   HAVE YOU EVER SEEN IT, SIR?

         9           WE HAVE LOOKED, AND WE COULDN'T FIND IT.

        10           HAVE YOU EVER SEEN IT?

        11  A.   YOU HAVEN'T DISCOVERED IT BECAUSE, NORMALLY, I DO NOT

        12  KEEP ALL MY DOCUMENTS, SO SOME OF THESE DOCUMENTS ARE NO

        13  LONGER AROUND.

        14  Q.   OH, I SEE.  YOU MIGHT HAVE REFERRED TO IT AS A

        15  TECHNOLOGY IN SOME OF THE DOCUMENTS THAT ARE NO LONGER

        16  AROUND; IS THAT WHAT YOU'RE SAYING?

        17  A.   THAT COULD BE POSSIBLE.

        18  Q.   WELL, LET'S FOCUS ON THE DOCUMENTS THAT ARE STILL

        19  AROUND.

        20           IN THE DOCUMENTS THAT ARE STILL AROUND, IE 1 IS

        21  REFERRED TO AS A BROWSER; CORRECT, SIR?

        22  A.   I GIVE YOU THE BENEFIT OF A DOUBT, BUT AT THE SAME

        23  TIME I HAVEN'T THEM ALL.  I MEAN, YOU PROBABLY HAVE

        24  200,000 OF THEM.

        25           IS THAT FAIR?  I HOPE SO.
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         1  Q.   IT IS FAIR WE HAVE A LOT OF THEM.

         2           NOW, FOCUSING ON IE 1, WHEN IE 1 WAS MICROSOFT'S

         3  BROWSER, EVERY OEM THAT TOOK WINDOWS 95 HAD TO TAKE IE 1

         4  WITH IT; CORRECT?

         5  A.   WHEN THEY BOUGHT WINDOWS, THEY HAD IT IN IT.

         6  Q.   WHEN YOU SAY THEY BOUGHT WINDOWS IT HAD IT IN IT,

         7  WHAT DID YOU MEAN IT HAD IT IN IT?

         8  A.   IT CAME WITH THE PRODUCT CALLED WINDOWS 95.

         9  Q.   IT CAME IN THE BOX; IS THAT WHAT YOU'RE SAYING?

        10  A.   NO, IT CAME PROBABLY ON A CD BECAUSE, NORMALLY, OEM'S

        11  GET THE SOFTWARE IN THE BINARY FORMAT, AND THEN THEY CAN

        12  LOAD IT ON THEIR HARD DRIVES.

        13  Q.   DID IT COME ON A CD SEPARATE FROM THE REST OF THE

        14  OPERATING SYSTEM?

        15  A.   THE IE BROWSER?

        16  Q.   YES, IE 1.

        17  A.   IN THE OEM CHANNEL?

        18  Q.   YES, SIR.

        19  A.   I DON'T THINK SO.

        20  Q.   HOW MANY CD'S DID WINDOWS 95 COME ON?

        21  A.   I BELIEVE IT CAME ON ONE CD.

        22  Q.   ONE CD?

        23  A.   IN THE OEM CHANNEL INCLUDED EVERY SINGLE COMPONENT ON

        24  IT.

        25  Q.   I'M SORRY, WHAT DID YOU SAY?
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         1  A.   IT INCLUDED EVERY SINGLE COMPONENT.  IT WAS PART OF

         2  THE PRODUCT.

         3           THE COURT:  THE CD-ROM DID?

         4  BY MR. BOIES:

         5  Q.   IS THAT WHAT YOU'RE SAYING, SIR?

         6  A.   THAT'S WHAT I'M SAYING.

         7  Q.   AND IS IT YOUR TESTIMONY THAT THE SAME THING WAS TRUE

         8  FOR WINDOWS 95 WHEN IE 2 WAS THE BROWSER; THAT IS, IT CAME

         9  ON ONE CD ROM, AND ON THE CD-ROM WAS IE 2?

        10  A.   AS FAR AS I RECALL, THAT WAS TRUE.

        11  Q.   AND WAS THE SAME THING TRUE WHEN IE 3 WAS THE

        12  BROWSER, WINDOWS 95 CAME WITH IE 3 ON ONE CD ROM WITH

        13  EVERYTHING ELSE?

        14  A.   I BELIEVE THAT'S TRUE.

        15  Q.   WHEN YOU LICENSE WINDOWS 95 AFTER IE 4 CAME OUT, DID

        16  IE 4 COME ON THE SAME CD-ROM WITH THE REST OF WINDOWS 95?

        17  A.   THE ANSWER IS YES AND NO.

        18  Q.   IN WHAT PART IS IT NO?

        19  A.   WHEN WE GOT THE IE 4 TECHNOLOGY OUT, WHICH BASICALLY

        20  UPDATED THE IE 3 TECHNOLOGY WHICH WAS PART OF WINDOWS 95,

        21  WE, AS FAR AS I UNDERSTAND, WE GAVE THE OEM'S THIS UPGRADE

        22  ON A SEPARATE CD.

        23  Q.   OKAY.  SO, WHEN IE 4 CAME OUT, IE 4 CAME ON A

        24  SEPARATE CD; IS THAT WHAT YOU'RE SAYING?

        25  A.   THE BROWSER TECHNOLOGY CAME ON A SEPARATE CD, THAT IS

                                                           9

         1  CORRECT.

         2  Q.   ALL RIGHT.  NOW, LET ME FOCUS ON IE 1.

         3           IF THE OEM HAD REMOVED IE 1 FROM THE CD, WOULD

         4  THE REST OF THE WINDOWS 95 OPERATING SYSTEM HAVE CONTINUED

         5  TO FUNCTION?

         6  A.   I DO NOT KNOW THAT BECAUSE, FIRST OF ALL, I HAVE

         7  NEVER TRIED IT.  AND IN ADDITION TO THAT, IT'S HARD TO

         8  UNDERSTAND, YOU KNOW, WHAT FILES YOU DEFINE AS IE AND 1.0,

         9  SO I'M JUST NOT GOOD AT THAT.

        10  Q.   SIR, AT THE TIME OF IE 1.0, WAS THERE ANY DIFFICULTY

        11  DETERMINING WHAT FILES IE 1.0 CONSISTED OF?

        12  A.   MAYBE IT WAS NOT, BUT SORRY, I HAVE NEVER TRIED THAT.

        13  Q.   OKAY.  YOU JUST DON'T KNOW, ONE WAY OR THE OTHER?

        14  A.   NO, I DON'T.

        15  Q.   OKAY.  AT THE TIME OF IE 2, WAS THERE ANY DIFFICULTY

        16  DETERMINING WHAT FILES IE 2 CONSISTED OF?

        17  A.   SORRY, SAME ANSWER.

        18  Q.   AND IT WOULD BE THE SAME ANSWER FOR IE 3?

        19  A.   YES.

        20  Q.   OKAY.  NOW, WITH RESPECT TO IE 2, IF THE OEM REMOVED

        21  IE 2, WOULD THAT AFFECT THE FUNCTIONING OF ANY OTHER PART

        22  OF THE OPERATING SYSTEM?

        23  A.   I CANNOT RECALL THAT.

        24  Q.   OKAY.  WITH RESPECT TO IE 3, IF THE OEM REMOVED IE 3,

        25  WOULD THAT AFFECT THE FUNCTIONING OF ANY OTHER PART OF THE
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         1  OPERATING SYSTEM?

         2  A.   I DON'T KNOW.

         3  Q.   DID YOU PARTICIPATE IN ANY DISCUSSIONS CONCERNING WHY

         4  MICROSOFT WANTED TO MAKE BROWSERS WHAT YOU REFERRED TO AS

         5  AN INTEGRAL PART OF WINDOWS 95 AND WINDOWS 98?

         6  A.   MY ANSWER IS I MIGHT HAVE, BUT I'M PRETTY SURE I WAS

         7  NOT THE MOST IMPORTANT PERSON IN THE ROOM AT THAT POINT IN

         8  TIME, BECAUSE I DO NOT DESIGN PRODUCTS.

         9  Q.   LET ME ASK YOU TO LOOK AT GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT 53,

        10  WHICH IS ALREADY IN EVIDENCE.

        11           (DOCUMENT HANDED TO THE WITNESS.)

        12  Q.   AND THIS IS AN E-MAIL FROM MR. MARITZ TO YOU AND

        13  MR. COLE WITH COPIES TO MR. ALLCHIN AND OTHERS, DATED

        14  JANUARY 7, 1997.

        15           DID YOU RECEIVE THIS E-MAIL, SIR?

        16  A.   I BELIEVE I DID.

        17  Q.   AND MR. MARITZ, IN THE THIRD LINE, SAYS, "TO COMBAT

        18  NETSCAPE, WE HAVE TO POSITION THE BROWSER AS, QUOTE, GOING

        19  AWAY, CLOSED QUOTE, AND DO DEEPER INTEGRATION ON WINDOWS."

        20           DO YOU SEE THAT?

        21  A.   I SEE THAT.

        22  Q.   WAS THAT CONSISTENT WITH YOUR UNDERSTANDING AS TO WHY

        23  MICROSOFT WANTED TO MAKE IE AN INTEGRAL PART OF WINDOWS?

        24  A.   NO.  I BELIEVE THAT THE DEEPER INTEGRATION INTO

        25  WINDOWS WAS DONE TO BASICALLY BENEFIT THE PERSON WHO USES
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         1  THE MACHINE, AND THAT MEANS HE WILL GET A BETTER PRODUCT.

         2           AND AT THE SAME TIME, IF NETSCAPE COULD NOT

         3  BASICALLY BEAT THAT NEW PRODUCT IN THE MARKETPLACE, I KNOW

         4  THAT WAS UNPLEASANT FOR THEM, BUT I THINK YOU CAN CALL

         5  THAT COMPETITION.

         6  Q.   WELL, SIR, NETSCAPE DIDN'T HAVE AN OPERATING SYSTEM

         7  TO TIE ITS BROWSER TO, DID IT?

         8  A.   NO, THEY DIDN'T, BUT THEY HAD DIFFERENT MEANS AND

         9  WAYS TO COMBAT US.  AND I BELIEVE THAT WHAT IT COMES DOWN

        10  TO AT THE END IS WHO PROVIDES THE BEST FUNCTIONALITY AND

        11  THE BEST BENEFITS FOR USERS.  AND IT DOESN'T MATTER IF

        12  IT'S INTEGRATED OR NOT INTEGRATED.  IN GENERAL, I BELIEVE

        13  THEY HAVE TO CREATE DEMAND FOR THAT PRODUCT, AND WE TRIED

        14  IT WITH INTEGRATION, AND I BELIEVE THEY FAILED TO RESPOND.

        15  Q.   WELL, LET'S TAKE IT ONE STEP AT A TIME.

        16           FIRST, YOUR COMPETITIVE APPROACH, AS YOU DESCRIBE

        17  IT, WAS TO COMBINE THE BROWSER WITH THE OPERATING SYSTEM;

        18  CORRECT?

        19  A.   CORRECT, BECAUSE WE WANTED TO CREATE A BETTER

        20  PRODUCT.

        21  Q.   WELL, YOU SAY YOU WANTED TO CREATE A BETTER PRODUCT.

        22           MR. KEMPIN, IS IT YOUR TESTIMONY TO THIS COURT,

        23  UNDER OATH, THAT THE ONLY REASON THAT YOU COMBINED THE

        24  BROWSER WITH THE OPERATING SYSTEM WAS TO CONSTRUCT A

        25  BETTER PRODUCT?
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         1  A.   I, PERSONALLY--THE ANSWER IS YES.  I, PERSONALLY,

         2  BELIEVE THAT OUR INTENT WAS TO COME OUT WITH A BEST

         3  POSSIBLE PRODUCT INTEGRATED INTO THE OPERATING SYSTEM.

         4           THE WITNESS:  I MEAN, FOR ME, YOUR HONOR, THIS

         5  LOOKS LIKE THERE WAS AN INCUMBENT OUT THERE WHO DEFINITELY

         6  HAD THE LEADING SHARE OF THE OPERATING SYSTEM MARKET, AND

         7  I BELIEVE WE CHANGED THE GROUND RULES ON HIM, BY SAYING,

         8  "LOOK, IF WE INTEGRATE THIS DEEPER, WE CAN GIVE YOU, END

         9  USER, A MUCH BETTER PRODUCT, A MUCH BETTER BROWSING

        10  EXPERIENCE AND A MUCH BETTER OPERATING SYSTEM EXPERIENCE

        11  AT THE SAME TIME, AND I HOPE WE WERE ENTITLED TO DO SO."

        12  BY MR. BOIES:

        13  Q.   LET ME JUST BE SURE THE QUESTION AND THE ANSWER MET,

        14  SIR.

        15           IT IS YOUR TESTIMONY HERE THAT THE ONLY REASON,

        16  INSOFAR AS YOU KNOW, WHY MICROSOFT COMBINED INTERNET

        17  EXPLORER AND WINDOWS WAS TO CREATE A BETTER PRODUCT; IS

        18  THAT YOUR TESTIMONY?

        19  A.   MY TESTIMONY--

        20  Q.   COULD I BEGIN WITH YES, NO, OR I DON'T KNOW AND THEN

        21  THE EXPLANATION.

        22  A.   OKAY.

        23           YES, FOR THE SIMPLE REASON THAT THE INTEGRATION

        24  AND THE COMPETITION FOR ME IS ONE THING; YOU CANNOT

        25  SEPARATE THAT.
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         1  Q.   I'M NOT ASKING YOU TO SEPARATE INTEGRATION AND

         2  COMPETITION RIGHT NOW, SIR.  I'M TRYING TO UNDERSTAND WHAT

         3  YOUR TESTIMONY IS ABOUT THE REASONS THAT YOU CHOSE

         4  INTEGRATION AS A FORM OF COMPETITION.  AND LET ME TRY IT

         5  ONE MORE TIME.

         6           AS I UNDERSTAND IT, IT IS YOUR TESTIMONY THAT THE

         7  ONLY REASON THAT MICROSOFT COMBINED THE BROWSER AND THE

         8  OPERATING SYSTEM WAS TO CREATE A BETTER PRODUCT; IS THAT

         9  TRUE?

        10  A.   THAT IS MY REASON.

        11           AND MAYBE I ADD A LITTLE BIT MORE TO IT.  I

        12  MEAN--

        13  Q.   YOU DON'T HAVE TO ADD MORE UNLESS YOU NEED TO, TO

        14  KEEP IT FROM BEING MISLEADING, SIR.

        15  A.   SO, THEN, I WILL ADD A LITTLE BIT MORE.

        16  Q.   OKAY.

        17  A.   SO, THE ANSWER IS, WE NEEDED A BETTER PRODUCT IN

        18  ORDER TO ATTRACT MORE USERS.  AND FOR ME, THE INTEGRATION

        19  WAS ONE WAY OF DOING THAT, AND NETSCAPE JUST COULDN'T

        20  RESPOND TO THAT BECAUSE THEY CHOOSE NOT TO RESPOND TO

        21  THAT.

        22  Q.   WELL, SIR, NETSCAPE COULDN'T RESPOND TO THAT, AMONG

        23  OTHER REASONS, BECAUSE THEY DIDN'T HAVE AN OPERATING

        24  SYSTEM TO COMBINE IT WITH; RIGHT, SIR?

        25  A.   WRONG.
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         1  Q.   OKAY.  TELL ME WHAT OPERATING SYSTEM THEY HAD.

         2  A.   THERE ARE A LOT OF OTHER RESPONSES TO INTEGRATION

         3  THAN--THERE ARE LOTS OF OTHER RESPONSES TO INTEGRATION.

         4  Q.   LET'S TAKE IT ONE STEP AT A TIME.

         5           THE COURT:  WHY DO YOU THINK INTEGRATION MADE IT

         6  A BETTER PRODUCT?  WHAT DID IT DO AS AN INTEGRATED PRODUCT

         7  THAT IT DIDN'T DO OTHERWISE?

         8           THE WITNESS:  I HOPE THAT, PERSONALLY, I HOPE

         9  THAT JIM ALLCHIN HAS SHOWN SOME OF THAT HERE IN COURT.

        10           THE COURT:  HE'S HELPED, BUT I WOULD LIKE TO HAVE

        11  YOUR VIEW ON THE MATTER.

        12           THE WITNESS:  AND, I MEAN, MY VIEW WAS THAT

        13  HAVING AN INTEGRATED HELP SYSTEM, HAVE IT MUCH EASIER TO

        14  BASICALLY ORGANIZE THE COMPUTER, AND--I MEAN, HAVE OVER

        15  TIME NO DIFFERENTIATION BETWEEN IF YOU'RE ON YOUR FILE

        16  SYSTEM ON YOUR HARD DRIVE OR IF YOU'RE ON THE NET WHEN YOU

        17  WORK.

        18           I THINK THESE ARE ALL VERY COMPELLING REASONS, I

        19  BELIEVE, FOR USERS TO LIKE THAT PRODUCT A LOT, BETTER THAN

        20  IT IS NOT INTEGRATED.  BUT AT THE SAME TIME, I JUST

        21  BELIEVE THAT NETSCAPE COULD HAVE JUST, YOU KNOW, GOTTEN

        22  THEIR ACT TOGETHER AND CAME OUT WITH A BIG BANG, WITH A

        23  REAL HIT PRODUCT, AND SO FAR I HAVEN'T SEEN THAT.

        24           THESE ARE THINGS THEY COULD HAVE OVERCOME; NO

        25  DOUBT ABOUT IT.
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         1           THE COURT:  YOU THOUGHT THAT THE CONSUMER DERIVED

         2  SOME BENEFIT FROM KNOWING WHETHER OR NOT HE WAS ON HIS

         3  HARD DRIVE OR HIS FILE SYSTEM OR ON THE INTERNET; IS THAT

         4  RIGHT?

         5           THE WITNESS:  I BELIEVE SO.  IT WAS VERY SEAMLESS

         6  FOR THEM.

         7           THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.  WHY DO YOU THINK THAT

         8  THAT ASSISTED THE CONSUMER?

         9           THE WITNESS:  IN A WAY, I'M A COMPUTER USER

        10  MYSELF.

        11           THE COURT:  OKAY.

        12           THE WITNESS:  AND I LIKE THAT MUCH BETTER THAN

        13  HAVING TO FIGURE OUT WHAT A, B AND C IS, AND SWITCH

        14  BETWEEN DIFFERENT UTILITIES AND GO ON "MY COMPUTER" AND

        15  HAVE A DIFFERENT FORMAT THERE AND GO ON THE INTERNET AND

        16  FIND A DIFFERENT FORMAT THERE.  IT'S ALREADY COMPLICATED

        17  ENOUGH.

        18           I PERSONALLY BELIEVE THAT WE REALLY SIMPLIFIED

        19  THE--BASICALLY, THE OPERATION AND THE USAGE OF THE SYSTEM

        20  FOR THE CONSUMER.

        21           THE COURT:  AND DO YOU REGARD YOURSELF PRIMARILY

        22  AS A SALESMAN AS OPPOSED TO AN EXECUTIVE OR A TECHNICIAN?

        23  IS YOUR ROLE PRIMARILY SALES?

        24           THE WITNESS:  MY ROLE IS PRIMARILY SALES AND

        25  MARKETING.
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         1           THE COURT:  OKAY, ALL RIGHT.

         2           THE WITNESS:  SO, I GUESS, YOU COULD SAY I'M A

         3  CASUAL COMPUTER USER PROBABLY MORE THAN OTHER PEOPLE, BUT

         4  NOT AS DEEP AS JIM ALLCHIN.

         5           THE COURT:  OKAY.

         6  BY MR. BOIES:

         7  Q.   AND IS IT FAIR TO SAY THAT WHEN YOU SAID THAT ONE OF

         8  THE PRINCIPAL POINTS OF YOUR TESTIMONY WAS THAT IE WAS AN

         9  INTEGRAL PART OF WINDOWS, YOU WERE, THEREFORE, RELYING ON

        10  WHAT OTHER PEOPLE HAD TOLD YOU?

        11  A.   THAT'S CORRECT.

        12  Q.   OKAY.  LET ME GO TO THE AREA THAT I THINK YOU WOULD

        13  SAY WAS YOUR SPECIALTY, AND THAT IS SELLING TO THE OEM

        14  CHANNEL.

        15           IS THAT CORRECT?

        16  A.   THAT'S CORRECT.

        17  Q.   AND FIRST, WOULD YOU AGREE THAT THE OEM CHANNEL IS

        18  ONE OF THE TWO MOST IMPORTANT CHANNELS FOR DISTRIBUTING

        19  BROWSERS?

        20  A.   THAT COULD BE.

        21  Q.   WELL, WHEN YOU SAY "THAT COULD BE," IS IT YOUR

        22  UNDERSTANDING THAT THAT IS TRUE?

        23  A.   FOR DISTRIBUTION, YES.

        24  Q.   AND DOES MICROSOFT ATTEMPT TO TRACK WHAT ITS SHARE OF

        25  THE DISTRIBUTION OF BROWSERS IS THROUGH THE OEM CHANNEL
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         1  COMPARED TO THE DISTRIBUTION OF OTHER BROWSERS?

         2  A.   I PERSONALLY HAVEN'T SEEN GOOD INFORMATION FOR SOME

         3  TIME ABOUT IT, BUT IT IS POSSIBLE THAT SOMEONE IN THE

         4  PRODUCT GROUP--SOMEONE IS DOING THIS ON THIS ON A MORE

         5  REGULAR BASIS.

         6  Q.   LET ME FOCUS JUST ON YOUR KNOWLEDGE, SIR.

         7           ARE YOU AWARE OF ANY STATISTICS THAT SHOW WHAT

         8  YOUR SHARE OF DISTRIBUTION TO THE OEM CHANNEL IS COMPARED

         9  TO NETSCAPE'S SHARE?

        10  A.   I BELIEVE I HAVE SEEN THAT SOMETIMES, BUT IT'S

        11  SPORADIC.  IT DOESN'T COME ON A REGULAR BASIS, AT LEAST

        12  THE WAY I RECALL IT.

        13  Q.   WHEN WAS THE LAST TIME YOU SAW IT?

        14  A.   I HAVE A HARD TIME WITH THAT.  IT COULD HAVE BEEN

        15  FIVE OR SIX MONTHS AGO.  IT COULD HAVE BEEN--I JUST DON'T

        16  KNOW OFF MY HEAD.

        17  Q.   NOW, FIVE OR SIX MONTHS AGO, WHAT WAS THE SHARE THAT

        18  IE HAD OF DISTRIBUTION THROUGH THE OEM CHANNEL?

        19  A.   AS FAR AS I RECALL IT, THIS SHARE OF

        20  DISTRIBUTION--HMM.  I MEAN, I ASSUME THAT THE BROWSER IS

        21  ON EVERY WINDOWS PC, SO IF YOU DEFINE THAT AS THE OEM

        22  CHANNEL, ALWAYS ASSUMING THAT THE OEM'S LOAD ON EVERY

        23  SINGLE PC WINDOWS AND NOTHING ELSE, THEN IT MIGHT BE A

        24  HUNDRED PERCENT.  MAYBE IT'S 80 PERCENT BECAUSE THEY LOAD

        25  MS-DOS AND SOME WINDOWS 3.1 AND THINGS LIKE THAT ON THAT.
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         1  WHO KNOWS.

         2           I JUST DON'T KNOW EXACTLY HOW TO ANSWER THAT.  I

         3  NEED SOME DATA FOR THAT.

         4  Q.   I'M JUST REALLY TRYING TO GET THE DATA THAT YOU

         5  LOOKED AT FIVE OR SIX MONTHS AGO THAT COMPARED IE'S SHARE

         6  OF DISTRIBUTION THROUGH THE OEM CHANNEL WITH NETSCAPE'S

         7  SHARE.

         8  A.   YEAH, I BELIEVE I GOT A LITTLE CONFUSED BY YOUR

         9  QUESTION, AND THIS IS TRULY MY MISTAKE, BECAUSE I BELIEVE

        10  THAT I REMEMBER WAS IE USAGE, NOT SHARE.  I'M NOT SURE IF

        11  WE ACTUALLY TRACK SHARE.  I HAVE SEEN SOME FIGURES ABOUT

        12  IE USAGE FOR CUSTOMERS, AND I MIGHT--I MIGHT JUST MIX THAT

        13  UP IN MY HEAD.

        14  Q.   WAS THAT IE USAGE SHARES THROUGH THE OEM CHANNEL,

        15  WHICH IS WHAT I WAS ASKING YOU ABOUT?

        16  A.   NO, IT WAS GENERAL IE USAGE SHARE.  SO, I MEAN,

        17  BASICALLY WHERE DID YOU GET YOUR BROWSER FROM WHICH YOU

        18  ARE USING, SAY, FROM THE OEM CHANNEL OR FROM AN ISP OR

        19  THINGS LIKE THAT, AND I RECALL THAT.

        20  Q.   LET ME GO BACK AND ASK THE QUESTION AGAIN.

        21           HAVE YOU EVER SEEN DATA THAT RELATED TO IE'S

        22  SHARE COMPARED TO NETSCAPE'S SHARE OF THE OEM CHANNEL WITH

        23  RESPECT TO BROWSERS?

        24  A.   I DON'T RECALL THAT.

        25  Q.   ONE OF THE THINGS THAT YOU SAY IN YOUR TESTIMONY IS
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         1  THAT A NUMBER OF OEM'S INCLUDE NETSCAPE WITH THEIR PC'S;

         2  CORRECT?

         3  A.   THAT IS CORRECT.

         4  Q.   NOW, I WANT TO FOCUS--AND LET'S TAKE 1998, FIRST.

         5  A.   OKAY.

         6  Q.   WHICH WAS THE LAST YEAR THAT EXISTED BEFORE YOU

         7  SUBMITTED YOUR TESTIMONY ON JANUARY 6TH OF 1999.

         8  A.   ON JANUARY 6TH OF '99?  HMM.  YOU MIGHT HAVE THIS

         9  BETTER THAN I DO.

        10  Q.   WELL, YOU GOT YOUR DIRECT TESTIMONY UP THERE, SIR.

        11  A.   OH, YOU MEAN THIS TESTIMONY?

        12  Q.   YES, YOUR DIRECT TESTIMONY.

        13  A.   OKAY.  I WAS ON A DEPOSITION AT THE MOMENT.

        14  Q.   ALL RIGHT.

        15  A.   GOOD.

        16  Q.   ON JANUARY 6TH, 1999, YOU PUT IN A SWORN STATEMENT TO

        17  THIS COURT THAT SAID THAT THERE WERE A NUMBER OF MAJOR

        18  OEM'S THAT WERE SHIPPING NETSCAPE'S BROWSER ON THEIR PC'S;

        19  CORRECT?

        20  A.   THAT IS CORRECT.

        21  Q.   NOW, HOW MANY OEM'S WERE DOING THAT AS OF 1998?

        22  A.   I BELIEVE I LISTED SOME IN MY TESTIMONY, BUT I DON'T

        23  THINK WE LISTED THEM COMPLETELY, SO I CANNOT ANSWER THAT

        24  QUESTION BECAUSE I SURELY DON'T KNOW.

        25  Q.   LET ME ASK YOU TO LOOK AT GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT 421,
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         1  WHICH IS ALREADY IN EVIDENCE.

         2           (DOCUMENT HANDED TO THE WITNESS.)

         3  Q.   IS THIS A DOCUMENT THAT YOU PREPARED, SIR?

         4  A.   NO.

         5           MR. HOLLEY:  YOUR HONOR, MAY I INQUIRE OF

         6  MR. BOIES, I HAPPEN TO KNOW THIS DOCUMENT QUITE WELL, AND

         7  IT'S ABOUT 50 PAGES LONG.  MAYBE IT'S JUST MY IGNORANCE.

         8  IS THIS ADMITTED IN SOME EXCERPTED FORM?

         9           THE WITNESS:  I DID NOT PREPARE THIS DOCUMENT, TO

        10  ANSWER YOUR QUESTION.

        11           AND THE ANSWER IS ACTUALLY YES AND NO.  I THINK I

        12  PREPARED THE FIRST PAGE BUT NOT THE SECOND.

        13  BY MR. BOIES:

        14  Q.   LET ME TRY, MR. KEMPIN, TO BE SURE I UNDERSTAND WHAT

        15  YOU'RE SAYING.  WHAT I HAVE SHOWN YOU IS THE COVER PAGE

        16  AND THE PAGE THAT BEARS THE NUMBER 680 BECAUSE THAT WAS

        17  THE WAY WE HAVE BEEN REQUESTED TO USE THE DOCUMENT BY

        18  COUNSEL FOR MICROSOFT BECAUSE THE ENTIRE DOCUMENT WAS

        19  UNDER SEAL.

        20           LET ME PLACE THE ENTIRE DOCUMENT IN FRONT OF YOU,

        21  SIR.

        22           (DOCUMENT HANDED TO THE WITNESS.)

        23  Q.   NOW, YOU HAVE EXHIBIT 421 IN FRONT OF YOU, SIR?

        24  A.   I DO.

        25           LET ME QUICKLY GO THROUGH THIS AND FIND OUT WHERE
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         1  THE DOCUMENT IS INSIDE THE DOCUMENT.

         2           YEAH, OKAY.  I GOT IT IN FRONT OF ME.

         3  Q.   OKAY.  NOW, FIRST, DID YOU PREPARE GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT

         4  421?

         5  A.   I DID NOT PREPARE GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT 421 COMPLETELY

         6  MYSELF.

         7  Q.   WAS IT PREPARED BY YOU AND OTHERS WORKING UNDER YOUR

         8  DIRECTION AND SUPERVISION?

         9  A.   IT WAS PREPARED BY ME AND OTHERS UNDER MY

        10  SUPERVISION.

        11  Q.   AND IT IS HEADED "MICROSOFT OEM SALES, FISCAL YEAR

        12  1998 MID-YEAR REVIEW"; CORRECT, SIR?

        13  A.   THAT IS CORRECT.

        14  Q.   AND IT SAYS, "JOACHIM KEMPIN, BEC REVIEW, JANUARY 22,

        15  1998"; CORRECT?

        16  A.   THAT IS CORRECT.

        17  Q.   AND BEC REVIEW MEANS THAT YOU WERE REVIEWING THIS

        18  WITH MR. GATES AND THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE; CORRECT?

        19  A.   THAT IS CORRECT.

        20  Q.   NOW, LET ME TURN TO PAGE 680 IN THIS DOCUMENT.  AND

        21  BY PAGE 680, I MEAN THE PAGE THAT BEARS THE DOCUMENT

        22  PRODUCTION STAMP ENDING IN 680 AT THE BOTTOM RIGHT-HAND

        23  CORNER.

        24  A.   I HAVE THIS IN FRONT OF ME.

        25  Q.   AND IT'S HEADED "INTERNET BROWSER REPORT CARD";
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         1  CORRECT?

         2  A.   THAT'S CORRECT.

         3  Q.   AND DOES THIS SET FORTH DATA THAT ACCURATELY, AS OF

         4  JANUARY 1998, SHOWS WHERE IE AND WHERE NAVIGATOR ARE BEING

         5  INCLUDED BY TOP OEM'S?

         6  A.   IF YOU DESCRIBE THE TOP OEM'S AS THE ONES BEING ON

         7  THIS CHART, IT IS CORRECT, BUT THEY MIGHT NOT NECESSARILY

         8  BE THE TOP OEM'S BY UNITS.  I JUST SEE HERE RIGHT AWAY

         9  THAT, FOR INSTANCE, ACER IS NOT PART OF IT, OR MICRON.

        10  AND I'M SURE THEY HAVE HIGHER UNITS THAN HITACHI.

        11  Q.   IN 1998, DID EITHER ACER OR MICRON INCLUDE NAVIGATOR

        12  IN THEIR PC'S?

        13  A.   I DO NOT KNOW.

        14  Q.   YOU DO NOT KNOW, SIR?

        15  A.   WAIT A SECOND.  ACER, I KNOW.  ACER MIGHT NOT.

        16  MICRON, HMM, THEY MIGHT NOT HAVE, EITHER.

        17           BUT AGAIN, THERE ARE ANOTHER 400 AND MAKE IT 90

        18  OR 85 CUSTOMERS OUT THERE WHICH WE HAVE LICENSE AGREEMENTS

        19  WITH, AND THEY ARE NOT ON THIS LIST; IN ADDITION TO THAT,

        20  THE 80,000 SYSTEM BUILDERS WHICH WE SERVE.

        21           SO, I'M JUST TRYING TO BE CORRECT WHEN YOU SAID

        22  THE TOP OEM'S.  I'M NOT QUESTIONING THAT THESE ARE THE

        23  ONES WHICH WE HAD IN WHAT WE CALLED THE SO-CALLED

        24  MULTINATIONAL OEM GROUP, BECAUSE THE CHART ITSELF WAS

        25  PREPARED BY BENGT AKERLIND, WHO WAS RESPONSIBLE FOR THAT
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         1  GROUP AT THAT POINT IN TIME.

         2  Q.   LET ME APPROACH THE QUESTION THIS WAY, SIR.  THIS

         3  CHART SHOWS CERTAIN OEM'S AND CERTAIN LINES FOR CERTAIN

         4  OEM'S THAT INCLUDE NAVIGATOR; CORRECT?

         5  A.   THAT IS CORRECT.

         6  Q.   ARE YOU AWARE OF ANY PC MANUFACTURER, OTHER THAN

         7  THOSE LISTED HERE, WHICH, IN 1998, INCLUDED NETSCAPE'S

         8  NAVIGATOR IN ITS PC'S?

         9  A.   IF I WOULD HAVE TO NAME THEM, I WOULD NOT BE ABLE TO

        10  DO THAT FOR THE VERY SIMPLE REASON--SO, THE ANSWER IS I AM

        11  NOT, BUT, I MEAN, THE NUMBER OF CUSTOMERS WE SERVE, IT IS

        12  IMPOSSIBLE TO KEEP TRACK OF THAT, AND SO I DON'T WANT TO

        13  LIE AND SAY THERE IS NOBODY ELSE BECAUSE OF THAT, SO I

        14  THINK THE RECORD SHOULD SAY I JUST DON'T KNOW THAT.

        15  Q.   BUT YOU DON'T KNOW OF ANYBODY ELSE; IS THAT FAIR?

        16  A.   THAT IS TRUE.

        17  Q.   OKAY.  NOW, WITH RESPECT TO THE OEM'S THAT ARE LISTED

        18  HERE, OF ALL THE PC'S THAT THOSE OEM'S SHIPPED IN 1998,

        19  WHAT PERCENTAGE WERE SHIPPED WITH NAVIGATOR?

        20  A.   FROM THAT CHART, IT IS VERY HARD TO FIGURE OUT RIGHT

        21  AWAY.  I MEAN, HOW MANY NOTEBOOKS DOES COMPAQ SHIP?  I

        22  DON'T HAVE THIS IN MY HEAD BECAUSE THEY DON'T REPORT THAT

        23  TO ME.  AND I DON'T KNOW, YOU KNOW, HOW--I MEAN, YOU LOOK

        24  AT FUJITSU, NAVIGATOR ON SELECTED MODELS.  SO, IT'S VERY

        25  HARD TO JUDGE THIS FROM THIS CHART PRECISELY FOR SURE.
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         1  Q.   LET'S PUT THIS CHART ASIDE FOR JUST A MINUTE, SIR.

         2           IN 1998, OF ALL OF THE PC'S SHIPPED BY OEM'S,

         3  WHAT PERCENTAGE OF THOSE PC'S WERE SHIPPED WITH NAVIGATOR?

         4  A.   I PERSONALLY HAVE NEVER TRACKED THAT.  I DON'T KNOW.

         5  Q.   JUST GIVE ME AN APPROXIMATION.

         6  A.   I JUST SAY I DON'T KNOW.

         7  Q.   CAN YOU GIVE ME ANY RANGE AT ALL?

         8  A.   I MEAN, I HAVE NOT TRACKED IT.  I MEAN, I'M PROBABLY

         9  TOO GERMAN TO SAY SOMETHING ON THIS ONE.  AND I'M A

        10  MATHEMATICIAN AND STATISTICIAN.  SO, IF I TELL YOU IT'S 20

        11  PERCENT OR 80 PERCENT, YOU KNOW, IT'S JUST A WILD GUESS.

        12  Q.   OTHER THAN SIMPLY GIVING ME A WILD GUESS, CAN YOU

        13  GIVE ME ANY RANGE OR APPROXIMATION?

        14  A.   I MEAN--

        15  Q.   BASED ON DATA THAT YOU HAVE SEEN.

        16  A.   DATA I HAVE HERE AND BASED ON WHAT OTHER PEOPLE HAVE

        17  SHIPPED, MAYBE IT'S 20 OR 30 PERCENT OR SOMETHING IN THAT

        18  RANGE, MAYBE.  BUT, AGAIN, IT IS NOT SCIENTIFIC.

        19  Q.   WELL, WHEN YOU SAY MAYBE IN THAT RANGE, HAVE YOU EVER

        20  SEEN ANY NUMBERS?

        21  A.   I TOLD YOU ALREADY I HAVEN'T.

        22  Q.   OKAY.

        23  A.   SO, I'M JUST DOING THIS OUT OF MY, CALL IT, GUT

        24  FEELING.

        25  Q.   NOW, ALL I'M TRYING TO DO IS PROBE WHAT THE BASIS OF
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         1  THAT GUT FEELING IS.

         2           HAS SOMEBODY TOLD YOU INFORMATION THAT YOU'RE

         3  RELYING ON?

         4  A.   NO, NOT THAT I RECALL.

         5  Q.   AND YOU HAVEN'T SEEN ANY DATA THAT YOU ARE RELYING

         6  ON; IS THAT CORRECT?

         7  A.   I DON'T KNOW IF THERE IS ANYBODY INSIDE THE COMPANY

         8  WHO TRACKS THIS.

         9  Q.   OKAY.  WHEN YOU STATED IN YOUR TESTIMONY THAT THERE

        10  WERE A NUMBER OF MAJOR OEM'S THAT SHIPPED NETSCAPE ON ITS

        11  PC'S, DID YOU MEAN TO IMPLY THAT THE PERCENTAGE OF PC'S

        12  SHIPPED WITH NAVIGATOR WAS OF ANY PARTICULAR SIGNIFICANCE,

        13  OR WERE YOU SIMPLY MAKING A STATEMENT THAT THERE ARE SOME

        14  OEM'S THAT SHIP SOME MODELS WITH NAVIGATOR?

        15  A.   NO, I JUST SAID THAT THERE ARE SOME OEM'S, AND I

        16  LISTED THEM WHO SHIPPED WITH NAVIGATOR.

        17           AND THESE OEM'S MIGHT NOT SHIP IN ALL MACHINES;

        18  LET ME ADD THAT.

        19  Q.   OKAY.

        20  A.   BUT WE HAVE SEEN, AS WITH THE COMPAQ MACHINE, WHEN

        21  THEY CHANGE THEIR MODEL, SUDDENLY, YOU KNOW, YOU HAVE

        22  ANOTHER 4, 5 MILLION OF THESE UNITS IN THE MARKET BECAUSE

        23  THEY JUST DECIDED TO PUT NAVIGATOR ON.

        24  Q.   WELL, SIR, YOU SAY THEY JUST DECIDED TO PUT NAVIGATOR

        25  ON.
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         1           HAVE YOU EVER HAD ANY DISCUSSIONS WITH COMPAQ AS

         2  TO WHY THEY DECIDED TO PUT NAVIGATOR ON IN JANUARY OF THIS

         3  YEAR?

         4  A.   I PERSONALLY HAD NOT.

         5  Q.   DO YOU KNOW SOMEBODY WHO DID?

         6  A.   NO.

         7  Q.   OKAY.

         8  A.   I JUST KNOW THEY PUT IT ON; THAT'S THE ONLY THING I'M

         9  SAYING.

        10  Q.   ALL YOU KNOW IS THEY PUT IT ON.

        11           DO YOU KNOW HOW MUCH MONEY NETSCAPE HAD TO PAY TO

        12  HAVE IT PUT ON?

        13  A.   I HAVE NO INSIGHT IN THAT.

        14  Q.   DO YOU KNOW HOW LONG COMPAQ HAS COMMITTED TO KEEP IT

        15  ON?

        16  A.   I HAVE NO IDEA ABOUT THAT.

        17  Q.   DO YOU KNOW, IN FACT, WHETHER COMPAQ HAS ANY

        18  OBLIGATION TO CONTINUE TO DO IT OTHER THAN JUST MONTH BY

        19  MONTH?

        20  A.   I HAVE NO IDEA.  THE ONLY THING IS THEY'RE DOING IT.

        21  Q.   OKAY.  LET ME ASK YOU TO LOOK AT GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT

        22  401 THAT'S IN FRONT OF YOU.  THIS IS ONE WE DEALT WITH

        23  THIS MORNING.  THIS IS YOUR MID-YEAR FISCAL YEAR 1996

        24  REVIEW.

        25  A.   LET ME TRY TO SORT THROUGH THIS CLUTTER HERE FOR A
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         1  SECOND.  IT MAKES MY LIFE A LITTLE BIT EASIER.

         2           (PAUSE.)

         3  A.   I HAVEN'T SEEN IT.  I WILL TAKE WHAT WE HAVE HERE.

         4  Q.   SURE.  I AM NOW INTERESTED IN THE PAGE THAT ENDS 023.

         5           AND JUST FOR CONTEXT, YOU WILL RECALL WE LOOKED

         6  AT PAGE 019, WHICH LISTED WHAT WE MISSED IN THE FIRST HALF

         7  OF FISCAL YEAR 1996, AND I'M NOW DIRECTING YOUR ATTENTION

         8  TO PAGE 023 THAT IS HEADED "REVISED SECOND HALF FISCAL

         9  YEAR 1996 GOALS."

        10           AND DO YOU SEE THAT THE GOAL STATED THERE AT THE

        11  BOTTOM IS, "MAKE OEM'S SUPPORT OUR INTERNET EFFORTS"?

        12  A.   I SEE THAT.

        13  Q.   AND DID "INTERNET EFFORTS" THERE INCLUDE THE BROWSER,

        14  SIR?

        15  A.   I'M SURE.

        16  Q.   AND WHAT EFFORTS DID YOU HAVE IN MIND AT THIS TIME

        17  THAT YOU WERE GOING TO UNDERTAKE TO MAKE OEM'S SUPPORT

        18  MICROSOFT'S BROWSER EFFORTS?

        19  A.   SO, THIS MUST HAVE BEEN WRITTEN--LET ME JUST HAVE A

        20  LITTLE REFERENCE HERE.  IN JANUARY OF '96, OKAY.

        21           I MEAN, I BELIEVE THAT WE--I, AT THAT POINT IN

        22  TIME, THOUGHT ABOUT DOING SOME MARKETING EFFORTS WITH

        23  THESE PC MANUFACTURER TO MAKE SURE THAT OUR TECHNOLOGY WAS

        24  PROMOTED IN THE MARKETPLACE.

        25  Q.   IS IT YOUR TESTIMONY, SIR, HERE THAT THAT IS THE ONLY
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         1  THING THAT YOU MEANT THAT YOU WERE GOING TO DO TO MAKE

         2  OEM'S SUPPORT MICROSOFT'S INTERNET BROWSER EFFORTS?

         3  A.   I CAN'T THINK OF ANYTHING ELSE AT THE MOMENT.

         4  Q.   WELL, SIR, LET ME JUST GO BACK TO PAGE 19 WHERE YOU

         5  WERE TALKING ABOUT WHAT YOU HAD MISSED IN THE FIRST HALF

         6  OF THE YEAR.  YOU TALK ABOUT CONTROL OVER STARTUP SCREENS

         7  AND IE PLACEMENT.

         8           WAS THERE ANYTHING ABOUT CONTROL OVER STARTUP

         9  SCREENS THAT YOU WERE GOING TO DO IN THE SECOND HALF OF

        10  FISCAL YEAR 1996 TO MAKE OEM'S SUPPORT MICROSOFT'S

        11  INTERNET BROWSER EFFORTS?

        12  A.   THIS IS A LONG TIME BACK, SO--I MEAN, MY BEST

        13  RECOLLECTION IS THAT WE WERE AT THAT POINT IN TIME IN THE

        14  PROCESS OF REDESIGNING OUR MDA'S, AND I BELIEVE WE WERE

        15  DOING SOME WORK THERE.  WE ASKED SOME OEM'S TO PUT SOME

        16  ICONS ON THEIR WEB SITE AND THINGS LIKE THIS, AND I

        17  BELIEVE THAT'S WHAT I'M REFERRING TO HERE, YEAH,

        18  REGARDLESS OF THE OTHER STATEMENT.  I PERSONALLY DO NOT

        19  CONNECT THEM.

        20  Q.   YOUR TESTIMONY IS THAT YOU DO NOT CONNECT THEM?

        21  A.   NO, I DON'T CONNECT BETWEEN THE TWO.

        22  Q.   AND IS THAT BECAUSE YOU REMEMBER WHAT YOU HAD IN

        23  MIND, OR YOU'RE JUST INFERRING WHAT YOU THINK YOU HAD IN

        24  MIND?

        25  A.   I BELIEVE YOU SHOWED ME IN THE MORNING AN MDA FROM
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         1  HP, AND THERE WAS CLEAR EVIDENCE IN THAT MDA THAT WE

         2  ACTUALLY MAY--WE ACTUALLY PROMOTED THESE WEB SITES.  AND

         3  WHEN I SAW THAT AND I READ THIS, I BELIEVE THAT WAS WHAT

         4  IT'S ALL ABOUT.

         5  Q.   NOW, SIR, THE SECOND HALF OF THE FISCAL YEAR 1996 IS

         6  JANUARY THROUGH JUNE OF 1996; CORRECT?

         7  A.   THAT'S TRUE.

         8  Q.   NOW, WHAT ELSE HAPPENED FROM JANUARY TO JUNE OF 1996

         9  TO MAKE OEM'S SUPPORT MICROSOFT'S INTERNET BROWSER

        10  EFFORTS?

        11  A.   I BELIEVE WHAT I JUST TOLD YOU WAS WHAT THE KEY THING

        12  WAS.

        13  Q.   WAS THAT A MORE KEY THING, SIR, THAN TERMINATING

        14  COMPAQ'S LICENSE BECAUSE THEY'D REMOVED THE IE ICON?

        15  A.   I BELIEVE SO, BECAUSE TERMINATING THE COMPAQ LICENSE

        16  WAS A VERY UNPLEASANT THING FOR US TO DO.

        17  Q.   LET ME JUST TAKE IT ONE STEP AT A TIME.

        18           ONE OF THE THINGS THAT YOU DID IN THE SECOND HALF

        19  OF FISCAL YEAR 1996 TO MAKE OEM'S SUPPORT MICROSOFT'S

        20  BROWSER EFFORTS WAS TO TERMINATE COMPAQ'S LICENSE UNTIL

        21  THEY AGREED TO PUT THE IE ICON AND THE MSN ICON BACK ONTO

        22  THEIR PC'S; CORRECT?

        23  A.   I THINK YOU'RE NOT CORRECT, AND I COULD TELL YOU THIS

        24  BASED ON MY EXPERIENCE IN WORKING WITH THESE OEM'S.

        25           WHEN I TERMINATE SOMEBODY'S LICENSE AGREEMENT, I
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         1  GUARANTEE YOU THEY'RE NOT GOING TO SUPPORT MY INTERNET

         2  EXPLORER EFFORTS THE NEXT MORNING.  THEY'RE GOING TO BE

         3  PRETTY MAD AT ME.

         4  Q.   SIR, DID COMPAQ HAVE ANY CHOICE BUT TO DO WHAT YOU

         5  WANTED THEM TO DO WHEN YOU TERMINATED THEIR LICENSE?

         6  A.   COMPAQ, AS FAR AS I UNDERSTAND, HAD A CONTRACTUAL

         7  AGREEMENT WITH US FOR A FIVE-YEAR PERIOD, WHICH THEY HAD

         8  VOLUNTARILY ENTERED INTO.  SO, I DON'T THINK THIS HAD

         9  ANYTHING TO DO WITH CHOICE.  I BELIEVE THEY BASICALLY

        10  DIDN'T PAY ATTENTION, AND THEY ADMITTED THAT, AND I

        11  BELIEVE JOHN ROSE ADMITTED THAT IN HIS TESTIMONY.  AND AS

        12  SOON AS THEY DID, WE MOVED ON.

        13  Q.   WELL, SIR, YOU SAID THEY DIDN'T PAY ATTENTION, AND

        14  YOU SAY YOU NOW REMEMBER JOHN ROSE TESTIFYING ABOUT THAT.

        15  THIS MORNING I ASKED YOU ABOUT MR. ROSE'S TESTIMONY, AND

        16  YOU TOLD ME THAT YOU HADN'T READ THAT PORTION OF IT.

        17           DID YOU READ IT OVER LUNCH?  DID YOU TALK TO

        18  SOMEBODY AT LUNCH ABOUT IT?

        19  A.   MR. BOIES, IF WE COULD GO BACK TO THE COURT REPORTER,

        20  I BELIEVE VERY, VERY SURELY THAT I SAID THAT I READ IT

        21  PARTIALLY.

        22  Q.   YES, BUT I ASKED YOU WHETHER YOU HAD READ THAT PART

        23  THAT TALKED ABOUT MR. ROSE BEING SURPRISED AND NOT KNOWING

        24  THAT COMPAQ HAD REMOVED THE ICONS.

        25           DO YOU RECALL THAT, SIR?
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         1  A.   YES.

         2  Q.   AND DO YOU RECALL TELLING ME THAT YOU HAD NOT READ

         3  THAT PORTION?

         4  A.   I DON'T THINK THAT'S TRUE.

         5  Q.   OKAY.  I MAY BE MISREMEMBERING IT, SIR.  AND IF I AM,

         6  I APOLOGIZE FOR IT.

         7  A.   AND LET ME ADD TO THE REST, I DID NOT READ ANYTHING

         8  OVER LUNCH IN REGARDS TO JOHN ROSE'S TESTIMONY, AND I

         9  DIDN'T TALK ABOUT MY LAWYERS ABOUT THAT, EITHER.

        10  Q.   DID YOU TALK TO ANYBODY ABOUT IT?

        11  A.   I DID NOT.

        12  Q.   OKAY.  NOW, LET'S LEAVE ASIDE FOR A MINUTE WHAT YOU

        13  SAID OR DIDN'T SAY BEFORE LUNCH.

        14           IS IT YOUR PRESENT TESTIMONY THAT MR. FLANNIGAN

        15  WAS TOLD IN FEBRUARY OF 1996 THAT COMPAQ HAD REMOVED THE

        16  MSN AND IE ICONS, AND THAT WAS A VIOLATION OF COMPAQ'S

        17  LICENSE AGREEMENT?

        18  A.   THAT IS WHAT I UNDERSTAND.

        19  Q.   OKAY.  SO THAT COMPAQ KNEW, AT LEAST MR. FLANNIGAN

        20  KNEW, SUBSTANTIALLY BEFORE MAY OF 1996 WHAT HAD HAPPENED;

        21  CORRECT?

        22  A.   THAT IS MY UNDERSTANDING.

        23  Q.   IT WAS NOT COMPAQ JUST LOSING SIGHT OF THIS; CORRECT?

        24  A.   THAT IS MY UNDERSTANDING.

        25  Q.   OKAY.  NOW, IS IT ALSO YOUR UNDERSTANDING THAT COMPAQ
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         1  BELIEVES THAT IT DOES NOT HAVE, AND IN 1996 DID NOT HAVE,

         2  ANY VIABLE COMPETITIVE ALTERNATIVE TO THE WINDOWS

         3  OPERATING SYSTEM FOR ITS PC'S?

         4  A.   I BELIEVE THAT I READ JOHN ROSE'S TESTIMONY, AND I

         5  THINK HE TESTIFIED TO THAT.

         6           AND NATURALLY, WHAT I BELIEVE HE MEANT WAS FOR A

         7  SHORT TIME BECAUSE THEY COULD HAVE ALWAYS STARTED ANOTHER

         8  EFFORT TO OVERCOME THAT, NUMBER ONE.

         9           AND NUMBER TWO, I THINK WHEN YOU TAKE A HARD LOOK

        10  AT COMPAQ AS A COMPANY, I BELIEVE JOHN ROSE TESTIFIED

        11  FURTHER THAT THEY WERE COMMITTED TO THE ENVIRONMENT, SO

        12  THEY HAD MADE A MANAGEMENT DECISION BASED ON THIS

        13  ENVIRONMENT.

        14           AND I THINK THE WAY WE WORKED TOGETHER, WE

        15  NORMALLY IRON OUT OUR DIFFERENCES.

        16  Q.   YOU SAID ABOUT THREE THINGS IN THAT ANSWER, AND I'M

        17  NOT SURE WHICH, IF ANY, ARE RESPONSIVE TO MY QUESTION.

        18           THE QUESTION THAT I HAVE IS:  DID YOU UNDERSTAND

        19  THAT COMPAQ BELIEVED IN 1996 THAT IT DID NOT HAVE ANY

        20  VIABLE COMPETITIVE ALTERNATIVES TO WINDOWS FOR ITS PC

        21  OPERATING SYSTEM?

        22  A.   THE FIRST TIME I READ IT WAS IN JOHN ROSE'S

        23  TESTIMONY, AND I HAVE TO SAY YES, HE SAID THAT.

        24  Q.   OKAY.  NOW, BEFORE READING JOHN ROSE'S TESTIMONY, DID

        25  YOU AT LEAST UNDERSTAND THAT IF YOU CANCELED THEIR LICENSE
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         1  FOR WINDOWS IN 1996 AND DID NOT GIVE THEM ANOTHER LICENSE,

         2  THAT THAT WOULD HAVE HAD A TERRIBLY ADVERSE EFFECT ON

         3  COMPAQ'S BUSINESS?

         4  A.   YES AND NO.

         5  Q.   WHAT IS THE "YES" PART?

         6  A.   YES IS I UNDERSTAND THAT.

         7  Q.   OKAY.  THAT WAS MY QUESTION.

         8  A.   OKAY.  THE "NO" PART IS THERE WAS NO INTENT TO

         9  MICROSOFT TO HARM COMPAQ.  WE HAVE WORKED FOR SUCH A LONG

        10  TIME TOGETHER, AND I THINK COMPAQ KNEW THAT, TOO.  BUT I

        11  BELIEVE COMPAQ HAD MADE US A PROMISE, AND THEY BROKE IT,

        12  AND THEY BASICALLY NEVER FOLLOWED UP ON IT.  AND AT THE

        13  END OF THE DAY, I THINK WE HAD TO GET THEIR ATTENTION, AS

        14  UNPLEASANT AS THAT WAS.  AND I THINK I APOLOGIZED SEVERAL

        15  TIMES AFTERWARDS ABOUT THE INCIDENT.

        16           WE HAVE MOVED ON, AND WE ARE GOOD PARTNERS TODAY.

        17  Q.   IS IT FAIR TO SAY THAT CANCELLING AN OEM'S LICENSE IS

        18  A VERY BIG STEP FOR MICROSOFT TO TAKE?

        19  A.   YES.

        20           AND WE DO NOT DO THIS EASILY.

        21  Q.   RIGHT.

        22           AND WAS THIS ONE OF THE STEPS THAT WAS TAKEN IN

        23  THE SECOND HALF OF THE FISCAL YEAR OF 1996 IN ORDER TO

        24  MAKE OEM'S SUPPORT MICROSOFT'S INTERNET BROWSER EFFORTS?

        25  A.   I DO NOT THINK THAT'S CORRECT.  I THINK THE STEP WITH
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         1  COMPAQ AND NOT WITH THE OTHER OEM'S--BECAUSE I DON'T THINK

         2  WE TERMINATED ANY OTHER LICENSE AGREEMENT--WAS DONE IN

         3  ORDER TO RESTORE THE ORIGINAL WINDOWS 95 PRODUCT, AND I

         4  BELIEVE COMPAQ TOTALLY UNDERSTOOD THAT.

         5           IN ADDITION TO THAT, LET ME MAKE AWARE--LET ME

         6  MAKE YOU AWARE THAT WE DIDN'T CONSUMMATE THE AGREEMENT AS

         7  FAR AS WE KNOW.  WE SENT THE LETTER WITH THE INTENT TO

         8  CONSUMMATE AND GAVE THEM A CURE PERIOD, IF I'M NOT

         9  MISTAKEN.  AND IT WAS CURED WITHIN THAT PERIOD.

        10  Q.   THAT IS, YOU TOLD THEM YOU WERE GOING TO CANCEL IF

        11  THEY DIDN'T PUT THE IE AND THE MSN ICONS BACK ON THE

        12  DESKTOP; CORRECT?

        13  A.   THAT IS CORRECT.

        14           AND I THINK WE ACTUALLY EXTENDED THAT PERIOD IN

        15  ORDER TO ACCOMMODATE THEM, BECAUSE WE DIDN'T WANT THEM TO

        16  RUIN THEIR PRODUCTION LINES.

        17  Q.   YOU DIDN'T WANT THEM TO RUIN THEIR PRODUCTION LINES,

        18  BUT YOU WANTED TO MAKE THEM PUT THE MSN AND IE ICONS BACK

        19  ON THE DESKTOP; CORRECT?

        20  A.   THAT IS CORRECT.

        21  Q.   OKAY.  NOW, IN 1996, DID COMPAQ OR ANY OTHER COMPANY

        22  SIGN ANY NEW AGREEMENT WITH MICROSOFT THAT FURTHER LIMITED

        23  THE OEM'S' ABILITY TO MODIFY SCREENS OR BOOTUP SEQUENCES

        24  OR ANYTHING LIKE THAT?

        25  A.   IN A VERY STRICT SENSE, NO, BECAUSE WHAT WE DID IN
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         1  THAT LICENSE AGREEMENT IS WE EXPLAINED IN ALL DETAIL HOW

         2  WE MEANT OUR LICENSE GRANT WAS TO BE TAKEN.

         3  Q.   LET ME BE SURE I UNDERSTAND WHAT YOU'RE SAYING.

         4           THERE WAS NEW LANGUAGE PUT INTO YOUR OEM

         5  LICENSES; CORRECT?

         6  A.   THAT IS CORRECT.

         7  Q.   AND AS I UNDERSTAND WHAT YOU'RE SAYING IS THAT IT IS

         8  YOUR POSITION THAT THE NEW LANGUAGE THAT WAS PUT IN WAS

         9  SIMPLY SETTING FORTH IN DETAIL WHAT YOU BELIEVED THE OEM'S

        10  WERE ALWAYS SUPPOSED TO HAVE DONE; CORRECT?

        11  A.   THAT IS CORRECT, IN THIS REGARD.

        12  Q.   IN THIS REGARD?

        13  A.   YES.

        14  Q.   WITH REGARD TO SCREENS AND THINGS LIKE THAT?

        15  A.   YOU'RE CORRECT.

        16  Q.   AND IS IT FAIR TO SAY THAT THERE WAS SOME

        17  DISAGREEMENT WITH OEM'S AS TO WHETHER OR NOT THEY WERE SO

        18  REQUIRED UNDER THE OLD LICENSING LANGUAGE TO DO WHAT YOU

        19  WANTED THEM TO DO?

        20  A.   THAT IS CORRECT.  THEY HAD TAKEN SOME LIBERTIES WHICH

        21  THEY WEREN'T SUPPOSED TO TAKE.  AND EVERY TIME YOU ASK FOR

        22  CHANGE, I THINK YOU WILL GET THAT ANSWER PROPERLY.

        23  Q.   NOW, AT THE TIME THAT THESE CHANGES IN THE LANGUAGE

        24  WERE BEING CONSIDERED, DID MICROSOFT MAKE AN EFFORT TO

        25  DEVELOP CUSTOMER SURVEY DATA THAT COULD BE USED TO SUPPORT
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         1  THESE CHANGES IN THE EVENT OF A LEGAL CHALLENGE?

         2  A.   CAN YOU TELL ME WHAT TYPE OF SERVER DATA YOU ARE

         3  REFERRING TO?

         4  Q.   ANY KIND OF SURVEY DATA.

         5  A.   IN THE CONTEXT OF A LEGAL CHALLENGE?

         6  Q.   ANY KIND OF SURVEY DATA YOU ARE REFERRING TO, SIR.

         7  A.   IN THE CONTEXT OF A LEGAL CHALLENGE?

         8  Q.   YES.

         9  A.   ANY SURVEY DATA--LET ME JUST SEE I HAVE THE QUESTION

        10  RIGHT.  ANY SURVEY DATA IN THE CONTEXT OF A LEGAL

        11  CHALLENGE.

        12           I PERSONALLY CANNOT RECALL THAT.

        13  Q.   OKAY, SIR.  ARE YOU FAMILIAR WITH A COMPANY CALLED

        14  "MDC," OR MARKET DECISIONS CORPORATION?

        15  A.   I HAVE HEARD ABOUT THAT--THAT THAT COMPANY EXISTS.

        16           MR. BOIES:  YOUR HONOR, THIS IS THE SAME COMPANY

        17  THAT IS THE SURVEY--

        18           THE COURT:  WE ARE AWARE OF WHAT COMPANY IT IS.

        19           MR. BOIES:  LET ME ASK THAT THE WITNESS BE SHOWN,

        20  AND I WILL OFFER, GOVERNMENT'S EXHIBIT 1883.

        21           (DOCUMENT HANDED TO THE WITNESS.)

        22           MR. HOLLEY:  NO OBJECTION, YOUR HONOR.

        23           THE COURT:  GOVERNMENT'S 1883 IS ADMITTED.

        24                         (GOVERNMENT'S EXHIBIT NO. 1883 WAS

        25                          ADMITTED INTO EVIDENCE.)
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         1  BY MR. BOIES:

         2  Q.   LET ME DIRECT YOUR ATTENTION TO THE THIRD AND LAST

         3  PAGE.  AND THIS IS AN E-MAIL DATED, AT THE BOTTOM, JUNE

         4  25, 1996, AT 9:38 A.M., ON THE SUBJECT OF OEM PC SHELL

         5  PREFERENCES.

         6  A.   YES, I SEE THAT.

         7           THE COURT:  I'M SORRY, WHICH ONE ARE YOU ON?

         8           MR. BOIES:  I'M AT THE BOTTOM E-MAIL.

         9           THE COURT:  PAGE ONE?

        10           MR. BOIES:  PAGE THREE.

        11           THE WITNESS:  519; RIGHT?

        12  BY MR. BOIES:

        13  Q.   IT IS BOB FOULON TO JONATHAN ROBERTS AND OTHERS,

        14  DATED JUNE 25, 1996, AT 9:38 A.M.  AND IT IS HEADED,

        15  "ATTORNEY/CLIENT PRIVILEGE INFORMATION," AND IT SAYS,

        16  QUOTE, THE CORPORATE PCPR GROUP PER BILL GATES FELT THE

        17  NEED TO COLLECT CUSTOMER SURVEY DATA TO SUPPORT OUR

        18  DECISION TO NOT ALLOW OEM SHELLS TO INTERRUPT THE

        19  WINDOWS 95 AND NT BOOT CYCLES.

        20           DO YOU SEE THAT, SIR?

        21  A.   I SEE THAT.

        22  Q.   NOW, FIRST, WHEN WAS THE DECISION MADE TO NOT ALLOW

        23  OEM SHELLS TO INTERRUPT THE WINDOWS 95 AND NT BOOT CYCLES?

        24  A.   TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE, IN THE SPRING OF 1996.

        25  BUT, I MEAN, I COULD BE OFF.  I DON'T KNOW.  I THINK IT
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         1  WAS IN THE SPRING OF 1996.

         2  Q.   AND ASSUMING THAT YOU'RE RIGHT THAT IT WAS IN THE

         3  SPRING OF 1996, THAT WOULD HAVE BEEN, OF COURSE, IN THE

         4  SECOND HALF OF THE 1996 FISCAL YEAR; CORRECT?

         5  A.   YES.  WHEN I SAY SPRING OF '96, I MEAN CALENDAR YEAR,

         6  NATURALLY.

         7  Q.   YES, OF COURSE.

         8  A.   YES.

         9  Q.   I'M JUST NOW RELATING IT BACK TO GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT

        10  401, WHICH TALKED ABOUT MAKING, OR WHICH TALKS ABOUT

        11  MAKING OEM'S SUPPORT MICROSOFT'S INTERNET BROWSER EFFORTS

        12  IN THE SECOND HALF OF 1996 FISCAL YEAR.

        13  A.   YEAH.

        14  Q.   NOW, IF YOU GO UP TO THE TOP OF THE SAME PAGE, THERE

        15  IS ANOTHER E-MAIL FROM MR. FOULON, AGAIN DATED JUNE 25,

        16  1996, AT 12:26 P.M., AND IT TALKS ABOUT THE OEM REPS

        17  ROLLING THIS OUT.

        18           DO YOU SEE THAT?

        19  A.   YES, I DO.

        20  Q.   AND IS IT YOUR UNDERSTANDING THAT THAT HAS TO DO WITH

        21  THE SURVEY THAT'S BEING TALKED ABOUT?

        22  A.   IT LOOKS LIKE IT.

        23  Q.   AND IT SAYS THAT THIS IS BEING DONE OVER YOUR

        24  PROTEST.

        25           DO YOU SEE THAT?
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         1  A.   YEAH.

         2  Q.   IT SAYS YOU THINK IT'S A STUPID IDEA.

         3           DO YOU SEE THAT?

         4  A.   YEAH.

         5  Q.   DO YOU RECALL NOW THIS SURVEY, SIR?

         6  A.   I DON'T.

         7  Q.   LET ME SHOW YOU A DOCUMENT THAT HAS BEEN MARKED AS

         8  GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT 204 WHICH IS DATED MARCH 27, 1997.

         9           (DOCUMENT HANDED TO THE WITNESS.)

        10  Q.   THIS IS ALREADY IN EVIDENCE.

        11           AND THIS IS AN E-MAIL TO MR. FOULON, AND IT TALKS

        12  ABOUT GATHERING DATA FOR A MEETING WITH BILL GATES ON

        13  MARCH 28, 1997.

        14           AND DO YOU SEE THAT AT THE BOTTOM NEXT TO THE

        15  LAST BULLET THERE, IT SAYS THAT, "FROM ALL OUR RESEARCH

        16  WITH I-S AND WEB PROFESSIONALS, WE KNOW THAT THEY

        17  EVENTUALLY EXPECT US TO WIN THE BROWSER WAR BECAUSE IE

        18  WILL BE BUNDLED WITH THE OPERATING SYSTEM, AND THEY WILL

        19  HAVE NO REAL REASON TO PURCHASE NAVIGATOR."

        20           DO YOU SEE THAT, SIR?

        21  A.   YOU HAVE ME ON THE PAGE WHERE IT IS?  I HAVE A HARD

        22  TIME TO SEE THIS, YEAH.

        23  Q.   IT'S THE NEXT-TO-LAST BULLET.  THIS IS A ONE-PAGE

        24  DOCUMENT.

        25  A.   I SEE IT, YES.
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         1  Q.   IS THAT CONSISTENT WITH YOUR UNDERSTANDING AS TO WHAT

         2  PEOPLE WITHIN MICROSOFT BELIEVED AT THE END OF MARCH OF

         3  1997?

         4  A.   IT IS MY UNDERSTANDING THAT--IT IS NOT MY

         5  UNDERSTANDING THAT THIS WAS THE CASE.  MY UNDERSTANDING

         6  IS--I THINK I SAID THIS EARLIER--THAT WE WERE TRYING TO

         7  BUILD A BETTER PRODUCT, AND USING INTEGRATION TECHNOLOGY

         8  TO DO SO, AS ONE WAY OF DOING IT.  AND NATURALLY, WE ALL

         9  KNOW WE HAVE IMPROVED THAT PRODUCT IN OTHER AREAS AS WELL,

        10  NOT JUST THROUGH INTEGRATION.

        11  Q.   NOW, WHAT IS SAID HERE IS THAT I-S AND WEB

        12  PROFESSIONALS BELIEVE THAT WITH IE BUNDLED WITH THE

        13  OPERATING SYSTEM, THEY DON'T HAVE A REASON TO PURCHASE A

        14  SECOND BROWSER.

        15           DO YOU SEE THAT?

        16  A.   YEAH, I DO.

        17  Q.   AND IS THAT CONSISTENT WITH YOUR UNDERSTANDING AS TO

        18  WHAT MICROSOFT EXPECTED?

        19  A.   NO.

        20           I MEAN, THIS IS THE OPINION OF SOMEBODY--I DON'T

        21  KNOW.  I'M NOT SURE IF THIS IS A MARKETING PERSON OR A

        22  DEVELOPER WHO JUST VOICES HIS OPINION, SO I DON'T KNOW IF

        23  HE SPEAKS FOR THE COMPANY OR WHATEVER.  I MEAN, THIS IS

        24  ONE OF THE EXAMPLES OF PEOPLE, YOU KNOW, PUTTING IDEAS AND

        25  OPINIONS ON E-MAIL.  THIS JUST DOESN'T PROVE ANYTHING TO
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         1  ME.

         2  Q.   WELL, LET'S GO TO ANOTHER DOCUMENT, AND THIS IS A

         3  DOCUMENT THAT IS DATED APRIL 1997, AND IT'S GOVERNMENT

         4  EXHIBIT 415.

         5           (DOCUMENT HANDED TO THE WITNESS.)

         6  Q.   THIS DOCUMENT IS ALREADY IN EVIDENCE.

         7           I WOULD LIKE TO DIRECT YOUR ATTENTION TO PAGE

         8  10574.

         9  A.   10574.

        10  Q.   AND LET ME ASK YOU FIRST WHETHER YOU HAVE EVER SEEN

        11  THIS DOCUMENT BEFORE.

        12  A.   YOU'RE ON 10574?

        13  Q.   YES.

        14           HEADED "KEY TAKEAWAYS."

        15  A.   YES.

        16           I BELIEVE IT WAS SHOWN TO ME IN ONE OF MY

        17  DEPOSITIONS, IF I'M NOT WRONG.

        18  Q.   OTHER THAN SEEING IT AT ONE OF YOUR DEPOSITIONS, HAVE

        19  YOU EVER SEEN THIS DOCUMENT BEFORE?

        20  A.   I PERSONALLY DON'T BELIEVE SO.

        21  Q.   THIS DOCUMENT, WHICH IS HEADED "IE MARKET REVIEW" AND

        22  DATED APRIL 1997, AND APPEARS TO HAVE BEEN PREPARED BY

        23  MR. MEHTA, UNDER "KEY TAKEAWAYS," THE FIRST ONE STATES,

        24  "OEM IS THE LEADING DISTRIBUTION CHANNEL FOR IE."

        25           DO YOU SEE THAT?
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         1  A.   I DO.

         2  Q.   DO YOU AGREE WITH THAT, SIR?

         3  A.   I DON'T KNOW, AND LET ME OFFER AN EXPLANATION.  I

         4  PERSONALLY DON'T KNOW HOW MANY BROWSERS WE HAVE DOWNLOADED

         5  OVER THE NETWORK, HOW MANY CD'S WE HAVE SENT OUT TO PEOPLE

         6  AND WHO GOT THAT TYPE OF TECHNOLOGY AND BASICALLY UPGRADED

         7  THAT WINDOW SYSTEM.  SO, IF WE SAYS THAT, AND HE'S THE

         8  EXPERT, THEN I CAN BELIEVE IT, BUT I'M NOT SURE OF--ON

         9  WHAT RESEARCH THAT IS BASED.

        10  Q.   ALL RIGHT, SIR.  YOU KNOW WHO MR. MEHTA IS, DO YOU

        11  NOT?

        12  A.   I HEARD HIS NAME.  I MIGHT HAVE MET HIM.  IT LOOKS

        13  LIKE HE WAS SOMEWHERE IN THE MARKETING GROUP BECAUSE HE

        14  WROTE THIS REVIEW.  PROBABLY IN THE PRODUCT GROUP.

        15  Q.   LET ME ASK YOU TO LOOK AT ANOTHER BROWSER OEM

        16  MARKETING REVIEW.  THIS IS GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT 233.

        17           (DOCUMENT HANDED TO THE WITNESS.)

        18  Q.   AND IN THIS CONNECTION, THIS IS A DRAFT IE 5 OEM

        19  MARKETING REVIEW DATED MAY 27, 1998.

        20           AND LET ME DIRECT YOUR ATTENTION TO PAGE 655 THAT

        21  IS HEADED "SITUATION ANALYSIS."

        22  A.   I SEE THAT.

        23  Q.   NOW, PAGE 655 HEADED "SITUATION ANALYSIS" HAS FOUR

        24  BULLET POINTS, THE SECOND ONE OF WHICH SAYS, QUOTE, "IT

        25  CAME WITH MY COMPUTER, CLOSED QUOTE, IS THE NUMBER ONE
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         1  REASON PEOPLE SWITCHED TO IE.

         2           DO YOU SEE THAT?

         3  A.   I SEE THAT.

         4  Q.   IS THAT CONSISTENT WITH YOUR UNDERSTANDING?

         5  A.   NO, IT IS NOT.

         6  Q.   THE NEXT ONE SAYS, "USERS FOLLOW OEM'S LEAD ONTO THE

         7  INTERNET."

         8           IS THAT CONSISTENT WITH YOUR UNDERSTANDING.

         9  A.   IF THAT MEANS ON THE INTERNET SIGNUP PROCESS, I THINK

        10  AT THAT POINT IN TIME THERE WAS SOME BELIEF IN MICROSOFT

        11  THAT THAT WOULD HAPPEN, AND THAT ISP, BASICALLY, WOULD BE

        12  LESS IMPORTANT.  IT NEVER MATERIALIZED.  THE ISP'S ARE AS

        13  IMPORTANT AS THEY WERE A YEAR AGO, FIVE MONTHS AGO, AND

        14  OUR PREDICTION WAS BASICALLY WRONG.

        15  Q.   IS THIS WHAT WAS BELIEVED AT THE END OF MAY OF 1998?

        16  A.   YES, I BELIEVE SO, BECAUSE THE--WHAT WE SAW IN THE

        17  MARKET AT THAT POINT IN TIME WERE PEOPLE LIKE GATEWAY, FOR

        18  INSTANCE, TRYING TO SELL INTERNET SERVICES AT THE POINT OF

        19  SALES.  WE SAW COMPAQ HAVING AN ALLIANCE WITH GTE AND AOL,

        20  AND WE SAW A LOT OF OTHER PEOPLE BASICALLY DOING THE SAME

        21  THING.  AND IT CONTINUES TODAY.

        22           SO, WE THOUGHT THAT FOR THE INTERNET CONNECTION

        23  SERVICE, THE OEM'S WOULD ACTUALLY LEAD, AND THE ISP, I

        24  GUESS, WOULD GET LESS IMPORTANT.  I THINK THAT'S WHAT'S

        25  MEANT HERE.
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         1           THE COURT:  DOES THIS COME FROM SOME OTHER SURVEY

         2  THAT WE HAVEN'T SEEN YET?

         3           THE WITNESS:  YOUR HONOR, THERE WAS NO SURVEY,

         4  BUT COULD JUST HEAR THIS FROM THE PC MANUFACTURERS.

         5           I MEAN, WHEN COMPAQ STARTED NEGOTIATING THEIR

         6  WINDOWS--

         7           THE COURT:  WELL, YOU WERE VERY RELUCTANT TO GIVE

         8  US ANY ESTIMATE ON ANY NUMBERS A FEW MINUTES AGO BECAUSE

         9  YOU HAD NO DATA, HAD NO SURVEY, AND YOU REFERRED TO

        10  EVERYTHING AS BEING A WILD GUESS.

        11           AND NOW YOU'RE TELLING ME YOU DISAGREE WITH THIS

        12  INFORMATION ON THE BASIS OF WHAT?  WORD OF MOUTH?

        13           THE WITNESS:  NO.  YOUR HONOR, THIS IS A DOCUMENT

        14  IN THE MARKETPLACE.

        15           THE COURT:  WHERE IS THE DOCUMENT?  THAT'S WHAT I

        16  WANT TO SEE.

        17           THE WITNESS:  YOU CAN JUST GO TO GATEWAY AND ASK

        18  THEM WHEN THEY WERE--I MEAN, I KNOW THIS BECAUSE I LIVE IN

        19  INDUSTRY.

        20           THE COURT:  I KNOW YOU DO, AND THAT'S WHY I'M

        21  ASKING YOU.

        22           THE WITNESS:  AND WE DON'T DOCUMENT THAT,

        23  AND--BUT WE TALK ABOUT THAT, AND I THINK SOME OF THE

        24  PEOPLE MIGHT HAVE VISITED THESE CUSTOMERS.  AND THEY WERE

        25  TALKING ABOUT THIS--I MEAN, THINK ABOUT DELL.
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         1           THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.  I DON'T WANT TO INTERRUPT

         2  MR. BOIES'S INTERROGATION.  I JUST WANT TO FIND OUT IF

         3  THERE WAS SOME INFORMATION THAT YOU WERE ALLUDING TO THAT

         4  HASN'T BEEN CALLED TO MY ATTENTION YET.

         5           THE WITNESS:  IT'S IN A WAY--NO, I DON'T THINK

         6  SO.  IT'S TOTALLY ANECDOTAL.

         7           THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT, ANECDOTAL.

         8           THE WITNESS:  WORKING WITH THESE CUSTOMERS, THESE

         9  PEOPLE DRAW THESE CONCLUSIONS, AND I WOULD HAVE DONE THE

        10  SAME AT THIS POINT IN TIME.

        11           THE COURT:  AND THOSE CONCLUSIONS ARE CONTRARY TO

        12  THOSE WHICH APPEAR IN THIS SITUATION ANALYSIS?

        13           THE WITNESS:  THE CONCLUSIONS I WAS TALKING ABOUT

        14  WAS THAT USERS FOLLOW OEM'S LEAD TO THE INTERNET.  TO THE

        15  INTERNET MEANS TO CONNECT TO THE INTERNET.

        16           THE COURT:  YOU ALSO SAID YOU DISAGREED WITH "IT

        17  CAME WITH MY COMPUTER."

        18           THE WITNESS:  THE REASON THAT I DISAGREE WITH

        19  THAT, THERE IS A NUMBER WHICH STICKS IN MY HEAD WHICH I

        20  SEEN ONCE, THAT ONLY 20 PERCENT OF ALL USERS SAY THAT THEY

        21  USE THEIR INTERNET--THEY USE THEIR BROWSER BECAUSE IT CAME

        22  WITH THE COMPUTER.  THAT'S A NUMBER THAT STICKS IN MY

        23  HEAD.  AND I BELIEVE THAT THE GOVERNMENT SHOWED ME SUCH A

        24  NUMBER IN ONE OF OUR INTERNAL DOCUMENTS DURING A

        25  DEPOSITION.
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         1  BY MR. BOIES:

         2  Q.   DO YOU RECALL WHETHER THAT WAS A DOCUMENT EARLIER

         3  THAN MAY OF 1998, SIR?

         4  A.   I BELIEVE THIS WAS EARLIER.

         5  Q.   OKAY.  AND ONE OF THE THINGS THAT HAPPENED IS THAT

         6  WITH RESPECT TO IE 1 AND IE 2, WITHOUT TRYING TO EMBARRASS

         7  ANYBODY, THOSE WEREN'T PARTICULARLY GOOD PRODUCTS; FAIR?

         8  A.   THE PRODUCT--THAT IS FAIR.  THEY WERE NOT AS GOOD AS

         9  NETSCAPE'S.

        10  Q.   AND SO, EVEN THOUGH THEY CAME WITH PEOPLE'S

        11  COMPUTERS, PEOPLE DIDN'T USE THEM AS MUCH; RIGHT?

        12  A.   THAT'S MY BEST UNDERSTANDING.

        13  Q.   AND WHEN YOU GOT TO IE 3 AND IE 4, THEN THOSE

        14  BROWSERS WERE, AT LEAST IN A LOT OF PEOPLE'S VIEW, AS GOOD

        15  AS THE NETSCAPE BROWSER; CORRECT?

        16  A.   OR BETTER, EVEN.

        17  Q.   OR PERHAPS, IN SOME PEOPLE'S VIEW, BETTER, SOME

        18  PEOPLE'S VIEW NOT AS GOOD, BUT THEY WERE NEVERTHELESS GOOD

        19  BROWSERS; FAIR?

        20  A.   YES.

        21  Q.   AND UNDER THOSE CIRCUMSTANCES, IF SOMEBODY WAS

        22  GETTING A GOOD BROWSER WITH THEIR COMPUTER, DO YOU

        23  UNDERSTAND WHY THAT WOULD MEAN THAT THE NUMBER OF PEOPLE

        24  WHO WOULD USE THE BROWSER THAT SIMPLY CAME WITH THEIR

        25  COMPUTER WOULD GO UP?

                                                           47

         1  A.   YOU'RE CORRECT.  THIS COULD HAPPEN.  AT THE SAME

         2  TIME, YOU NEVER KNOW WHAT A USER DOES WITH THIS COMPUTER

         3  BECAUSE HE HAS TOTAL FREEDOM.  AND BEFORE I, YOU KNOW, SAY

         4  IT WAS 15 PERCENT THREE YEARS AGO AND 20 PERCENT ONE AND A

         5  HALF YEARS AGO--AGAIN, I CAN SAY I HAVE NOT SEEN A GOOD

         6  STATISTIC ABOUT IT.  PERSONALLY, I DON'T.

         7           THE COURT:  I THINK WE WILL TAKE A RECESS RIGHT

         8  NOW.

         9           MR. BOIES:  THANK YOU, YOUR HONOR.

        10           (BRIEF RECESS.)

        11  BY MR. BOIES:

        12  Q.   MR. KEMPIN, LET ME CONTINUE WITH THE DOCUMENT THAT WE

        13  WERE LOOKING AT, WHICH WAS THE MAY 27, 1998, MARKETING

        14  REVIEW.

        15           AND THE LAST ITEM ON THIS PAGE IS HEADED

        16  "CONCLUSION."

        17  A.   COULD YOU DO ME A FAVOR?  GIVE ME THE REFERENCE

        18  NUMBER HERE BECAUSE I CLOSED IT UP.  I CAN'T SEE IT.

        19  Q.   IT'S 655 AT THE BOTTOM RIGHT-HAND CORNER.

        20  A.   YEAH.

        21  Q.   AND IT SAYS HERE, "CONCLUSION, OEM'S ARE THE BEST

        22  VEHICLE TO GAIN BROWSER SHARE."

        23           DO YOU SEE THAT?

        24  A.   YES, I DO.

        25  Q.   WAS THAT AN ACCURATE STATEMENT AS OF MAY OF 1998?
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         1  A.   I PERSONALLY NEVER SAW IT THAT WAY.  THE PERSON WHO

         2  PRESENTED IT SAW IT THAT WAY, SO I WOULD SAY OEM ARE ONE

         3  VEHICLE OF GAIN BROWSER SHARE, WOULD BE MY JUDGMENT.

         4  Q.   DID YOU SAY ONE OF THE VEHICLES OR ONE OF THE BEST

         5  VEHICLES?

         6  A.   I WOULD HAVE SAID ONE OF THE VEHICLES.

         7  Q.   WHAT IS THE BEST VEHICLE FOR GAINING BROWSER SHARE?

         8  A.   I BELIEVE--WITH MY KNOWLEDGE ON THIS ONE IS--AGAIN, I

         9  HAVEN'T SEEN A GOOD STATISTIC ON THAT FOR A LONG TIME, BUT

        10  WHAT I UNDERSTOOD IS THERE ARE ISP'S IN THERE THAT--WHO

        11  ARE DISTRIBUTING BROWSERS.

        12           THERE IS (SIC) CONTENT PROVIDERS IN THERE LIKE

        13  AOL.

        14           I MEAN, THERE ARE (SIC) AN ISP AT THE SAME TIME,

        15  SO YOU NEVER KNOW WHAT TO SAY ABOUT THEM.

        16           THE OEM'S ARE PART OF IT.

        17           AND THERE IS WORD OF MOUTH FOR SURE.

        18           AND I THINK SOME PEOPLE ACTUALLY DOWNLOAD THEM,

        19  AND SOME PEOPLE GET THEM IN THE MAIL.

        20           I MEAN, THERE ARE LOTS OF WAYS OF HOW YOU CAN

        21  DISTRIBUTE BROWSERS.

        22  Q.   YOU EARLIER SAID THAT THE ISP CHANNEL AND THE OEM

        23  CHANNEL WERE THE TWO MOST IMPORTANT CHANNELS.

        24           DO YOU RECALL THAT?

        25  A.   YEAH, AND THAT MIGHT BE TRUE.
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         1  Q.   AND AS BETWEEN THE ISP CHANNEL AND THE OEM CHANNEL,

         2  WHICH CHANNEL DO YOU BELIEVE IS MORE IMPORTANT, IF YOU

         3  HAVE A VIEW?

         4  A.   IT MIGHT BE 50/50 AT THE END.

         5  Q.   OKAY.  LET ME ASK YOU TO LOOK AT GOVERNMENT

         6  EXHIBIT 48.

         7           (DOCUMENT HANDED TO THE WITNESS.)

         8  Q.   AND THIS IS A JANUARY 2, 1997, E-MAIL FROM

         9  MR. ALLCHIN TO MR. MARITZ ON THE SUBJECT OF IE AND

        10  WINDOWS.

        11           DO YOU SEE THAT?

        12  A.   I SEE THAT.

        13  Q.   NOW, FIRST, THIS DOCUMENT REFERENCES MEMPHIS.

        14           WHAT PRODUCT WAS MEMPHIS A CODE NAME FOR?

        15  A.   I BELIEVE IT WAS WINDOWS 98.

        16  Q.   NOW, AT THE TOP, MR. ALLCHIN TALKS ABOUT THE

        17  IMPORTANCE OF WINNING THE BROWSER BATTLE.

        18           DO YOU SEE THAT IN THE SECOND LINE?

        19  A.   I SEE THAT.

        20  Q.   AND IN THE SECOND PARAGRAPH, THE THIRD SENTENCE, HE

        21  SAYS, "WE DO NOT USE OUR STRENGTH, WHICH IS THAT WE HAVE

        22  AN INSTALLED BASE OF WINDOWS, AND WE HAVE A STRONG OEM

        23  SHIPMENT CHANNEL FOR WINDOWS."

        24           DO YOU SEE THAT?

        25  A.   YES, I DO.  BUT LET ME COME BACK TO YOUR--CAN YOU
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         1  HELP ME ON YOUR QUESTION BEFORE?  BECAUSE I THINK YOU SAID

         2  SOMETHING ABOUT WINNING THE BROWSER BATTLE.  WHERE DO YOU

         3  FIND THAT?

         4  Q.   THE DOCUMENT BEGINS, "YOU SEE BROWSER SHARE"--

         5  A.   I'M SORRY, BECAUSE I HAVEN'T SEEN THE OTHER THING.

         6  IT SAYS FOR NETSCAPE, THIS IS SYNONYMOUS WITH WINNING THE

         7  BROWSER BATTLE.

         8  Q.   WHAT IT SAYS, THE FIRST PARAGRAPH, IT SAYS, "YOU

         9  SEE"--THAT IS, MR. MARITZ SEES--"BROWSER SHARE AS JOB

        10  ONE."

        11           DO YOU SEE THAT?  THE VERY FIRST SENTENCE OF THE

        12  WHOLE DOCUMENT.

        13  A.   LOOKS LIKE THAT'S A STATEMENT, YEAH.

        14  Q.   AND THEN IT GOES ON TO SAY, "THE REAL ISSUE DEALS

        15  WITH NOT LOSING CONTROL OF THE API'S ON THE CLIENT AND NOT

        16  LOSING CONTROL OF THE END-USER EXPERIENCE."

        17           DO YOU SEE THAT?

        18  A.   YES, I SEE THAT.  THAT BASICALLY MEANS THAT FOR ME

        19  THAT NETSCAPE IS TRYING TO SHIFT THE GROUND RULES ON US BY

        20  BASICALLY ASKING SOFTWARE DEVELOPERS TO DEVELOP FOR THEIR

        21  IPI'S (SIC).

        22  Q.   WHAT DID YOU SAY?  DEVELOP FOR WHAT?

        23  A.   TO DEVELOP FOR THEIR API'S.

        24  Q.   AS OPPOSED TO--

        25           THE COURT:  YOU SAID THE MEANING OF THIS
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         1  MEMORANDUM IS THAT NETSCAPE WAS SHIFTING GROUND ON YOU; IS

         2  THAT RIGHT?

         3           THE WITNESS:  YEAH, WHAT I SEE IS JIM IS SAYING

         4  HERE THAT HE DOESN'T WANT TO LOSE THE CONTROL OF THE

         5  API'S.

         6           THE COURT:  OKAY.  DO YOU AGREE WITH THAT?

         7           THE WITNESS:  AND HE'S SAYING THAT THERE IS

         8  ANOTHER COMPETITOR IN THE MARKET CALLED NETSCAPE WHO IS

         9  TRYING TO CONTROL THE API'S.

        10           THE COURT:  OKAY.

        11           THE WITNESS:  THAT'S THE THING.

        12           AND SO, THAT MEANS THEY ARE SHIFTING THE GROUND

        13  RULES, INSTEAD OF WRITING YOUR PROGRAM DIRECTLY TO

        14  WINDOWS, NOW YOU WRITE YOUR PROGRAM TO WHAT I CALL A

        15  MIDDLEWARE LAYER OF A BROWSER.

        16           THE COURT:  MY QUESTION IS, DO YOU AGREE WITH

        17  MR. ALLCHIN, THAT THE REAL ISSUE DEALS WITH NOT LOSING

        18  CONTROL OF THE API'S?

        19           THE WITNESS:  LOOKS LIKE THAT WAS IMPORTANT FOR

        20  HIM AT THAT POINT IN TIME.

        21           THE COURT:  WELL, WHAT DO YOU THINK?

        22           THE WITNESS:  YEAH, I THINK THAT WAS IMPORTANT.

        23           THE COURT:  OKAY.  BUT WHY, THEN, DO YOU SAY

        24  NETSCAPE IS SHIFTING GROUND ON YOU?

        25           THE WITNESS:  IF NETSCAPE WOULDN'T--THAT--I MEAN,
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         1  HE WOULDN'T WRITE THIS IF SOMEBODY ELSE WOULDN'T TRY THAT.

         2           I MEAN, WHEN I LOSE CONTROL OVER SOMETHING,

         3  SOMEBODY IS TRYING TO TAKE THE CONTROL AWAY FROM ME.

         4  THAT'S JUST LOGICAL FOR ME.

         5           THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.  GO AHEAD.

         6  BY MR. BOIES:

         7  Q.   AND MR. ALLCHIN GOES ON TO SAY THAT MICROSOFT HAS AN

         8  ASSET WHICH HAS API'S, AND THAT IS WINDOWS.

         9           DO YOU SEE THAT?

        10  A.   THAT IS TRUE.

        11  Q.   AND YOU AGREE WITH THAT; CORRECT?

        12  A.   THAT IS AN ASSET FOR WINDOWS, YES.

        13  Q.   AND HE GOES ON TO SAY IN THE NEXT PARAGRAPH, "WE ARE

        14  NOT LEVERAGING WINDOWS FROM A MARKETING PERSPECTIVE."

        15           DO YOU SEE THAT?

        16  A.   YES.

        17  Q.   NOW, DID YOU AGREE IN JANUARY OF 1997 THAT MICROSOFT

        18  WAS NOT SUFFICIENTLY LEVERAGING WINDOWS FROM A MARKETING

        19  PERSPECTIVE?

        20  A.   IT DEPENDS.

        21           I MEAN, IF I LOOK AT THE MEANING OF LEVERAGING

        22  WINDOWS, MEANING PROMOTING OUR TECHNOLOGY INSIDE WINDOWS,

        23  THEN HE'S RIGHT.  THAT'S WHAT THAT MEANS TO ME.

        24  Q.   WELL, HE DOESN'T TALK ABOUT TECHNOLOGY THERE.  HE'S

        25  TALKING ABOUT LEVERAGING WINDOWS FROM A MARKETING
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         1  PERSPECTIVE; RIGHT?

         2  A.   BUT THE--BUT THE BROWSER IS BASICALLY A PIECE OF

         3  TECHNOLOGY WHICH SITS INSIDE WINDOWS.  I MEAN, I CAN'T

         4  SEPARATE THAT IN MY HEAD.

         5  Q.   DIDN'T YOU TELL ME EARLIER THAT AT LEAST WITH RESPECT

         6  TO ALL THE BROWSERS THAT WERE BEING OFFERED BY MICROSOFT

         7  IN 1997--THAT IS, IE 1, 2, AND 3--YOU DIDN'T KNOW WHETHER

         8  YOU COULD REMOVE THE BROWSER AND STILL HAVE THE OPERATING

         9  SYSTEM CONTINUE TO FUNCTION FINE; CORRECT?

        10  A.   THAT IS CORRECT.  AT THE SAME TIME FOR ME, WINDOWS

        11  ALWAYS INCLUDED THE BROWSER, AND THAT'S JUST THE WAY I

        12  LOOKED AT THE PRODUCT.  I HOPE I CAN HAVE THAT VIEW.

        13  Q.   WELL, YOU CAN HAVE THAT VIEW, BUT WHAT I NEED TO DO

        14  IS PROBE THE BASIS FOR THAT VIEW.

        15           AND IS THE BASIS OF THAT VIEW BECAUSE, AS FAR AS

        16  YOU WERE CONCERNED, YOU DEALT WITH THE OEM CHANNEL; AND AS

        17  FAR AS YOU WERE CONCERNED, OEM'S ALWAYS GOT BOTH WINDOWS

        18  AND THE BROWSER TOGETHER?

        19  A.   THAT IS CORRECT.

        20           AND IN ADDITION TO THAT, I BELIEVE WHEN WE

        21  DESIGNED WINDOWS 95, WE DESIGNED IT WITH THE BROWSER IN

        22  MIND.  I DON'T BELIEVE WE EVER--I DON'T THINK THERE IS ANY

        23  DOUBT IN ANYBODY'S MIND TO MICROSOFT THAT THIS PRODUCT

        24  INCLUDED BROWSER TECHNOLOGY.

        25  Q.   WHEN DID SOMEBODY TELL YOU THAT, SIR?  WHEN WAS THE
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         1  FIRST TIME--YOU HAVE BEEN AT MICROSOFT HERE IN THE UNITED

         2  STATES FOR MORE THAN A DOZEN YEARS--WHEN WAS THE FIRST

         3  TIME SOMEBODY TOLD YOU THAT WINDOWS 95 WAS GOING TO

         4  INCLUDE A BROWSER?

         5  A.   I'M PRETTY SURE IT WAS BEFORE WINDOWS 95 APPEARED ON

         6  THE MARKETPLACE BECAUSE--I MEAN, IT TOOK US AROUND--I

         7  COULD BE WRONG, BUT TWO AND A HALF YEARS, AT LEAST, OR TWO

         8  YEARS, AT LEAST, TO DEVELOP THE PRODUCT.

         9  Q.   WHEN DID--

        10  A.   AND SEVERAL--AND SO, IF YOU GO BACK FROM THE AUGUST

        11  '95 DATE, IT WAS SOMEWHERE IN THAT PERIOD, TWO, TWO AND A

        12  HALF YEARS BACK, THAT WE SENT ALPHA AND BETA COPIES OUT

        13  WITH SOME BROWSER TECHNOLOGY IN THERE.

        14  Q.   ALL I'M TRYING TO DO, SIR, IS GET YOUR BEST TESTIMONY

        15  RIGHT NOW AS TO WHEN YOU FIRST WERE TOLD OR FIRST BECAME

        16  AWARE THAT WINDOWS 95 WAS GOING TO INCLUDE A BROWSER.

        17  A.   I CANNOT RECALL THE EXACT DATE, I'M SORRY.

        18  Q.   CAN YOU GIVE ME AN APPROXIMATE DATE?

        19  A.   I TRIED TO TELL YOU, IT HAPPENED SOMEWHERE IN THE

        20  TWO, TWO AND A HALF YEARS BEFORE WINDOWS 95 SHIPPED, FOR

        21  SURE.

        22  Q.   ALL I'M TRYING TO DO IS JUST GIVE ME THE BEST--CAN

        23  YOU GIVE ME A YEAR?

        24  A.   I CANNOT FROM HERE, WITHOUT BEING TRUTHFUL.

        25  Q.   OKAY.  LET ME GO BACK TO GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT 48.
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         1           AND LET ME ASK YOU TO LOOK AT THE THIRD

         2  PARAGRAPH, THE LAST SENTENCE, WHERE MR. ALLCHIN WRITES,

         3  "MEMPHIS"--WHICH IS WINDOWS 98--"MUST BE A SIMPLE UPGRADE.

         4  BUT MOST IMPORTANTLY, IT MUST BE A KILLER ON OEM SHIPMENTS

         5  SO THAT NETSCAPE NEVER GETS A CHANCE ON THESE SYSTEMS."

         6           MR. HOLLEY:  YOUR HONOR, I JUST ASK MR. BOIES TO

         7  READ THE SENTENCE CORRECTLY.  IT SAYS, "IT MUST BE

         8  KILLER," NOT "A KILLER."

         9           THE COURT:  CORRECTION NOTED.

        10           GO AHEAD.

        11  BY MR. BOIES:

        12  Q.   DO YOU AGREE WITH THE SENTENCE AS STATED HERE AND AS

        13  CORRECTED BY YOUR COUNSEL, SIR?

        14  A.   I MEAN, IT SEEMS TO ME TO BE EASY TO READ THAT

        15  SENTENCE PROPERLY.

        16  Q.   AND DO YOU AGREE WITH IT, IS WHAT I SAID.

        17  A.   CAN I READ THE SENTENCE?

        18  Q.   DO YOU WANT TO READ THE SENTENCE AGAIN?

        19  A.   I DON'T KNOW.  I DON'T--I DON'T KNOW WHAT'S GOING ON

        20  HERE.

        21  Q.   WELL, MR. KEMPIN--

        22           THE COURT:  GO AHEAD, READ YOUR SENTENCE AGAIN.

        23           THE WITNESS:  "MEMPHIS MUST BE A SIMPLE UPGRADE.

        24  BUT MOST IMPORTANTLY, IT MUST BE KILLER ON OEM SHIPMENTS

        25  SO THAT NETSCAPE NEVER GETS A CHANCE ON THESE SYSTEMS."
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         1  BY MR. BOIES:

         2  Q.   DO YOU AGREE WITH THAT, SIR?

         3  A.   YES.

         4           AND THE WAY I WILL INTERPRET THIS SENTENCE IS

         5  MAKE SURE THAT WE BUILD SUCH A GOOD BROWSER THAT NOBODY

         6  WANTS THIS NETSCAPE THING ON THESE SYSTEMS.  I MEAN,

         7  THAT'S WHAT IT CLEARLY SAYS.  WHEN YOU GO UP ON THE SECOND

         8  PARAGRAPH ON THE LAST SENTENCE, HE SAYS, "WE HAVE TO BE

         9  COMPETITIVE WITH FEATURES, BUT WE NEED SOMETHING MORE:

        10  WINDOWS INTEGRATION."

        11           AND I BELIEVE I TALKED ABOUT THAT BEFORE.  WE

        12  WERE TRYING TO BUILD THE BEST MOUSETRAP WE COULD BUILD.

        13  Q.   YES, YOU WERE TRYING TO BUILD THE BEST MOUSETRAP, BUT

        14  YOU NEEDED SOMETHING MORE THAN THE BETTER MOUSETRAP.  YOU

        15  NEEDED WINDOWS INTEGRATION SO THAT NETSCAPE NEVER GOT A

        16  CHANCE ON THE OEM SHIPMENTS; CORRECT, SIR?

        17  A.   THAT IS NOT CORRECT BECAUSE I CONSIDERED INTEGRATION

        18  PART OF THE PRODUCT ADVANCEMENT.  INTEGRATION IS GOODNESS.

        19  EVERY SINGLE MANUFACTURER WHO HAS--WHO IS--WHO WORKS IN

        20  PRODUCT TRIES TO INTEGRATE THAT PRODUCT OVER TIME, MAKE

        21  THEM ALL EFFICIENT AND PUT MORE FEATURES IN.  THAT'S HOW I

        22  SEE THAT.

        23           I THINK IT'S A GREAT IDEA WHEN YOU WANT TO CHANGE

        24  THE GROUND RULES ON A COMPETITOR TO DO THIS.

        25           THE COURT:  HOW MUCH LONGER DO YOU THINK YOU'RE

                                                           57

         1  GOING TO BE?

         2           MR. BOIES:  I HAVE A REALLY HARD TIME ANSWERING

         3  THAT QUESTION, YOUR HONOR.  I HAVE HAD A--

         4           THE COURT:  DO YOU HAVE SOME OTHER SUBJECTS THAT

         5  YOU ARE GOING TO COVER?

         6           MR. BOIES:  I DO.  ONE OF THE PROBLEMS--MAY WE

         7  APPROACH THE BENCH FOR A SECOND?

         8           THE COURT:  SURE.

         9           (BENCH CONFERENCE.)

        10           MR. BOIES:  ONE OF THE PROBLEMS THAT I HAVE IS I

        11  WILL OFFER THE QUESTION--I WILL ASK A QUESTION, AND I WILL

        12  GET A DISSERTATION OR A SPEECH OR STATEMENT.

        13           THE COURT:  TRUE.

        14           MR. BOIES:  AND I'M RELUCTANT TO LET THAT STUFF

        15  SIT THERE ON THE RECORD WITHOUT CROSS-EXAMINING THE VERY

        16  STATEMENTS HE MAKES.  ON THE OTHER HAND, HE SAYS, "I DON'T

        17  KNOW ANYTHING ABOUT TECHNOLOGY; I'M A SALESMAN," AND THE

        18  OTHER TIME HE KEEPS GIVING SPEECHES ABOUT THE BENEFITS OF

        19  INTEGRATION.

        20           AND WHAT I HAD ORIGINALLY TOLD MR. WARDEN WAS I

        21  WOULD FINISH BY THE END OF THE DAY TODAY.  HE HAS A

        22  RELATIVELY SHORT REDIRECT, AND WE HOPE TO FINISH

        23  MR. MUGLIA TOMORROW.

        24           THE PROBLEM I'M CONFRONTED WITH IS I REALLY DON'T

        25  HAVE MORE THAN ANOTHER 45 MINUTES OF EXAMINATION, IF I
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         1  DON'T HAVE TO GET THE SPEECHES THAT THEN CAUSE ME TO

         2  RE-EXAMINE THE THINGS HE SAYS THAT I DON'T EXPECT HIM TO

         3  SAY AND THAT AREN'T REALLY RESPONSIVE TO WHAT I ASKED.

         4           MR. HOLLEY:  YOUR HONOR, I OBVIOUSLY TAKE ISSUE

         5  WITH THIS.

         6           THIS MAN IS BEING ASKED ABOUT ALLCHIN DOCUMENTS

         7  HE'S NEVER SEEN BEFORE BUT HAVE TO DO WITH TECHNOLOGY.

         8  THAT IS A SUBJECT THAT COULD HAVE BEEN TAKEN UP WITH THE

         9  MAN WHO WROTE THEM OR THE GUY WHO GOT THEM.  MR. KEMPIN

        10  WAS A SALESMAN.  WHY ARE WE TALKING ABOUT THIS?  I DON'T

        11  UNDERSTAND IT.

        12           THE COURT:  I'M INCLINED TO AGREE, MR. BOIES,

        13  THAT YOU HAVE RUN JUST ABOUT AS MUCH INFORMATION OUT OF

        14  THIS WITNESS AS YOU'RE GOING TO GET, AND I DO THINK THAT

        15  HIS SCOPE IS RATHER LIMITED IN TERMS OF WHAT HE CAN

        16  TESTIFY TO KNOWLEDGEABLY.

        17           MR. BOIES:  I WILL MOVE ON, YOUR HONOR.

        18           ONE OF THE PROBLEMS IS THAT IT'S NOW SAID THAT

        19  HE'S A SALESMAN, BUT HIS DIRECT TESTIMONY HAS A GREAT DEAL

        20  IN IT THAT IS PURPORTING TO TALK ABOUT THE TECHNOLOGY.

        21           THE WITNESS:  BUT THE FACT THAT HE HAS NOW

        22  IDENTIFIED HIM AS PRIMARILY A SALESMAN DETRACTS SOMEWHAT

        23  FROM THE IMPACT THAT HIS ASSERTIONS IN OTHER CONTEXTS

        24  WOULD SEEM TO HAVE IN HIS DIRECT TESTIMONY.

        25           MR. BOIES:  I AGREE, YOUR HONOR.  I WILL MOVE ON.
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         1           MR. HOLLEY:  JUST FOR THE RECORD, YOUR HONOR, IT

         2  IS ONE THING FOR A SALESMAN TO TALK ABOUT THE CONSUMER

         3  BENEFITS FROM THE DESIGNS THAT THE ENGINEERS CREATE.  IT

         4  IS A DIFFERENT MATTER TO ASK A SALESMAN TO TALK ABOUT THE

         5  ENGINEERING ITSELF, AND I JUST--OBVIOUSLY, THAT'S A

         6  SUBJECT FOR ARGUMENT.

         7           THE COURT:  HE'S PAST BEYOND THE ENGINEERING.

         8  HE'S NOW ON THE SUBJECT OF SALES STRATEGY.

         9           MR. HOLLEY:  ACTUALLY, WE WILL ARGUE ABOUT THAT

        10  AT SOME LATER TIME.  I DON'T THINK THAT'S WHAT IT'S ABOUT.

        11           THE COURT:  OKAY.  FAIR ENOUGH.

        12           (END OF BENCH CONFERENCE.)

        13  BY MR. BOIES:

        14  Q.   MR. KEMPIN, LET ME TRY TO SEE IF I CAN BRING THIS

        15  AREA TO A CLOSE.

        16           DID YOU HAVE DISCUSSIONS, YOU, PERSONALLY, HAVE

        17  DISCUSSIONS WITHIN MICROSOFT ABOUT THE EXTENT TO WHICH

        18  OEM'S WOULD WANT TO ADD A SECOND BROWSER IF THEY ALREADY

        19  GOT A BROWSER THAT THEY HAD TO INCLUDE IN THEIR OPERATING

        20  SYSTEM FROM MICROSOFT, ASSUMING THAT IT WAS A GOOD

        21  BROWSER?

        22  A.   I MIGHT HAVE, BUT I DON'T RECALL SPECIFICS.  I MEAN,

        23  THIS IS A VERY BROAD QUESTION.

        24  Q.   LET ME TRY TO NARROW IT, BUT I'M NOT SURE HOW TO

        25  NARROW IT TOO MUCH.
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         1           YOU BELIEVED THAT ONCE AN OEM HAD A BROWSER ON

         2  THE MACHINE, IF IT WAS A GOOD BROWSER, THERE WERE COSTS TO

         3  THE OEM OF ADDING A SECOND BROWSER; CORRECT?

         4  A.   I BELIEVE I TESTIFIED TO THAT.

         5  Q.   YES.

         6           NOW, DID YOU HAVE DISCUSSIONS WITHIN MICROSOFT

         7  ABOUT THAT FACT, ABOUT THE FACT THAT IF YOU HAD A DECENT

         8  BROWSER THAT THE OEM HAD TO TAKE FROM MICROSOFT, THAT THAT

         9  WOULD MEAN THAT OEM'S WOULD NOT BE VERY INCLINED TO ADD A

        10  SECOND BROWSER?

        11  A.   I--I ONLY RECALL THAT--NO, I--NO, I DON'T THINK SO.

        12  I THINK WE TRIED TO SELL IT ON THE MERITS, MEANING WE HAVE

        13  A GOOD PRODUCT, THE PRODUCT IS INTEGRATED, THINK ABOUT

        14  YOUR COSTS IF YOU HAVE TO; IF YOU HAVE TO, ADD A SECOND

        15  BROWSER.  AND I THINK THAT WAS--WAS WHAT WAS THE

        16  DISCUSSION WAS ALL ABOUT.

        17           WE WERE NOT SURE--WE WERE NOT SURE HOW MUCH THAT

        18  WOULD INFLUENCE OEM'S TO TAKE THE NEXT ONE OR NOT TAKE THE

        19  NEXT ONE.

        20  Q.   AM I CORRECT THAT WHAT YOU'VE JUST TALKED ABOUT WERE

        21  CONVERSATIONS BETWEEN MICROSOFT REPRESENTATIVES AND OEM

        22  REPRESENTATIVES?

        23  A.   THERE WERE CONVERSATIONS BETWEEN MICROSOFT

        24  REPRESENTATIVES, NOT MICROSOFT AND OEM REPRESENTATIVES.  I

        25  THINK YOUR QUESTION INSIDE MICROSOFT, IF I RECALL IT
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         1  PROPERLY.

         2  Q.   YES, THAT WAS MY QUESTION, AND I HAVE MISINTERPRETED

         3  YOUR ANSWER.  I THOUGHT YOU WERE TALKING ABOUT

         4  CONVERSATIONS THAT INVOLVED OEM REPRESENTATIVES.

         5  A.   NO, DID NOT INCLUDE THEM, AT LEAST I DON'T RECALL

         6  THEM.

         7  Q.   OKAY.  LET ME ASK YOU TO LOOK AT PAGE 31 OF YOUR

         8  DEPOSITION.  THIS IS THE OCTOBER 1, 1997, DEPOSITION.

         9  A.   DO I HAVE THIS HERE?

        10  Q.   I THINK SO, SIR.

        11  A.   GOOD.

        12  Q.   I THINK WE ASKED YOU ABOUT IT BEFORE, BUT IF NOT--

        13  A.   IT'S OKAY.  I WILL FIND IT PROBABLY.

        14           OCTOBER 2ND, '97; IS THAT RIGHT?

        15  Q.   YES.

        16  A.   WHAT PAGE?

        17  Q.   PAGE 31 AND BEGINNING AT LINE 13, YOU WERE ASKED

        18  WHETHER YOU HAVE HEARD WHETHER ANY OEM IS WORRIED ABOUT

        19  EITHER END-USER CONFUSION OR INCREASED TECHNICAL SUPPORT

        20  CALLS IF THERE ARE TWO DIFFERENT BROWSERS ON THE SAME PC.

        21  A.   TWENTY-ONE?  LET'S SEE.  I'M NOT WITH YOU AT THE

        22  MOMENT.  PAGE NUMBER?

        23  Q.   PAGE 31, LINES 13 THROUGH 23, (READING):

        24                "QUESTION:  HAVE YOU EVER HEARD, AGAIN EVEN

        25           INDIRECTLY, THAT ANY OEM IS WORRIED ABOUT EITHER
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         1           END-USER CONFUSION OR INCREASED TECHNICAL SUPPORT

         2           CALLS IF THERE ARE TWO DIFFERENT BROWSERS--FOR

         3           EXAMPLE, INTERNET EXPLORER AND A VERSION OF

         4           NETSCAPE NAVIGATOR--ON THE SAME PC?

         5                ANSWER:  I THINK THEY SHOULD BE.  THEY

         6           SHOULD BE.  THEY HAVE NOT TOLD ME THAT DIRECTLY.

         7                QUESTION:  WHEN YOU SAY THEY SHOULD BE, WHAT

         8           DO YOU MEAN?

         9                ANSWER:  I THINK THEY DO HAVE MORE COSTS AT

        10           THAT POINT IN TIME BECAUSE THEY HAVE TWO BROWSERS

        11           ON THAT MACHINE."

        12           DO YOU SEE THAT?

        13  A.   YEAH, I SEE THAT.

        14  Q.   AND I TAKE IT THAT WAS ACCURATE TESTIMONY AT THE TIME

        15  YOU GAVE IT?

        16  A.   I THINK SO.

        17  Q.   AND YOU STILL BELIEVE THAT TO BE ACCURATE?

        18  A.   YEAH.

        19           AND I BELIEVE A LITTLE BIT FURTHER DOWN BECAUSE

        20  WHEN I CAME HERE TO COURT, I THINK I READ THESE THINGS

        21  AGAIN, AND I SAID SOMEBODY ASKED ME TO ESTIMATE THAT, AND

        22  I SAID I DON'T KNOW IF THIS IS A TWO-DAY EXERCISE OR A

        23  TWO-WEEK EXERCISE, AND I HAVE NO CLUE WHAT THE SUPPORT

        24  COSTS REALLY ARE.

        25  Q.   WELL, THE VERY NEXT QUESTION AND ANSWER IS, "WHY
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         1  WOULD THEY HAVE MORE COSTS?"

         2                "ANSWER:  THEY WOULD HAVE TO DO THE TESTING

         3           AT LEAST TWICE."

         4           DO YOU SEE THAT?

         5  A.   I SEE THAT.

         6  Q.   AND WHAT YOU'RE SAYING IS YOU DON'T KNOW HOW MUCH

         7  THAT TESTING--HOW MUCH THAT TESTING COSTS?

         8  A.   THAT IS CORRECT.

         9  Q.   LET ME GO NEXT TO YOUR DEPOSITION OF SEPTEMBER 9,

        10  1998.

        11           (DOCUMENT HANDED TO THE WITNESS.)

        12  Q.   AND THE PORTION I'M INTERESTED IN IS PAGE 43, LINE

        13  24, THROUGH PAGE 44, LINE 22, (READING):

        14                "QUESTION:  AS BEST YOU RECALL, WHAT, IF

        15           ANYTHING, DID GATEWAY SAY ABOUT WHY THEY WANTED

        16           TO REMOVE ANY ICONS FROM THE DESKTOP?

        17                ANSWER:  THE BEST I RECALL IS THAT THEY SAID

        18           THEY WANTED TO REMOVE IT BECAUSE IT MIGHT BE

        19           CONFLICT IF SOMEBODY CHOOSES ANOTHER BROWSER.

        20                QUESTION:  DO YOU RECALL PART OF WHAT THEY

        21           SAID THAT THEY WERE CONCERNED THAT A USER MIGHT

        22           BE CONFUSED IF THEY HAD CHOSEN ANOTHER BROWSER

        23           SUCH AS NETSCAPE AND YET THERE WAS STILL AN

        24           INTERNET EXPLORER ICON ON THEIR DESKTOP?

        25                ANSWER:  WHAT I RECALL IS THAT THEY SAID
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         1           THERE MIGHT BE SOME END-USER CONFUSION IF THEY

         2           HAVE TWO BROWSERS ON THE DESKTOP.

         3                QUESTION:  WHAT, IF ANYTHING, DID MICROSOFT

         4           SAY TO GATEWAY IN RESPONSE TO THAT REQUEST ABOUT

         5           REMOVING AN ICON?

         6                ANSWER:  WE BASICALLY SAID, `WE THOUGHT WE

         7           HAD AN AGREEMENT THAT YOU CANNOT CHANGE OUR CODE

         8           AND OUR WORK.'

         9                QUESTION:  I TAKE IT BASED ON WHAT YOU SAID

        10           EARLIER, THAT REQUEST FROM GATEWAY WAS DENIED BY

        11           MICROSOFT?

        12                ANSWER:  IT WAS DENIED."

        13           IS THAT AN ACCURATE DESCRIPTION OF GATEWAY'S

        14  CONVERSATIONS WITH YOU, SIR?

        15  A.   AS FAR AS I RECALL, I BELIEVE SO.

        16  Q.   NOW, WHEN YOU SAY, "WE THOUGHT WE HAD AN AGREEMENT

        17  THAT YOU CANNOT OUR CODE AND OUR WORK," IS THAT AGREEMENT

        18  THE LICENSE AGREEMENT, SIR.

        19  A.   THAT IS CORRECT.

        20  Q.   NOW, YOU HAVE MENTIONED IN YOUR DIRECT TESTIMONY

        21  COPYRIGHTS.

        22           DO YOU RECALL THAT?

        23  A.   I DO.

        24  Q.   AND YOU ATTACH TWO COPYRIGHTS, OR YOU ATTACH PAGES

        25  RELATING TO TWO COPYRIGHTS TO YOUR DIRECT TESTIMONY;
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         1  CORRECT?

         2  A.   THAT IS CORRECT.

         3  Q.   WHO SELECTED THOSE TWO EXAMPLES?

         4  A.   I TALKED TO MY ATTORNEY ABOUT IT, AND HE SAID THIS

         5  WOULD BE GOOD TO DO, AND THEN WE LOOKED AT THE RELEVANT

         6  PRODUCTS.  AND SO, WE DECIDED TOGETHER TO ATTACH THESE TWO

         7  COPYRIGHTS.

         8  Q.   HOW DID YOU OR YOUR ATTORNEY, IF YOU KNOW, DECIDE

         9  WHICH TWO EXAMPLES TO ATTACH?

        10  A.   FOR ME, IT WAS PRETTY OBVIOUS BECAUSE MOST OF THIS

        11  COURT CASE IS ABOUT WINDOWS 95 AND WINDOWS 98.  I MEAN, WE

        12  COULD HAVE ATTACHED PROBABLY MORE, BUT WE THOUGHT LET'S

        13  JUST, YOU KNOW, PUT LESS PAPER IN THERE.

        14           I MEAN, THIS WAS NOT A LONG DISCUSSION.  THIS WAS

        15  VERY, VERY OBVIOUS.

        16  Q.   WAS THERE A COPYRIGHT FOR IE 1?

        17  A.   IF THERE WAS ONE, I DIDN'T SEE IT.

        18  Q.   DID YOU LOOK TO SEE WHETHER THERE WAS A COPYRIGHT FOR

        19  IE 1?

        20  A.   NO.

        21  Q.   WAS THERE A COPYRIGHT FOR IE 2?

        22  A.   I DON'T KNOW.

        23  Q.   WAS THERE A COPYRIGHT FOR IE 3?

        24  A.   I DON'T KNOW.

        25  Q.   WAS THERE A COPYRIGHT FOR IE 4?
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         1  A.   I DON'T KNOW.

         2           BEING THE OEM GUY, AS I THINK I TESTIFIED A

         3  COUPLE OF TIMES, THIS WAS ALWAYS PART OF WINDOWS 95 OR 98,

         4  SO I NEVER THOUGHT ABOUT SEPARATE COPYRIGHTS FOR BROWSERS.

         5  Q.   WELL, THE IE 4 WAS SUBMITTED TO OEM'S ON A SEPARATE

         6  CD.

         7           DO YOU REMEMBER TESTIFYING TO THAT?

         8  A.   I BELIEVE THAT'S TRUE.

         9  Q.   WAS THERE A COPYRIGHT FOR THAT?

        10  A.   I PERSONALLY DO NOT KNOW THIS.

        11  Q.   DOES MICROSOFT NORMALLY SEND CD'S CONTAINING SOFTWARE

        12  CODE TO OEM'S WITHOUT BEING ASSURED THAT WHAT IS BEING

        13  SENT IS COPYRIGHTED?

        14  A.   I BELIEVE OUR BUSINESS PRACTICE NORMALLY IS TO

        15  COPYRIGHT EVERY SINGLE PIECE OF SOFTWARE, BUT AS I SAID, I

        16  DON'T KNOW THIS BECAUSE I HAVEN'T SEEN THE APPLICATION.

        17  Q.   OKAY.  LET ME TURN TO ANOTHER SUBJECT THAT YOU TALK

        18  ABOUT IN YOUR DIRECT TESTIMONY, AND THAT IS THE REFERRAL

        19  SERVER PROGRAM.

        20  A.   YES.

        21  Q.   AND YOU TESTIFIED THAT THE OBJECTIVE OF THE REFERRAL

        22  SERVER PROGRAM WAS TO PROMOTE USAGE OF THE INTERNET IN

        23  GENERAL.

        24  A.   COULD YOU HELP ME ON THE PAGE, PLEASE?

        25  Q.   SURE.  PAGE 24, PARAGRAPH 60.
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         1  A.   THIS IS ON 998?

         2  Q.   RIGHT.

         3  A.   YOU MEAN MY TESTIMONY NOW; RIGHT?

         4  Q.   YOUR DIRECT TESTIMONY.

         5  A.   I THOUGHT YOU WERE ON THE DEPOSITION.  I ALWAYS GET

         6  THIS WRONG IN MY HEAD.

         7           YES.

         8  Q.   AND YOU TALK ABOUT THE OBJECTIVE OF THE REFERRAL

         9  SERVER PROGRAM WAS PRIMARILY TO PROMOTE THE USAGE OF THE

        10  INTERNET IN GENERAL, AND THEN YOU GO ON AFTER A

        11  PARENTHETICAL, "AND TO PROMOTE MICROSOFT'S TECHNOLOGIES

        12  FOR USE WITH THE INTERNET IN PARTICULAR."

        13           DO YOU SEE THAT?

        14  A.   THAT IS TRUE.

        15  Q.   NOW, WAS THE PURPOSE OF THE INTERNET REFERRAL SERVER

        16  INTENDED TO BE ONE MECHANISM THROUGH WHICH MICROSOFT WOULD

        17  INDUCE ISP'S TO LICENSE AND DISTRIBUTE INTERNET EXPLORER?

        18  A.   I DON'T UNDERSTAND THAT QUESTION IN THAT CONTEXT.

        19  Q.   LET ME ASK YOU TO LOOK AT THE DEPOSITION OF

        20  MR. CAMERON MYHRVOLD, DATED APRIL 24, 1998.

        21           (DOCUMENT HANDED TO THE WITNESS.)

        22  Q.   AND I'M INTERESTED IN PAGE 65, LINES 9 THROUGH 14,

        23  (READING):

        24                "QUESTION:  AND SO, WAS THE INCLUSION OF THE

        25           INTERNET CONNECTION WIZARD AND THE INTERNET
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         1           REFERRAL SERVER ONE MECHANISM THROUGH WHICH

         2           MICROSOFT WOULD INDUCE ISP'S TO LICENSE AND

         3           DISTRIBUTE INTERNET EXPLORER?

         4                ANSWER:  YES."

         5           DO YOU SEE THAT?

         6  A.   YEAH.

         7  Q.   DO YOU AGREE WITH THAT, SIR?

         8  A.   BASICALLY, YES.  I MEAN, WE HAD SOME AGREEMENTS WITH

         9  ISP'S SO THAT THE END USER COULD FIND THAT ISP ON THAT

        10  REFERRAL SERVER.

        11           AND I BELIEVE WE PROMOTED THAT BY PUTTING IT INTO

        12  THE WINDOWS BOX.

        13  Q.   ALL RIGHT.  LET ME TURN NEXT TO THE ISSUE OF WHAT

        14  PRESSURE, IF ANY, MICROSOFT PUTS ON OEM'S.

        15           AND IS IT THE CASE THAT FROM TIME TO TIME

        16  MICROSOFT HAS TOLD OEM'S THAT THEY DISAPPROVE, OR THAT

        17  MICROSOFT DISAPPROVES, OF WHAT THE OEM IS DOING WITH

        18  NETSCAPE?

        19  A.   I DON'T THINK SO BECAUSE THE OEM'S TRULY HAVE THEIR

        20  OWN--DETERMINE THEIR OWN DESTINY, AND I HAVE A HARD TIME

        21  TO BELIEVE THAT WE CAN REALLY TELL THEM WHAT TO DO,

        22  BECAUSE AT THE END OF THE DAY, THEY SELL WHAT THE CUSTOMER

        23  DEMANDS.

        24  Q.   WELL, SIR, IF THE CUSTOMER WANTED TO HAVE ONLY ONE

        25  BROWSER AND WANTED THAT BROWSER TO BE NETSCAPE, THE OEM
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         1  COULDN'T PROVIDE THAT, COULD THEY?

         2  A.   THE ANSWER IS "NO, BUT."  IT TAKES TWO MOUSE CLICKS

         3  AS AN END USER TO REMOVE THAT BROWSER FROM THE MACHINE, SO

         4  WHAT HARM WAS DONE TO THAT END USER?

         5  Q.   WELL, SIR, LET'S TALK ABOUT THAT.

         6           ONE OF THE PIECES OF HARM THAT GATEWAY ARGUED TO

         7  YOU WAS THAT JUST INCLUDING ALL THAT CODE HAD A SYSTEM

         8  DEGRADATION; CORRECT?

         9  A.   THAT WAS GATEWAY'S OPINION, YOU ARE CORRECT.

        10  Q.   AND GATEWAY AND HEWLETT-PACKARD AND PACKARD-BELL

        11  ARGUED TO YOU THAT INCLUDING THE ICON WAS CONFUSING TO A

        12  LOT OF END USERS, EVEN THOUGH THEY MIGHT HAVE THE ABILITY,

        13  IF THEY UNDERSTOOD HOW TO DO IT, TO REMOVE THE ICON;

        14  CORRECT, SIR?

        15  A.   THAT IS CORRECT.

        16  Q.   AND IN ADDITION TO THAT, WITH RESPECT TO WINDOWS 98,

        17  THE WAY THAT WINDOWS 98 IS DESIGNED, EVEN IF YOU MAKE

        18  NETSCAPE NAVIGATOR THE DEFAULT BROWSER, INTERNET EXPLORER

        19  WILL STILL LAUNCH IN CERTAIN CIRCUMSTANCES; CORRECT, SIR?

        20  A.   I BELIEVE THAT IS CORRECT, BECAUSE IT IS OUR PRODUCT.

        21  Q.   YOU MEAN IT IS YOUR PRODUCT, AND YOU'VE DESIGNED IT

        22  TO LAUNCH EVEN IF THE USER MAKES THE OTHER PRODUCT THE

        23  DEFAULT BROWSER?  IS THAT WHAT YOU'RE SAYING?

        24  A.   I BELIEVE THAT IN CASE IT GETS LAUNCHED, IT GETS

        25  LAUNCHED FOR GOOD REASON, AND THE REASON IS THAT THE
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         1  SYSTEM HAS TO BE STABLE TO A CERTAIN DEGREE.

         2           AND I'M NOT HUNDRED PERCENT SURE HOW THEY CONNECT

         3  THE TWO BROWSERS, BUT I BELIEVE THEY HAD SOME VALID

         4  REASONS WHY THEY DON'T LAUNCH ANOTHER BROWSER.  THERE ARE

         5  TECHNICAL REASONS FOR THAT.  THAT'S WHAT I WAS TOLD.

         6  Q.   WHO TOLD YOU THAT?

         7  A.   I ACTUALLY THINK THE PERSON WHO TOLD ME THAT ONE DAY

         8  WAS BRAD CHASE BECAUSE I HAD THAT SAME DISCUSSION WITH

         9  HIM.

        10  Q.   AND DID MR. CHASE TELL YOU WHAT THOSE TECHNICAL

        11  REASONS WERE WHY INTERNET EXPLORER HAD TO BE LAUNCHED

        12  UNDER SOME CIRCUMSTANCES, EVEN THOUGH THE USER MADE

        13  NAVIGATOR THE DEFAULT BROWSER?

        14  A.   I BELIEVE HE DID, BUT I DON'T RECALL IT.  I DON'T

        15  RECALL THE DETAILS.

        16  Q.   DO YOU RECALL WHAT THE REASONS WERE EVEN IF YOU DON'T

        17  RECALL THE DETAILS?

        18  A.   NO.

        19  Q.   OKAY.  LET ME ASK YOU TO LOOK AT GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT

        20  298.

        21           (DOCUMENT HANDED TO THE WITNESS.)

        22  Q.   THIS IS A COMPAQ DOCUMENT THAT'S ALREADY IN EVIDENCE.

        23           AND I WANT TO FOCUS YOUR ATTENTION ON THE E-MAIL

        24  FROM LORI DAY TO MIKE HEIL AND OTHERS, DATED MAY 8, 1996.

        25  AND IN PARTICULAR, THE SECOND PARAGRAPH.
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         1           DO YOU SEE THAT, SIR?

         2  A.   I SEE THAT.

         3  Q.   AND THE SECOND SENTENCE SAYS, "MICROSOFT WAS UPSET

         4  WITH OUR ANNOUNCEMENT," WHICH IS AN ANNOUNCEMENT OF A

         5  PARTNERSHIP WITH NETSCAPE, "AND OUR INTERNAL USE OF

         6  NETSCAPE, AND INITIATED A NUMBER OF ACTIVITIES WITH DEC

         7  AND HP, REDUCING THEIR EMPHASIS ON THE COMPAQ

         8  PARTNERSHIP."

         9           DO YOU SEE THAT, SIR?

        10  A.   I SEE THAT.

        11  Q.   DID THAT HAPPEN?

        12  A.   I DON'T THINK SO.

        13  Q.   DO YOU HAVE ANY IDEA WHY COMPAQ WOULD MAKE THIS UP IF

        14  IT DIDN'T HAPPEN?

        15  A.   I DON'T KNOW WHERE THAT PERSON GOT THE INFORMATION

        16  FROM, THAT WE WERE WORKING WITH DEC AND HP.  I DON'T

        17  THINK--SO, I JUST DON'T KNOW.  I DO NOT BELIEVE THAT THIS

        18  HAPPENED.

        19  Q.   THE NEXT SENTENCE SAYS, "IN ORDER TO GET REALIGNED,

        20  WE HAVE BEEN NEGOTIATING A LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING ON HOW

        21  WE WOULD LIKE TO DO BUSINESS TOGETHER GOING FORWARD THAT

        22  EXTENDS THE FRONTLINE PARTNERSHIP TO THE

        23  INTERNET/INTRANET."

        24           DO YOU SEE THAT?

        25  A.   I SEE THAT.
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         1  Q.   DID THAT HAPPEN, SIR?

         2  A.   I BELIEVE WE EXTENDED THE FRONTLINE PARTNERSHIP WITH

         3  SOME INTERNET AND INTRANET TOPICS.

         4  Q.   SO THAT THIS HAPPENED, BUT WHAT YOU'RE SAYING IS THE

         5  PREVIOUS THING DID NOT HAPPEN, THE PREVIOUS SENTENCE?  IS

         6  THAT YOUR TESTIMONY?

         7  A.   I PERSONALLY BELIEVE THAT--I DON'T KNOW.  I MEAN,

         8  IT'S--THIS IS FROM '96, SO IT'S THREE YEARS AGO.

         9           I DO NOT RECALL THAT WE EVER DID ANYTHING SPECIAL

        10  WITH DEC OR HP WHERE THE--TO REDUCE, YOU KNOW, THE COMPAQ

        11  RELATIONSHIP.  I'M NOT AWARE OF THAT.

        12  Q.   ALL RIGHT.  LET'S GO DOWN TO THE BOTTOM WHERE IT

        13  TALKS ABOUT COMPAQ AGREEING TO SHIP NEW VERSIONS OF

        14  INTERNET EXPLORER AS THE DEFAULT BROWSER ON ALL DESKTOP

        15  AND SERVER PLATFORMS WITHIN EIGHT WEEKS FROM RELEASE.

        16           DO YOU SEE THAT?

        17  A.   NO, I DON'T SEE IT.

        18           OH, IT'S FROM THE BOTTOM.

        19           YES.

        20  Q.   DID THAT HAPPEN, SIR?

        21  A.   I CAN'T TELL FROM THIS MEMO THAT THAT HAPPENED.  I

        22  JUST CAN'T TELL.

        23  Q.   FROM YOUR MEMORY, DID THAT HAPPEN?

        24  A.   I MEAN, THIS IS AN INTERNAL COMPAQ MEMO.

        25           NO, I DON'T RECALL THAT.  I DON'T.

                                                           73

         1           THIS CONTRACT WAS BASICALLY--WHAT I UNDERSTAND

         2  WAS THAT THIS WAS SOMETHING WHICH THE PRODUCT GROUP

         3  NEGOTIATED WITH COMPAQ, AND I THINK THE OEM DIVISION

         4  INVOLVEMENT IN THIS WAS RELATIVELY SMALL.

         5  Q.   AND SO YOU JUST DON'T KNOW WHETHER IT HAPPENED OR

         6  NOT; IS THAT WHAT YOU'RE SAYING?

         7  A.   I WOULD HAVE TO--IF THERE WAS EVER AN MOU OR CONTRACT

         8  SIGNED, THEN YOU CAN REFRESH MY MEMORY.  I WOULD LIKE TO

         9  HELP YOU ON THIS, NO PROBLEM, BUT I JUST DON'T KNOW HOW

        10  I'M SITTING HERE.

        11  Q.   IF YOU DON'T KNOW, I WILL GO ON TO ANOTHER DOCUMENT.

        12  GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT 308.

        13           (DOCUMENT HANDED TO THE WITNESS.)

        14  Q.   THIS IS AN EXHIBIT THAT IS ALREADY IN EVIDENCE.  THIS

        15  IS AN INTERNAL GATEWAY DOCUMENT DATED FEBRUARY 28, 1997,

        16  AND IT REFERS TO A MICROSOFT REPRESENTATIVE BY THE NAME OF

        17  BRIAN FUJIWARA.

        18           DO YOU SEE THAT?

        19  A.   I SEE THAT.

        20  Q.   DO YOU KNOW WHO HE IS?

        21  A.   HE WORKED IN THE OEM DIVISION AT THAT POINT IN TIME.

        22  Q.   AND WAS HE GATEWAY'S ACCOUNT REPRESENTATIVE IN

        23  FEBRUARY OF 1997?

        24  A.   I THINK HE WAS.

        25  Q.   AND IT INDICATES THAT BRIAN TOLD GATEWAY THAT
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         1  GATEWAY'S USE OF NETSCAPE WAS A HUGE ISSUE WITH MICROSOFT.

         2           DO YOU SEE THAT?

         3  A.   I SEE THAT.

         4  Q.   AND THAT BRIAN SAID THAT MICROSOFT WANTS TO GET BACK

         5  TO DOING CO-MARKETING AND SALES CAMPAIGNS WITH GATEWAY,

         6  "BUT THEY WON'T IF THEY SEE GATEWAY AS ANYTHING BUT

         7  PRO-MICROSOFT."

         8           DO YOU SEE THAT?

         9  A.   I SEE THAT.

        10  Q.   DID THAT HAPPEN, SIR?

        11  A.   I PERSONALLY DON'T BELIEVE THAT, BUT IT'S HER

        12  OPINION.  IT'S HER SUMMARY OF A CONVERSATION.

        13  Q.   WHAT I'M ASKING IS WHETHER, ACCORDING TO YOUR

        14  KNOWLEDGE, THAT CONVERSATION HAPPENED.

        15  A.   BETWEEN THESE TWO OR WHERE?

        16  Q.   EITHER BETWEEN THESE TWO OR BETWEEN, IF YOU KNOW,

        17  ANOTHER MICROSOFT REPRESENTATIVE AND ANOTHER OEM

        18  REPRESENTATIVE.

        19  A.   I HAVE NO KNOWLEDGE ABOUT THAT.

        20  Q.   THE NEXT PARAGRAPH SAYS THAT BRIAN SAID, QUOTE, DELL

        21  TURNED NETSCAPE DOWN BECAUSE THEY DID NOT WANT TO HURT

        22  THEIR RELATIONSHIP WITH MICROSOFT.  THEREFORE, DELL GETS

        23  SPECIAL THINGS BECAUSE OF IT, CLOSED QUOTE.

        24           DO YOU SEE THAT?

        25  A.   I SEE THAT.
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         1  Q.   WAS THAT TRUE, SIR?

         2  A.   THAT IS NOT MY UNDERSTANDING.  I BELIEVE DELL--WE

         3  HELPED DELL SUBSTANTIALLY AT A CERTAIN POINT IN TIME, AND

         4  I'M NOT SURE IF THIS WAS THIS TIME, TO DEVELOP THE

         5  INTERNET SITE BASED ON MICROSOFT TECHNOLOGY.  AND I ONLY

         6  KNOW THAT WHAT I UNDERSTAND IS THAT DELL AGREED TO THAT ON

         7  ITS MERITS BECAUSE, YOU KNOW, THEY GOT A LOT OF HELP FROM

         8  US, THEY GOT A VERY GOOD PRODUCT, AND THEY WERE VERY EAGER

         9  TO, YOU KNOW, COMPETE IN THIS MARKET, SO I--I DON'T KNOW

        10  WHAT HE'S TALKING ABOUT.

        11           AND MAYBE HE MEANS WITH SPECIAL THINGS THEY GOT

        12  SOME CONSULTING BUSINESS FROM US.  THAT'S THE BEST I CAN

        13  COME UP WITH AT THIS POINT IN TIME.

        14  Q.   THE NEXT LINE SAYS THAT BRIAN IS GOING TO MEET WITH

        15  YOU IN LESS THAN A WEEK.

        16           DO YOU SEE THAT?

        17  A.   YEAH, I SEE THAT.

        18  Q.   DID HE MEET WITH YOU ON OR ABOUT MARCH 4, 1996, TO

        19  DISCUSS GATEWAY?

        20  A.   IF HE SAID HE MET WITH ME--IF THIS SAYS THAT SOMEBODY

        21  MET WITH ME, IT PROBABLY IS THE CASE.

        22  Q.   DO YOU HAVE ANY RECOLLECTION OF THAT MEETING?

        23  A.   I DON'T HAVE A SPECIFIC RECOLLECTION OF THAT MEETING,

        24  BUT I BELIEVE WHAT HAPPENED THERE WAS THAT OUR FIELD

        25  ORGANIZATION--AND THIS IS NOT THE OEM DIVISION, BUT THE
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         1  FIELD ORGANIZATION--WAS TRYING TO SELL NETSCAPE--SORRY,

         2  WAS TRYING TO SELL DELL ON OUR TECHNOLOGY.  AND I BELIEVE

         3  THEY--AND I BELIEVE THAT EVEN STEVE BALLMER, I BELIEVE,

         4  CALLED TED WAAITT TO MAKE A SALES CALL TO CONVINCE HIM TO

         5  GO AHEAD WITH US.  AND AT THE END OF THE DAY, THEY DIDN'T.

         6  Q.   AND AS A RESULT--AND I DON'T WANT TO GO INTO THE

         7  DETAILS OUTSIDE OF A SEALED SESSION, BUT AS A RESULT,

         8  MICROSOFT CHARGES GATEWAY A SIGNIFICANTLY HIGHER PRICE FOR

         9  THE WINDOWS OPERATING SYSTEM THAN MICROSOFT CHARGES DELL;

        10  CORRECT, SIR?

        11  A.   THAT IS NOT CORRECT.  I THINK THAT'S RIDICULOUS.

        12  Q.   IT'S NOT TRUE?

        13  A.   IT IS NOT TRUE.

        14  Q.   MR. KEMPIN DO YOU KNOW HOW MUCH MONEY--

        15  A.   CAN I FINISH THIS?

        16           THE COURT:  A LOT OF THIS INFORMATION IS SPECIFIC

        17  INFORMATION THAT IS UNDER SEAL.

        18           THE WITNESS:  I UNDERSTAND THAT.

        19           THE COURT:  IF IT'S GOING TO COME OUT NOW, I'M

        20  GOING TO HAVE TO CLOSE THE COURTROOM AND TAKE IT IN

        21  CAMERA.  I WANT TO CAUTION YOU.  IF SOME OF THIS

        22  INFORMATION IS GOING TO BE DISCLOSED, THEN WE BETTER TO

        23  TAKE IT IN CAMERA.

        24           THE WITNESS:  YOU SAID BECAUSE OF.

        25  BY MR. BOIES:
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         1  Q.   LET ME SEE IF I UNDERSTAND WHAT YOU'RE SAYING, SIR.

         2  A.   OR AM I WRONG ON THIS?  AND IF YOU WANT TO READ IT

         3  BACK--

         4  Q.   LET ME SEE IF I GOT YOUR TESTIMONY, OKAY?

         5           YOU'RE AGREEING THAT DELL GETS A SIGNIFICANTLY

         6  LOWER PRICE FOR WINDOWS THAN GATEWAY; CORRECT?

         7  A.   DELL HAS A LOWER PRICE THAN GATEWAY, THAT IS CORRECT.

         8  Q.   WHAT YOU'RE SAYING IS THAT THAT DOESN'T HAVE ANYTHING

         9  TO DO WITH WHAT'S HERE IN THE MEMO; IS THAT YOUR

        10  TESTIMONY?

        11  A.   THAT IS EXACTLY RIGHT.

        12  Q.   WELL, WHAT DOES IT HAVE TO DO WITH, THEN, SIR?

        13           MR. HOLLEY:  YOUR HONOR, I DON'T KNOW HOW

        14  MR. KEMPIN CAN BE EXPECTED TO ANSWER THAT QUESTION WITHOUT

        15  GOING INTO THE DETAILS OF MICROSOFT'S RELATIONSHIP WITH

        16  TWO OF ITS VERY IMPORTANT CUSTOMERS, AND I PREFER WE DO

        17  THIS OUT OF THE HEARING OF THE PUBLIC.  IT'S CONSISTENT

        18  WITH OTHER TESTIMONY ON SIMILAR TOPICS.

        19           THE COURT:  WHAT'S YOUR PLEASURE?

        20           MR. BOIES:  I WILL RESERVE THIS UNTIL THE END,

        21  AND I WILL TAKE ALL OF THE SEALED THINGS AT THE END.

        22           THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.

        23  BY MR. BOIES:

        24  Q.   WITHOUT GOING INTO THE DETAILS, IS IT ALSO THE CASE

        25  THAT COMPAQ IS CHARGED A LOWER PRICE THAN GATEWAY?
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         1  A.   I BELIEVE THAT'S CORRECT.

         2  Q.   LET ME ASK YOU TO LOOK AT GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT 257.

         3           (DOCUMENT HANDED TO THE WITNESS.)

         4  Q.   THIS IS ALREADY IN EVIDENCE.  THIS IS AN E-MAIL FROM

         5  YOU, OR E-MAIL TO YOU FROM BILL GATES, DATED OCTOBER 30,

         6  1997, RE: IBM; CORRECT, SIR?

         7  A.   THAT IS CORRECT.

         8  Q.   AND IN THE THIRD PARAGRAPH, MR. GATES WRITES,

         9  "OVERALL, WE WILL NEVER HAVE THE SAME RELATIONSHIP WITH

        10  IBM THAT WE HAVE WITH COMPAQ, DELL AND EVEN HP BECAUSE OF

        11  THEIR SOFTWARE AMBITIONS."

        12           AND THEIR SOFTWARE AMBITIONS IN THAT SENTENCE

        13  REFERS TO IBM'S SOFTWARE AMBITIONS; CORRECT, SIR?

        14  A.   I BELIEVE SO.

        15  Q.   AND MR. GATES GOES ON TO SAY, "I CAN DEAL WITH THIS

        16  JUST FINE IF IBM WASN'T SUCH RABID JAVA BACKERS."

        17           DO YOU SEE THAT?

        18  A.   I SEE THAT.

        19  Q.   AND HE GOES ON TO SAY, "WE ARE TOLD THEY HAVE FUNDED

        20  NETSCAPE TO DO THE BROWSER WITHOUT E-MAIL, AND THEY ARE

        21  PROPOSING TO FUND NETSCAPE TO GIVE THEIR BROWSER AWAY."

        22           DO YOU UNDERSTAND MR. GATES TO BE SAYING THAT

        23  IBM'S WORK WITH JAVA AND NETSCAPE IS SOMETHING THAT

        24  AFFECTS IBM'S RELATIONSHIP WITH MICROSOFT?

        25  A.   I UNDERSTAND THAT.
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         1  Q.   THE LAST PARAGRAPH SAYS--AND THIS, I TAKE IT, IS AN

         2  INSTRUCTION TO YOU--"YOU SHOULD NOT POSITION IT AS,

         3  `OVERNIGHT WE WILL TREAT YOU LIKE COMPAQ.'  WE SHOULD

         4  POSITION IT AS, `LET'S DO SOME THINGS THAT ARE GOOD FOR

         5  BOTH OF US BUT WHICH REQUIRE SOME OF THE RHETORIC TO BE

         6  LOWERED ON BOTH SIDES,' ON THEIR SIDE I MEAN JAVA AND NC."

         7           DID YOU TAKE THAT AS MR. GATES'S INSTRUCTIONS TO

         8  YOU, SIR?

         9  A.   LET ME FIND THIS HERE BECAUSE I HAVE PROBLEMS

        10  FOLLOWING IT.  I HAVE A HEARD TIME SEEING THIS ON THE

        11  SCREEN, SO I NEED TO DO THIS ON PAPER HERE, UNFORTUNATELY.

        12  Q.   THE SENTENCES THAT I JUST READ ARE THE LAST THREE

        13  SENTENCES OF THE--

        14  A.   OF THE FIRST PAGE.

        15  Q.   OF THE E-MAIL.

        16  A.   I WAS ONE BACK.

        17           (WITNESS REVIEWS DOCUMENT.)

        18  A.   THE WAY I LOOK AT THIS IS THAT HE'S SAYING HE'S

        19  WILLING TO IMPROVE THE RELATIONSHIPS--THE RELATIONSHIP.

        20  HE MENTIONS THAT IN THE FIRST SENTENCE, AND THAT THIS WILL

        21  TAKE TIME.

        22           AND NATURALLY, WE HAVE TO LOOK AT SUN AS A

        23  COMPETITOR IN THIS CONTEXT BECAUSE IT MENTIONS JAVA AND

        24  NC, WHICH STANDS FOR THE NETCOMPUTER.

        25           I MEAN, BASICALLY, WHAT HE'S DOING HERE IS
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         1  HELPING SUN TO PROMOTE A PARADIGM SHIFT IN THE COMPUTING

         2  INDUSTRY, BECAUSE SUN, FOR A LONG TIME, HAS SAID THE

         3  NETWORK IS THE COMPUTER, AND AT THE END OF THE DAY THAT

         4  MEANS YOU DON'T HAVE TO BUY A PC ANYMORE BECAUSE YOU DON'T

         5  HAVE TO HAVE ANY LOCAL PROCESSING POWER.

         6           AND HE SAYS THERE IS A STRATEGIC DISAGREEMENT

         7  BETWEEN IBM AND US ON THAT SUBJECT, AND I HAVE A HARD TIME

         8  TO, BASICALLY, DO A LOT OF PUBLIC THINGS WITH IBM IF THEY

         9  DO NOT AGREE ON MY STRATEGIES--OF MY STRATEGIES.  THAT'S

        10  HOW I WOULD SEE THAT.  BUT HE'S STILL WILLING TO IMPROVE

        11  THE RELATIONSHIP.

        12  Q.   MY QUESTION TO YOU, SIR, IS IF WHAT YOU UNDERSTOOD

        13  MR. GATES'S WORDS HERE TO BE INSTRUCTIONS TO YOU.

        14  A.   I THINK HE VOICED AN OPINION ABOUT THIS, AND I THINK

        15  I TRIED TO EXPRESS HOW I UNDERSTAND THAT JUST NOW.

        16  Q.   LET ME BEGIN WITH, WHEN MR. GATES EXPRESSES AN

        17  OPINION AS TO HOW YOU SHOULD TREAT AN OEM, DO YOU TREAT

        18  THAT AS AN INSTRUCTION TO YOU?

        19  A.   I BELIEVE THAT IS TRUE IN GENERAL.  BUT IN THIS

        20  PARTICULAR CASE, YOU HAVE TO LOOK AT THIS FROM A DIFFERENT

        21  ANGLE.

        22           THE IBM PC COMPANY WORKS EXTREMELY WELL WITHIN

        23  THE OEM DIVISION, BUT THE IBM COMPANY ITSELF HAS TOTALLY

        24  DIFFERENT INTEREST.  AND THE IBM COMPANY HAS VOICED OVER

        25  TIME THAT THEY WOULD LIKE TO SEE A PARADIGM SHIFT IN
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         1  COMPUTING.  AND I THINK HE'S TALKING HERE ABOUT IBM THE

         2  MOTHER SHIP AND NOT THE PC COMPANY, NECESSARILY.

         3  Q.   WELL, SIR, DO YOU DEAL WITH IBM, THE MOTHER SHIP, AS

         4  YOU PUT IT, OR DO YOU DEAL WITH IBM, THE OEM COMPANY?

         5  A.   I DEAL WITH THE OEM COMPANY.

         6  Q.   AND THIS IS A MEMO FROM MR. GATES TO YOU; CORRECT,

         7  SIR?

         8  A.   THAT IS CORRECT.

         9  Q.   AND HE IS PURPORTING TO GIVE YOU ADVICE OR

        10  INSTRUCTIONS AS TO HOW YOU SHOULD DEAL WITH IBM, THE OEM

        11  COMPANY; CORRECT, SIR?

        12  A.   IN THIS PARTICULAR CASE, THIS WAS NOT TRUE.  I

        13  REMEMBER VERY WELL HOW THIS DEVELOPED BECAUSE I HAD MET

        14  WITH THE HEAD OF THE PC COMPANY TO DISCUSS A WAY THAT WE

        15  COULD BASICALLY COME CLOSER WITH THE IBM COMPANY.  AND I

        16  TALK NOW ABOUT THE MOTHER SHIP.  AND I THINK THERE IS A

        17  REPORT ATTACHED TO THIS, AND WE WERE TRYING TO FIGURE OUT

        18  HOW TO DO THIS.  AND I UNDERSTOOD THIS AND MR. GATES

        19  TALKING ABOUT THE BIG IBM MOTHER SHIP COMPANY.

        20           SO, SOMETIMES I HAVE A DUAL FUNCTION BECAUSE I

        21  JUST KNOW SOME PEOPLE WHO MAY BE ABLE TO INFLUENCE OTHER

        22  DIVISIONS IN THAT COMPANY, AND THAT WAS EXACTLY WHAT THIS

        23  WAS ALL ABOUT.

        24  Q.   THE PEOPLE THAT YOU KNOW ARE PEOPLE WITHIN THE OEM

        25  SIDE OF IBM; IS THAT FAIR?
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         1  A.   THAT IS CORRECT.

         2  Q.   AND WHEN YOU SAY YOU KNOW PEOPLE THAT MAY BE ABLE TO

         3  AFFECT OTHER PEOPLE, WHAT YOU'RE SAYING IS THAT YOU MAY BE

         4  ABLE TO GET THE PEOPLE ON THE OEM SIDE TO AFFECT PEOPLE ON

         5  THE OTHER PARTS OF IBM; CORRECT?

         6  A.   THAT IS CORRECT.

         7           AND, IN PARTICULAR, WITH MR. PARMEZANO, WHO

         8  BASICALLY CAME FROM THAT GLOBAL NETWORK COMPANY, WHICH WAS

         9  THEIR, TO A DEGREE, THEIR CONSULTING ARM OR SOMETHING LIKE

        10  THAT, HE WAS VERY INFLUENTIAL INSIDE IBM, AND I KNEW THAT.

        11  AND SO, WE JUST STARTED TALKING ABOUT MORE GENERIC TOPICS

        12  THAN JUST OEM TOPICS.

        13  Q.   THESE WERE CONVERSATIONS THAT YOU HAD WITH

        14  MR. PARMEZANO?

        15  A.   THAT IS CORRECT, AND WITH MR. JACKMAN FROM IBM.  AND

        16  BENGT AKERLIND, ONE OF MY DIRECT REPORTS, WAS PART OF

        17  THAT.

        18  Q.   AND IN THOSE CONVERSATIONS, WERE YOU TRYING TO GET

        19  IBM TO REDUCE ITS PUBLIC SUPPORT OF JAVA?

        20  A.   I BELIEVE I WAS TRYING TO FIGURE OUT WHY THEY WERE

        21  WORKING CLOSELY WITH SUN, BECAUSE SUN AT THE SAME TIME WAS

        22  A COMPETITOR OF THEIRS, AND BY ENDORSING SUN, I THOUGHT

        23  THEY MIGHT GET HURT.

        24           AND, ACTUALLY, I THINK MR. PARMEZANO ACTUALLY

        25  CONFIRMED THAT IN THAT MEETING.
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         1  Q.   IS IT YOUR TESTIMONY THAT YOU WERE SIMPLY TRYING TO

         2  HELP IBM OUT AND MAKE SURE THEY DIDN'T GET HURT, SORT OF

         3  AN ELEEMOSYNARY INSTINCT?

         4  A.   WHEN I READ THAT MEMO, I THINK WE WERE ASKING A LOT

         5  OF QUESTIONS HOW WE COULD WORK TOGETHER, AND THAT'S

         6  BASICALLY THE RESULT OF THAT CONFERENCE WHICH WE HAD.  AND

         7  SO, I DO TRY TO HELP IBM, THE PC COMPANY, OUT ALL THE

         8  TIME.

         9  Q.   REGARDLESS OF WHETHER YOU TRIED TO HELP THE IBM PC

        10  COMPANY OUT ALL THE TIME, IN THIS PARTICULAR INSTANCE

        11  MR. GATES IS TRYING TO GET IBM TO REDUCE ITS PUBLIC

        12  SUPPORT OF JAVA.

        13           DO YOU AGREE WITH THAT, SIR?

        14  A.   I BELIEVE HE'S TELLING ME--

        15  Q.   COULD I GET A YES, NO, OR I DON'T KNOW?

        16  A.   THE ANSWER IS NO, NOT REALLY.  I THINK HE'S TRYING TO

        17  TELL ME, "MAKE SURE THEY REALLY UNDERSTAND WHAT YOU'RE

        18  DOING THERE AND IN WHAT, BASICALLY, CAMP THEY ARE.  ARE

        19  THEY REALLY FIRMLY BEHIND THE PC?  AND DO THEY CONSIDER

        20  THIS AS A MAINSTREAM FOR THEIR COMPUTING?  OR ARE THEY

        21  NOT?"

        22           I THINK THAT'S WHAT HE'S TELLING ME IN THAT MEMO.

        23  Q.   WELL, HE'S SAYING THAT IF THEY'RE REALLY IN THE JAVA

        24  CAMP, THAT'S GOING TO AFFECT THEIR RELATIONSHIP WITH

        25  MICROSOFT; CORRECT, SIR?
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         1  A.   LET'S MAKE VERY CLEAR WHAT IBM WE ARE TALKING ABOUT:

         2  THE MOTHER SHIP OR THE PC COMPANY.

         3  Q.   MR. KEMPIN, ALL I'M TRYING TO DO IS GET YOUR

         4  TESTIMONY, AND--

         5  A.   I'M TRYING TO UNDERSTAND YOUR QUESTION.  IF IT WAS

         6  THE PC COMPANY OR THE MOTHER SHIP.

         7  Q.   EITHER ONE, SIR.  EITHER OR BOTH.  IF YOU'RE TELLING

         8  ME THAT YOU DON'T THINK THAT'S WHAT MR. GATES WAS SAYING,

         9  THEN ALL I CAN DO IS GET THAT ANSWER ON THE RECORD, FOR

        10  WHATEVER USE IT WILL LATER BE.  BUT I'M ENTITLED TO KNOW

        11  WHETHER YOU UNDERSTOOD THIS TO MEAN THAT MR. GATES WAS

        12  SAYING THAT IF IBM CONTINUED ITS RABID SUPPORT OF JAVA,

        13  THAT WOULD AFFECT IBM'S RELATIONSHIP WITH MICROSOFT.

        14  A.   I BELIEVE THAT YOU ARE CORRECT IN SAYING THAT HE

        15  DOESN'T LIKE IBM TO SUPPORT JAVA PUBLICLY THAT MUCH,

        16  BECAUSE HE BELIEVES THAT IT HURTS THEM AS WELL.

        17  Q.   HE ALSO BELIEVES IT HURTS MICROSOFT; CORRECT, SIR?

        18  A.   IT COULD HURT MICROSOFT.  THERE ARE (SIC) SOME

        19  SPECULATION HERE.

        20  Q.   JUST SO--AGAIN, ALL I WANT TO DO IS GET YOUR

        21  TESTIMONY TO THIS COURT UNDER OATH.

        22           IS IT YOUR TESTIMONY THAT YOU INTERPRETED THIS

        23  MEMO AS MR. GATES BEING PRIMARILY CONCERNED WITH IBM'S

        24  WELFARE OR MICROSOFT'S WELFARE?

        25  A.   WITH BOTH.

                                                           85

         1  Q.   AND DID YOU UNDERSTAND MR. GATES TO BE SAYING THAT

         2  FROM MICROSOFT'S STANDPOINT, IF IBM CONTINUED TO BE SUCH A

         3  RABID JAVA SUPPORTER, IBM'S RELATIONSHIP WITH MICROSOFT

         4  WOULD SUFFER?  IS THAT WHAT YOU UNDERSTOOD?

         5  A.   WHAT I UNDERSTOOD IS THAT IF IBM PROMOTES A DIFFERENT

         6  COMPUTING PARADIGM, WHICH IS EXPRESSED BY JAVA, THAT WE

         7  WOULD HAVE A HARD TIME TO SUPPORT IT IN PUBLIC.

         8  Q.   OKAY.  NOW LET ME ASK YOU TO LOOK AT GOVERNMENT

         9  EXHIBIT 652.  THIS IS ALSO ADMITTED UNDER SEAL.  THE ONLY

        10  PAGE THAT I'M GOING TO USE, OR THE ONLY PAGES ARE PAGES 15

        11  AND 16, THE SECOND AND THIRD PARAGRAPH AT PAGE 15, AND THE

        12  CARRYOVER PARAGRAPH ON PAGE 16, NONE OF WHICH, I BELIEVE,

        13  RAISE ISSUES THAT REQUIRE THIS PORTION TO BE UNDER SEAL.

        14  A.   I HAVE THE DOCUMENT.

        15  Q.   AND DO YOU HAVE PAGE 15?

        16  A.   I HAVE PAGE 15.

        17  Q.   AND THESE ARE ANSWERS, SWORN ANSWERS, BY MR. JAMES

        18  VON HOLLE OF GATEWAY.

        19           THE MIDDLE PARAGRAPH ON PAGE 15 SAYS, "WITH

        20  REGARD TO COMMUNICATIONS REGARDING GATEWAY'S OFFER OR

        21  INSTALLATION OF THE PRODUCTS OF SOFTWARE MANUFACTURERS

        22  OTHER THAN MICROSOFT, AFTER GATEWAY BEGAN OFFERING

        23  NETSCAPE NAVIGATOR, A COMPETITIVE BROWSER PRODUCT, WITH

        24  ITS SYSTEMS, MICROSOFT REPRESENTATIVES REPEATEDLY TOLD

        25  GATEWAY REPRESENTATIVES THAT MICROSOFT CONSIDERS GATEWAY'S
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         1  OFFER OF THE COMPETITIVE PRODUCT A, QUOTE, SERIOUS, CLOSED

         2  QUOTE, ISSUE THAT COULD, QUOTE, AFFECT OUR WORKING

         3  RELATIONSHIP, CLOSED QUOTE."

         4           DID THAT HAPPEN, SIR?

         5  A.   IN ORDER TO ANSWER THAT, IS THERE ANY CHANCE I SEE A

         6  DATE ON THIS?  I CANNOT FIND THIS.

         7           THE COURT:  SEPTEMBER 19TH, 1997.

         8           THE WITNESS:  OH, I SEE.

         9           THE COURT:  WHERE WERE YOU, MR. BOIES?  WHAT PAGE

        10  ARE YOU ON?

        11           MR. BOIES:  PAGE 15, THE MIDDLE PARAGRAPH.

        12           THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.

        13           MR. BOIES:  WHERE IT SAYS, "WITH REGARD TO

        14  COMMUNICATIONS REGARDING GATEWAY'S OFFER OR INSTALLATION

        15  OF THE PRODUCTS OF SOFTWARE MANUFACTURERS OTHER THAN

        16  MICROSOFT, AFTER GATEWAY BEGAN OFFERING NETSCAPE

        17  NAVIGATOR, A COMPETITIVE BROWSER PRODUCT, WITH ITS

        18  SYSTEMS, MICROSOFT REPRESENTATIVES REPEATEDLY TOLD GATEWAY

        19  REPRESENTATIVES THAT MICROSOFT CONSIDERS GATEWAY'S OFFER

        20  OF THE COMPETITIVE PRODUCT A SERIOUS ISSUE THAT COULD

        21  AFFECT OUR WORKING RELATIONSHIP."

        22           THE WITNESS:  I'M SURPRISED BY THAT STATEMENT

        23  BECAUSE I DO NOT EVEN KNOW--I JUST HAVE NO KNOWLEDGE IF

        24  THEY EVEN OFFERED A--OFFERED NAVIGATOR, SO AT THAT POINT

        25  IN TIME.  THIS IS BACK IN '97, SO I'M TOTALLY CONFUSED BY
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         1  THAT STATEMENT.

         2  BY MR. BOIES:

         3  Q.   OKAY.  LET'S GO TO THE NEXT PARAGRAPH.

         4           "IN ADDITION, WHEN GATEWAY ELECTED TO USE

         5  NETSCAPE NAVIGATOR AS THE BROWSER ON INTRANET, MICROSOFT

         6  REPRESENTATIVES AGAIN STRENUOUSLY OBJECTED."

         7           MR. HOLLEY:  CAN I ONCE AGAIN ASK MR. BOIES TO

         8  READ THE SENTENCE AS WRITTEN.  IT SAYS "ON ITS INTRANET."

         9           MR. BOIES:  I APOLOGIZE IF I MISSED "ITS."

        10           THE COURT:  CORRECTION NOTED.

        11           THE WITNESS:  CAN YOU HELP ME EXACTLY WHERE YOU

        12  ARE?

        13  BY MR. BOIES:

        14  Q.   SURE.  WE WERE DEALING FIRST WITH A MIDDLE PARAGRAPH.

        15  A.   YEAH.

        16  Q.   AND THEN WE WENT TO THE VERY NEXT PARAGRAPH.

        17  A.   OH, OKAY.  I SEE THAT'S WHAT I MISSED.

        18  Q.   AND IT SAYS--I WILL TRY TO READ IT RIGHT THIS

        19  TIME--"IN ADDITION, WHEN GATEWAY ELECTED TO USE NETSCAPE

        20  NAVIGATOR AS THE BROWSER ON ITS INTRANET, MICROSOFT'S

        21  REPRESENTATIVES AGAIN STRENUOUSLY OBJECTED."

        22           DID THAT HAPPEN, SIR?

        23  A.   I DON'T KNOW, BECAUSE--AND THE REASON I MIGHT NOT

        24  KNOW THIS IS BECAUSE I REALLY DO NOT HAVE TOO MANY THINGS

        25  TO DO WITH WHAT NETSCAPE USES INTERNALLY.  I MEAN, I DO
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         1  SELL THEM THE PRODUCTS FOR THE PC MARKET TO SELL IT TO

         2  THEIR CUSTOMERS.  BUT ON THE "ANTENNA" SIDE, I HARDLY GET

         3  INVOLVED.  SO, I DON'T KNOW WHY THIS IS IN THERE.

         4  Q.   LET ME GO TO THE NEXT SENTENCE, WHICH SAYS, "IN FACT,

         5  MICROSOFT REPRESENTATIVES STRONGLY IMPLIED TO TROY MILLER

         6  OF GATEWAY THAT MICROSOFT WOULD COMPENSATE GATEWAY FOR

         7  ITS, QUOTE, INVESTMENT WITH NETSCAPE, CLOSED QUOTE, IF

         8  GATEWAY WOULD REMOVE THE NETSCAPE BROWSER AND REPLACE IT

         9  WITH IE."

        10           DID THAT HAPPEN, SIR?

        11  A.   I HAVE NO KNOWLEDGE ABOUT IT.

        12           AGAIN, IF THIS IS ABOUT THE INTERNAL USAGE, I

        13  JUST DON'T KNOW.

        14  Q.   THE NEXT SENTENCE SAYS, "IN ADDITION, MICROSOFT

        15  REPRESENTATIVES THREATENED THAT MICROSOFT WOULD AUDIT

        16  GATEWAY'S INTERNAL USE OF MICROSOFT PRODUCTS, AND,

        17  CONTRARY TO A VERBAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN EXECUTIVES OF THE

        18  COMPANIES, MICROSOFT WOULD CHARGE GATEWAY A ROYALTY FOR

        19  EACH COPY OF A MICROSOFT PRODUCT USED AT A GATEWAY

        20  FACILITY."

        21           DID THAT HAPPEN, SIR?

        22  A.   I CANNOT RECALL THAT, AND I'M VERY SURPRISED THAT

        23  THAT IS IN THERE.

        24  Q.   LET ME GO TO THE NEXT PARAGRAPH, THE VERY NEXT

        25  PARAGRAPH.
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         1  A.   SAME PAGE OR 16?

         2  Q.   SAME PAGE AT THE BOTTOM OF THE PAGE.

         3  A.   OKAY.

         4  Q.   WHERE IT SAYS, "MICROSOFT REPRESENTATIVES RECENTLY

         5  HAVE INSISTED THAT IN ORDER TO BE ABLE TO OFFER WINDOWS NT

         6  SERVER WITH ITS NEW NS SERVER PRODUCTS, GATEWAY MUST

         7  DESIGNATE NEW SERVER MODELS AND OFFER ONLY WINDOWS NT

         8  SERVER WITH THOSE MODELS.  AS A RESULT, GATEWAY'S LICENSE

         9  OF WINDOWS NT SERVER IS CONTINGENT ON GATEWAY'S AGREEMENT

        10  NOT TO OFFER COMPETITIVE PRODUCTS ON SOME OF ITS SERVER

        11  MODELS."

        12           DID THAT HAPPEN, SIR?

        13  A.   I BELIEVE ACTUALLY IT'S IMPOSSIBLE BECAUSE 90 PERCENT

        14  OR 95 PERCENT OF OUR TIME WE LICENSE SERVERS IN

        15  THE--SERVER SOFTWARE IN THE OEM GROUP ON WHAT I CALL A

        16  PER-COPY BASIS.  SO, WHEN YOU CALL GATEWAY UP AND WANT A

        17  SERVER, THEY PUT NT SERVER ON IT OR NOVELL OR WHATEVER THE

        18  CUSTOMER WANTS.

        19  Q.   WHAT YOU'RE SAYING IS YOU'RE DENYING THAT THIS

        20  HAPPENED?

        21  A.   I HAVE NO KNOWLEDGE OF THAT.

        22           AND IT'S HIGHLY UNLIKELY BECAUSE THE WAY THE

        23  SERVER LICENSE CONTRACTS ARE WRITTEN.

        24           THE COURT:  HOW ABOUT ALL THE OTHER THINGS?  ARE

        25  YOU DENYING THAT THEY HAPPENED, TOO?
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         1           THE WITNESS:  I'M SAYING--I'M SAYING THAT WHEN IT

         2  COMES TO INTERNAL USAGE, I HAVE NO--I HAVE NO INFLUENCE

         3  OVER GATEWAY BECAUSE I DO NOT--

         4           THE COURT:  NO, BUT THIS IS GATEWAY'S VERSION OF

         5  DEALINGS THAT IT HAD WITH PEOPLE AT MICROSOFT WHOM, I

         6  WOULD ASSUME, WERE YOUR SUBORDINATES.

         7           THE WITNESS:  THAT'S, YOUR HONOR, EXACTLY

         8  WHAT--WHAT I'M TRYING TO EXPLAIN, THAT THE OEM DIVISION

         9  DOESN'T SELL TO GATEWAY PRODUCT FOR INTERNAL USE, FOR

        10  SERVERS OR FOR ANYTHING LIKE THAT, SO THAT'S WHY I'M AT A

        11  LITTLE BIT OF A LOSS.

        12           MY PEOPLE SAID TO GATEWAY WHAT TO PUT ON THEIR

        13  PC'S TO SELL TO THEIR END CUSTOMERS, AND THEY MIGHT HAPPEN

        14  TO USE SOME OF THESE MACHINES INTERNALLY, BUT OTHERWISE, I

        15  HAVE NO KNOWLEDGE OF THIS.

        16           THE COURT:  WELL, LET ME GO BACK TO PAGE 15 HERE.

        17           THE WITNESS:  YEAH.

        18           THE COURT:  AND THE PARAGRAPH THAT BEGINS WITH

        19  "REGARD TO COMMUNICATIONS."  GATEWAY IS RESPONDING TO AN

        20  OFFICIAL INQUIRY FROM THE DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE HERE AND

        21  SAYS THAT MS REPRESENTATIVES, MICROSOFT REPRESENTATIVES,

        22  REPEATEDLY TOLD GATEWAY REPRESENTATIVES THAT MICROSOFT

        23  CONSIDERS GATEWAY'S OFFER OF THE COMPETITIVE PRODUCT A

        24  SERIOUS ISSUE THAT COULD AFFECT OUR WORKING RELATIONSHIP."

        25           ARE YOU SAYING THAT THAT NEVER HAPPENED, NO
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         1  MICROSOFT REPRESENTATIVE, TO YOUR KNOWLEDGE, EVER SAID

         2  SUCH A THING TO GATEWAY?

         3           THE WITNESS:  I MEAN, I HAVE NO KNOWLEDGE OF

         4  THAT.

         5           AND I BELIEVE ACTUALLY, IF THAT WOULD HAVE

         6  HAPPENED, I PROBABLY WOULD HAVE GOTTEN A PHONE CALL.  NOW,

         7  I DON'T THINK I GOT A PHONE CALL ON THAT ISSUE.

         8           THE COURT:  YOU WOULD HAVE GOTTEN A PHONE CALL

         9  FROM WHOM?

        10           THE WITNESS:  PROBABLY FROM TED WAAITT HIMSELF.

        11           THE COURT:  AT GATEWAY?

        12           THE WITNESS:  HE'S THE CEO OF GATEWAY.  I HAVE

        13  KNOWN HIM FOR A LONG TIME.  OR SOME OTHER PEOPLE WHO WERE

        14  IN CHARGE OF THIS.

        15           SO, IF WE WOULD DO SOMETHING LIKE THAT, THEY

        16  WOULD TELL US.

        17           AND, YOUR HONOR, I TELL YOU, WHEN THINGS OF NOT

        18  THIS NATURE BUT OTHER THINGS HAPPEN WHERE WE TREAT

        19  CUSTOMERS IN ANY SHAPE OR FORM UNFAIRLY, I MAKE SURE THAT

        20  THE PERSON WHO IS ON THE JOB KNOWS THAT THAT'S NOT THE

        21  RIGHT THING TO DO.

        22           THE COURT:  SO, IN EFFECT, YOU'RE SAYING THAT YOU

        23  DON'T THINK THESE THINGS EVER HAPPENED, BECAUSE HAD THEY

        24  HAPPENED, YOU WOULD HAVE BEEN CONTACTED BY YOUR

        25  COUNTERPART AT GATEWAY; IS THAT CORRECT?
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         1           THE WITNESS:  THAT IS MY LOGIC ON THIS.

         2           THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.

         3  BY MR. BOIES:

         4  Q.   MR. KEMPIN, LET ME TURN TO THE START PAGE.

         5  A.   WHAT PAGE?

         6  Q.   START PAGE.

         7           DO YOU KNOW WHAT THE START PAGE IS?

         8  A.   IN THE BEGINNING?

         9  Q.   NO.

        10           IS THERE A START PAGE FOR INTERNET EXPLORER?

        11  A.   I DON'T KNOW WHAT YOU MEAN.  START PAGE?

        12  Q.   START PAGE.

        13  A.   SO, WHEN YOU--WHEN YOU WANT TO GET ONTO THE INTERNET?

        14  Q.   MAYBE THE BEST WAY TO HANDLE THIS IS TO GIVE YOU

        15  GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT 1201.

        16  A.   OKAY.

        17  Q.   WHICH IS ALREADY IN EVIDENCE.

        18           (DOCUMENT HANDED TO THE WITNESS.)

        19  Q.   THIS IS A MICROSOFT DOCUMENT HEADED "OPK REQUIREMENTS

        20  AND RESTRICTIONS, APPENDIX A."

        21           DO YOU SEE THAT?

        22  A.   I SEE THAT.

        23  Q.   THIS IS A DOCUMENT THAT YOU'RE FAMILIAR WITH;

        24  CORRECT, SIR?

        25  A.   I BELIEVE SO.
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         1  Q.   LET ME ASK YOU TO TURN FIRST TO PAGE THAT IN THE

         2  BOTTOM RIGHT-HAND CORNER BEARS THE DOCUMENT PRODUCTION

         3  NUMBER ENDING IN 2863.

         4  A.   I'M ON THERE.

         5  Q.   NOW, DO YOU SEE RIGHT ABOVE THE HEADING

         6  "HARDWARE-RELATED RESTRICTIONS" A REFERENCE TO THE DEFAULT

         7  START PAGE OR SEARCH PAGE FOR INTERNET EXPLORER?

         8  A.   I DO.

         9  Q.   DOES THAT REFRESH YOUR RECOLLECTION AS TO WHAT THE

        10  START PAGE FOR INTERNET EXPLORER IS?

        11  A.   I BELIEVE THAT'S A SEARCH PAGE YOU SEE WHEN YOU GET

        12  ON THE INTERNET.

        13  Q.   WHEN YOU WHAT?

        14  A.   WHEN YOU GO ON THE INTERNET, THAT'S THE FIRST PAGE

        15  YOU SEE.

        16  Q.   AND--

        17  A.   I MEAN, THAT'S WHAT I WAS TRYING TO EXPLAIN BEFORE.

        18  Q.   THAT IS SOMETHING THAT OEM'S ARE NOT PERMITTED TO

        19  SUPERSEDE IN CONNECTION WITH MICROSOFT'S INSTALLER WIZARD;

        20  CORRECT?

        21  A.   THAT IS CORRECT.

        22  Q.   NOW, IS THIS REQUIREMENT ENFORCED?

        23  A.   WHAT I UNDERSTAND, IT IS NOT ENFORCED.

        24  Q.   HOW DOES MICROSOFT DECIDE WHICH OF ITS OPK

        25  REQUIREMENTS TO ENFORCE AND WHICH ONES NOT TO ENFORCE?
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         1  A.   I BELIEVE WE BASICALLY LOOK AT THAT IN A PRAGMATIC

         2  WAY IN THIS PARTICULAR SITUATION BECAUSE THERE IS NO

         3  GENERAL RULE FOR THAT.

         4  Q.   LET ME SEE IF I UNDERSTAND WHAT YOU'RE SAYING.

         5           THE OPK REQUIREMENTS PROHIBIT OEM'S FROM

         6  REPLACING, REMOVING OR SUPERSEDING THE INTERNET EXPLORER

         7  START PAGE IN CONNECTION WITH THE INSTALLER WIZARD;

         8  CORRECT?

         9  A.   THAT'S CORRECT.

        10  Q.   AND WHAT YOU'RE SAYING IS CERTAIN OEM'S DO THIS AND

        11  ARE PERMITTED TO DO IT BY MICROSOFT AT THE PRESENT TIME

        12  WITHOUT ANY FORMAL MODIFICATION OF EITHER THE OPK

        13  REQUIREMENTS OR THE OEM'S' LICENSE AGREEMENT; CORRECT?

        14  A.   THAT COULD BE TRUE.

        15  Q.   DO YOU BELIEVE IT TO BE TRUE?

        16  A.   LET'S ASSUME IT'S TRUE.

        17  Q.   WELL, I JUST DON'T WANT TO ASSUME IT.  I WANT TO KNOW

        18  WHAT YOUR BEST TESTIMONY IS.

        19  A.   MY BEST TESTIMONY IS IT MIGHT BE TRUE OF SOME OEM'S.

        20  I KNOW THAT ONE OEM, IN PARTICULAR, HAS ASKED ME IF THEY

        21  COULD DO THAT, AND I SAID YES.

        22  Q.   WHAT OEM WAS THAT?

        23  A.   I THINK THAT WAS DELL.

        24  Q.   LET ME TURN TO ANOTHER SUBJECT.

        25           DO YOU ATTEMPT TO KEEP TRACK OF WHAT MICROSOFT'S
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         1  SHARE IS OF PC OPERATING SYSTEMS?

         2  A.   DO I UNDERSTAND YOU CORRECTLY WHEN I SAY INTEL PC

         3  OPERATING SYSTEM?  INTEL PC OPERATING SYSTEM?

         4  Q.   OKAY, INTEL.

         5  A.   OPERATING SYSTEMS FOR INTEL PC.

         6  Q.   LET'S ASK THAT QUESTION.

         7  A.   I BELIEVE I DO.

         8  Q.   AND WHAT SHARE OF INTEL PC OPERATING SYSTEMS IS

         9  ACCOUNTED FOR BY ALL OPERATING SYSTEM SUPPLIERS OTHER THAN

        10  MICROSOFT?

        11  A.   IT'S A HARD ONE TO ANSWER.

        12           I COULD TELL YOU THE NUMBER OF LICENSES I GET

        13  PAID FOR.  I MEAN, THE SHARE OF THE NUMBER OF LICENSES OF

        14  THE TOTAL INTEL PC MARKET I GET PAID FOR.  BUT BECAUSE

        15  THERE'S PIRACY, I DON'T KNOW WHAT THE OTHER PEOPLE REALLY

        16  DO WITH THEIR MACHINES, IF THEY JUST PIRATE OUR STUFF OR

        17  PIRATE OTHER PEOPLE'S AS WELL.

        18           YOU SEE WHAT I'M TRYING TO DO?

        19  Q.   I THINK SO.

        20  A.   I HAVE A GRAY AREA THERE.

        21  Q.   OKAY.  LET'S LEAVE PIRACY ASIDE FOR A MOMENT, AND

        22  LET'S JUST FOCUS ON PEOPLE WHO MANUFACTURE OPERATING

        23  SYSTEMS THEMSELVES AND SUPPLY OPERATING SYSTEMS AND DON'T

        24  PIRATE SOMEBODY ELSE'S, OKAY?

        25  A.   THAT SEEMS TO ME--FOR ME MAKING NO SENSE BECAUSE YOU
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         1  WANT TO DEFINITELY SAY IT'S THE TOTAL MARKET, AND

         2  THAT'S--I MEAN, THE TOTAL--WHAT IS IT IN THE TOTAL

         3  INTEL--INTEL PC SEGMENT OR SOMETHING LIKE THAT, OR INTEL

         4  PC BUSINESS SEGMENT, YEAH.

         5  Q.   SO, ANY PERCENTAGE THAT YOU CALCULATED WOULD BE A

         6  PERCENTAGE THAT INCLUDED PIRACY; IS THAT WHAT YOU'RE

         7  SAYING?

         8  A.   YEAH.  THAT IS ONE I CAN DO RIGHT AWAY, PROBABLY.

         9  Q.   NOW, LET ME ASK YOU TO LOOK AT GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT

        10  401, WHICH YOU SHOULD STILL HAVE UP THERE.  THIS IS YOUR

        11  1996 FISCAL YEAR MID-YEAR REVIEW.

        12           AND I'M NOW GOING TO GO TO THE PAGE THAT ENDS IN

        13  DOCUMENT PRODUCTION NUMBER 022.

        14  A.   DO YOU HAVE THAT DOCUMENT, OR DO I HAVE THAT HERE?

        15  Q.   I THINK YOU HAVE IT--

        16  A.   I THINK I CAN SEE THIS ONE.  IT'S OKAY.

        17  Q.   THIS IS PAGE 022, AND THERE IS A HEADING THERE, "X86

        18  OS ANALYSIS FOR FISCAL YEAR 1996."

        19           DO YOU SEE THAT?

        20  A.   I SEE THAT.

        21  Q.   AND IT SAYS, "ALL OTHER COMPETITIVE LICENSES"--AND

        22  WHAT DOES THAT SIGN MEAN?

        23  A.   SMALLER THAN.

        24  Q.   --"IS SMALLER THAN FIVE PERCENT"; CORRECT?

        25  A.   THAT'S CORRECT.
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         1  Q.   AND WAS THAT YOUR BEST INFORMATION AS OF JANUARY OF

         2  1996?

         3  A.   THAT WAS PROBABLY MY BEST ESTIMATE, YES.

         4  Q.   OKAY.  NOW, YOU WERE RESPONSIBLE FOR SETTING THE

         5  LICENSE FEES FOR WINDOWS 98, WERE YOU, SIR?

         6  A.   THAT IS CORRECT.

         7  Q.   AND AM I CORRECT THAT IN SETTING THE LICENSE FEES FOR

         8  WINDOWS 98 WHAT YOU PRIMARILY LOOKED AT WAS THE LICENSE

         9  FEES FOR WINDOWS 95?

        10  A.   THAT IS CORRECT, BECAUSE WHEN YOU DO A

        11  FEATURE-TO-FEATURE COMPARISON, THAT'S THE CLOSEST YOU CAN

        12  GET TO.  AND AT THE SAME TIME, WINDOWS 95 WAS IN THE SAME

        13  COMPETITIVE ENVIRONMENT.

        14  Q.   LET ME ASK YOU TO LOOK AT YOUR DEPOSITION FROM

        15  OCTOBER 1, 1998.

        16           (DOCUMENT HANDED TO THE WITNESS.)

        17  Q.   AND I'M INTERESTED IN THE QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS THAT

        18  BEGIN AT LINE 22 OF PAGE 21 OF YOUR DEPOSITION.

        19           AND THIS IS A QUESTION ABOUT WHAT FACTORS YOU

        20  CONSIDERED IN DECIDING WHAT THE LEVEL OF WINDOWS 98

        21  ROYALTIES IN THE OEM CHANNEL SHOULD BE; IS THAT CORRECT,

        22  SIR?

        23  A.   YES.

        24  Q.   AND THEN THERE IS AT LINE 25 A QUESTION, (READING):

        25                "QUESTION:  IN CONSIDERING WHAT THE LEVEL OF
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         1           THE ROYALTIES SHOULD BE, DID YOU CONSIDER WHAT

         2           ROYALTY OTHER VENDORS THAN MICROSOFT CHARGED FOR

         3           THEIR OPERATING SYSTEMS?

         4                ANSWER:  WE LOOK AT SOME OF THEM ONCE IN A

         5           WHILE, BUT IN THIS PARTICULAR CASE WE REALLY

         6           COMPARED IT WITH WINDOWS 95."

         7           AND AM I CORRECT THAT WHEN YOU REFER TO "IN THIS

         8  PARTICULAR CASE," YOU'RE REFERRING TO SETTING THE ROYALTY

         9  RATE FOR WINDOWS 98, SIR?

        10  A.   THAT IS CORRECT.

        11  Q.   YOU THEN CONTINUE, (READING):

        12                "QUESTION:  WHY IS THAT?

        13                ANSWER:  IT WAS THE CLOSEST IN VALUE YOU

        14           COULD GET TO.

        15                QUESTION:  DID YOU CONSIDER COMPETITION MORE

        16           GENERALLY IN CONSIDERING WHAT LEVEL ROYALTIES FOR

        17           WINDOWS 98 SHOULD BE?

        18                ANSWER:  AGAIN, I SAID I LOOK AT THE

        19           COMPETITORS, BUT WINDOWS 95 OR 98, WHEN IT COMES

        20           TO VALUE PROPOSITIONS, IT JUST DOESN'T COME CLOSE

        21           TO ANYTHING ELSE.  MEANING, I BELIEVE, THE

        22           COMPETITORS ARE BASICALLY SELLING INFERIOR-TYPE

        23           PRODUCTS.

        24                QUESTION:  WHAT IS THE BASIS FOR YOUR BELIEF

        25           TO THAT EFFECT?
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         1                ANSWER:  IT'S THE SIMPLE FACT THAT THE

         2           NUMBER OF APPLICATIONS, PERIPHERAL DEVICES,

         3           SUPPORT ON THAT PLATFORM, BASICALLY, IS SO HUGE

         4           THAT THE BENEFITS FOR BUYING INTO THAT PLATFORM

         5           IS HUGE."

         6           WAS THAT ACCURATE TESTIMONY AT THE TIME YOU GAVE

         7  IT, SIR?

         8  A.   IT WAS, YES.

         9  Q.   AND IS IT ACCURATE TODAY?

        10  A.   YES, IT IS, BUT AT THE SAME TIME--I MEAN, WINDOWS 95

        11  LIVES IN A COMPETITIVE ENVIRONMENT, AND I DON'T THINK I

        12  DENIED THAT.  AND THERE MAY BE MORE TO A COMPETITIVE

        13  ENVIRONMENT THAN JUST OPERATING SYSTEM VENDORS WHO ARE

        14  TRYING TO SELL OPERATING SYSTEMS.

        15           SO, WITH THAT IN MIND, I WOULD SAY THE TESTIMONY

        16  IS CORRECT.

        17  Q.   OKAY.  LET ME CONTINUE ON PAGE 23, LINE 7, (READING):

        18                "QUESTION:  DID YOU HAVE ANY UNDERSTANDING

        19           AS TO WHY THE NUMBER OF APPLICATIONS WRITTEN TO

        20           THE WINDOWS 32 PLATFORM IS GREATER THAN FOR OTHER

        21           OPERATING SYSTEMS?

        22                ANSWER:  BECAUSE MOST INDEPENDENT SOFTWARE

        23           VENDORS AND COMPONENT VENDORS BASICALLY DESIGN

        24           FOR THIS PLATFORM OR WRITE SOFTWARE FOR THAT

        25           PLATFORM.
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         1                QUESTION:  DO YOU HAVE ANY UNDERSTANDING WHY

         2           THEY DO THAT?

         3                ANSWER:  BECAUSE IT'S THE HIGHEST VOLUME

         4           PLATFORM THERE IS.

         5                QUESTION:  WHAT DO YOU MEAN, `THE HIGHEST

         6           VOLUME PLATFORM'?

         7                ANSWER:  IN ABSOLUTE TERMS, IT SELLS THE

         8           HIGHEST NUMBER OF PC'S IN THE INDUSTRY.

         9                QUESTION:  AND HOW DOES THIS RELATE BACK TO

        10           WHAT ISV'S WRITE THEIR APPLICATIONS TO?

        11                ANSWER:  I MEAN, IF THEY HAVE--IF THE NUMBER

        12           OF PC'S SOLD IN THAT PLATFORM IS WAY HIGHER THAN

        13           ANY OTHER PLATFORM, THEY EXPECT TO SELL MORE.  I

        14           MEAN, THEY SEE A CORRELATION THERE."

        15           WAS THAT ACCURATE TESTIMONY AT THE TIME YOU GAVE

        16  IT?

        17  A.   THAT IS ACCURATE.

        18  Q.   AND IS IT ACCURATE TODAY?

        19  A.   PROBABLY IS.

        20           AT THE SAME TIME, I BELIEVE THAT ISV'S, EVEN IF

        21  THEY HAVE A HIGH CORRELATION IN VOLUME, DO NOT SEE THIS

        22  ALWAYS AS THE MOST PROFITABLE STRATEGY FOR THEM.  I MEAN,

        23  I HAVE A BUNCH OF FRIENDS IN GERMANY THAT DO VERY WELL ON

        24  NICHE MARKETS, AND THEY WOULD NOT WRITE FOR WINDOWS.  SO,

        25  THIS IS NOT TRUE FOR EVERYBODY.
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         1  Q.   CERTAINLY, THERE ARE SOME SOFTWARE MANUFACTURERS THAT

         2  DO WRITE FOR NICHE MARKETS--I DON'T THINK ANYBODY IS

         3  DENYING THAT--BUT THAT'S NOT WHAT YOU WERE TALKING ABOUT

         4  HERE; CORRECT, SIR?

         5  A.   NO.

         6  Q.   OKAY.

         7           THE COURT:  I THINK WE WILL TAKE A BRIEF RECESS,

         8  AND THEN WE WILL RECONVENE AT ABOUT TEN MINUTES.

         9           MR. BOIES:  THANK YOU, YOUR HONOR.

        10           (BRIEF RECESS.)

        11  BY MR. BOIES:

        12  Q.   MR. KEMPIN, I WOULD LIKE TO GO BACK TO GOVERNMENT

        13  EXHIBIT 652, WHICH IS THE GATEWAY SWORN ANSWERS TO

        14  INTERROGATORIES THAT WE LOOKED AT BEFORE.  AND I WOULD

        15  LIKE TO DO THIS JUST FOR CONTEXT PURPOSES.

        16           AND YOU RECALL IN THE MIDDLE PARAGRAPH YOU WERE

        17  ASKED ABOUT WHETHER MICROSOFT REPRESENTATIVES REPEATEDLY

        18  TOLD GATEWAY REPRESENTATIVES THAT MICROSOFT CONSIDERED

        19  GATEWAY'S OFFER OF THE NETSCAPE NAVIGATOR A SERIOUS ISSUE

        20  THAT COULD, QUOTE, AFFECT OUR WORKING RELATIONSHIP, CLOSED

        21  QUOTE?  DO YOU REMEMBER THAT?

        22  A.   I SEE THAT.

        23  Q.   AND YOU SAID YOU DIDN'T THINK THAT HAPPENED BECAUSE

        24  YOU THOUGHT IT WOULD HAVE BEEN BROUGHT TO YOUR ATTENTION.

        25           DO YOU RECALL THAT?
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         1  A.   I THINK I DID.

         2  Q.   NOW I WOULD LIKE TO ASK YOU TO LOOK AT ANOTHER

         3  DOCUMENT, WHICH IS GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT 230.

         4           (DOCUMENT HAPPENED HANDED TO THE WITNESS.)

         5  Q.   THIS IS A COMPAQ DOCUMENT THAT IS ALREADY IN

         6  EVIDENCE.

         7           AND I'M GOING TO ASK YOU TO--FIRST, YOU KNOW WHO

         8  JAN CLAESSON IS?

         9  A.   YEAH, I DO.

        10  Q.   AND HE WAS MICROSOFT'S OEM GROUP MANAGER FROM THE

        11  COMPAQ, OR FOR THE COMPAQ ACCOUNT; IS THAT CORRECT?

        12  A.   YEAH, FOR SOME TIME.  YEAH, OKAY, THIS IS--THIS GOES

        13  BACK TO JANUARY OF 1990--WHAT IS IT?  FIVE?  IS THAT

        14  CORRECT?

        15  Q.   YES, JANUARY 1995.

        16  A.   OKAY.

        17  Q.   AND NOW I WOULD LIKE YOU TO TURN TO PAGE FIVE OF THE

        18  EXHIBIT, WHICH IS THE DOCUMENT THAT IS HEADED "WINDOWS 95

        19  AND BUSINESS ISSUES."

        20  A.   UMM-HMM.  I SEE THAT.

        21  Q.   AND DOWN AT THE BOTTOM THERE IS A HEADING THAT SAYS

        22  "JUSTICE DEPARTMENT RULING."

        23           DO YOU SEE THAT?

        24  A.   YES.

        25  Q.   AND COMPAQ REPORTS THAT MR. CLAESSON, QUOTE, SAID
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         1  THAT FEW OEM'S HAD RENEGOTIATED THEIR LICENSES AFTER THE

         2  CONSENT DECREE.  HE SAID MOST COMPANIES ARE STILL PAYING

         3  ON A PROCESSOR BASIS, SOME WITH A FIVE PERCENT EXCLUSION.

         4  MR. CLAESSON INDICATED THAT A COMPAQ REQUEST FOR A

         5  PER-COPY LICENSE WOULD BE VIEWED AS A MAJOR ISSUE AT

         6  MICROSOFT.

         7           DO YOU SEE THAT, SIR?

         8  A.   I SEE THAT.

         9  Q.   DID THAT HAPPEN, SIR?

        10  A.   I--AND AGAIN, THIS IS AROUND FOUR YEARS BACK, SO THE

        11  PERSON DOESN'T WORK FOR ME ANYMORE BECAUSE HE LEFT THE

        12  COMPANY AROUND TWO YEARS AGO, I BELIEVE.

        13           SO, I'M NOT SURE WHAT THE CONTEXT IS HERE.  IF

        14  COMPAQ CAN GET AN EXCLUSION, THEY PROBABLY DON'T EVEN HAVE

        15  TO WORRY ABOUT THE PER-COPY LICENSING.  SO, I--I DON'T

        16  KNOW.  WHOEVER REPORTED THIS MAY NOT TOTALLY UNDERSTAND

        17  WHAT THIS MEANS.

        18           AGAIN, THIS IS A COMPAQ DOCUMENT; IS THAT TRUE?

        19  Q.   YES, IT'S A COMPAQ DOCUMENT REPORTING ON WHAT

        20  MR. CLAESSON IS SUPPOSED TO HAVE SAID.

        21  A.   YES.

        22  Q.   AND IN 1995, YOU UNDERSTOOD THAT MICROSOFT WAS

        23  SUPPOSED TO OFFER OEM'S A PER-COPY LICENSE; CORRECT?

        24  A.   THAT IS CORRECT.

        25  Q.   AND WHAT MR. CLAESSON IS TELLING COMPAQ IS THAT, AT
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         1  LEAST ACCORDING TO THIS, MICROSOFT WILL OFFER A PER-COPY

         2  LICENSE, BUT IF COMPAQ TAKES IT, IT WILL, QUOTE, BE VIEWED

         3  AS A MAJOR ISSUE AT MICROSOFT, CLOSED QUOTE.

         4           DO YOU SEE THAT?

         5  A.   YEAH, I SEE THAT.

         6           I'M A LITTLE BIT SURPRISED ABOUT THE COMMENT

         7  BECAUSE COMPAQ HAD A VALID LICENSE AGREEMENT WITH US.

         8           AND AS I CAN RECALL, COMPAQ HAD AN EXCEPTION OF,

         9  I BELIEVE, THREE PERCENT OF THEIR SYSTEMS, WHICH THEY

        10  COULD SHIP ANY WAY THEY WANTED.

        11           AND SO, I DON'T KNOW WHAT THIS COMMENT MEANS.  I

        12  MEAN, NO PROBLEM, WE COULD HAVE OFFERED THEM A NEW LICENSE

        13  AGREEMENT AND REWRITTEN OUR CONTRACT, BUT I DON'T THINK

        14  COMPAQ WANTED THAT.

        15  Q.   WELL, SIR, YOU WERE UNDER AN OBLIGATION, A COURT

        16  OBLIGATION, TO OFFER A PER-COPY LICENSE.  YOU UNDERSTOOD

        17  THAT; RIGHT?

        18  A.   YEAH, BUT SEE, COMPAQ HAD A VALID LICENSE AGREEMENT.

        19  I DON'T THINK THEY WERE ASKING FOR A NEW LICENSE

        20  AGREEMENT.

        21  Q.   THE LICENSE AGREEMENT WAS ON A PER-PROCESSOR BASIS OR

        22  PER-COPY BASIS.  WHICH ARE YOU TESTIFYING TO?

        23  A.   THEY HAD A LICENSE AGREEMENT, IF I'M NOT MISTAKEN,

        24  UNDER PROCESSOR AGREEMENT.  NOT EVEN SURE IF THAT'S A

        25  HUNDRED PERCENT TRUE.  I PROBABLY HAVE TO SEE THE OLD
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         1  CONTRACT.  I DON'T KNOW THIS OUT OF MY HEAD.

         2  Q.   WELL--

         3  A.   THIS WAS DONE, I BELIEVE, IN 1993.

         4  Q.   YES.

         5  A.   SO, THAT'S SIX YEARS, SO I DON'T KNOW EXACTLY WHAT

         6  WAS IN THERE AND HOW THE SYSTEM DEFINITION WAS MADE.

         7  Q.   LET'S JUST FOCUS ON--

         8  A.   I'M NOT TRYING TO AVOID YOUR QUESTION AT ALL.

         9  Q.   I'M SORRY, SIR?

        10  A.   I'M NOT TRYING TO AVOID YOUR QUESTION.

        11  Q.   WELL, LET ME POSE A QUESTION THAT, PERHAPS, WILL BE

        12  EASIER.

        13           HERE, MR. CLAESSON IS SAYING THAT IF COMPAQ

        14  REQUESTS A PER-COPY LICENSE, THAT WOULD BE VIEWED AS A

        15  MAJOR ISSUE AT MICROSOFT.  THAT'S WHAT HE SAYS IF YOU

        16  BELIEVE WHAT'S WRITTEN HERE; CORRECT?

        17  A.   THAT IS CORRECT.

        18           AND MY BEST INTERPRETATION WOULD BE THAT PROBABLY

        19  YOU WOULD HAVE TO OFFER THEM A NEW CONTRACT, WHICH I DON'T

        20  THINK EITHER COMPANY WANTED.

        21           THE COURT:  YOU'RE SAYING THAT THE CONSENT DECREE

        22  REQUIRED THAT LICENSE FEES, ROYALTIES, HENCEFORTH, BE

        23  BASED ON A PER-COPY BASIS?

        24           MR. BOIES:  THAT PEOPLE BE OFFERED A PER-COPY

        25  LICENSE.
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         1           THE COURT:  OKAY.  AND NOTWITHSTANDING THAT, YOU

         2  READ THIS TO SAY THAT IF COMPAQ TAKES ADVANTAGE OF IT,

         3  IT'S GOING TO BE A BIG DEAL?

         4           MR. BOIES:  YES, EXACTLY, THAT THIS IS A WAY OF

         5  MICROSOFT GETTING OEM'S TO DO THINGS INFORMALLY BY

         6  THREATENING THAT IF THEY DON'T DO IT, IT WILL BE A BIG

         7  ISSUE WITH THE COMPANY.

         8           THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.

         9           THAT'S THE IMPLICATION OF HIS QUESTION.

        10           THE WITNESS:  I BELIEVE THAT YOU'RE NOT CORRECT.

        11  I BELIEVE THE CONSENT DECREE LEFT THREE OPTIONS AS FAR AS

        12  I RECALL IT.  THE FIRST OPTION WAS THAT THE COMPANIES

        13  COULD KEEP THEIR CONTRACT UNTIL THEY EXPIRED.  AND AT THIS

        14  POINT IN TIME, COMPAQ HAD A VALID LICENSE AGREEMENT.  AND

        15  I CANNOT RECALL EXACTLY IF THIS WAS FOR PROCESS OR HOW

        16  MANY EXCEPTIONS WERE IN THERE FOR THE SYSTEM.  I'M PRETTY

        17  SURE IT WASN'T PER COPY, AS I SIT HERE.  OTHERWISE, I

        18  WOULDN'T WRITE THIS DOWN, PROBABLY.

        19           BUT WE WERE--IF COMPAQ WANTED TO ENTER INTO A NEW

        20  LICENSE AGREEMENT, THEY HAD TWO CHOICES.  THEY COULD GO UP

        21  THE SYSTEM, AND THEY COULD GO PER COPY.  AND THEY ACTUALLY

        22  WERE ALLOWED TO CANCEL THEIR EXISTING AGREEMENTS,

        23  BASICALLY, WITH NO NOTICE.

        24           AND, YOU KNOW, THIS WOULD HAVE BEEN VERY EASY FOR

        25  THEM, SO I DON'T KNOW WHAT BIG ISSUE I CAN MAKE OUT OF
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         1  THAT, OR ANYBODY IN MY ORGANIZATION.

         2  BY MR. BOIES:

         3  Q.   LET ME TRY TO CLOSE THIS DOWN, IF I CAN.

         4           COMPAQ CLEARLY HAD A RIGHT TO A PER-COPY LICENSE

         5  IF IT WANTED ONE; CORRECT?

         6  A.   YES.

         7  Q.   OKAY.  AND WHAT MR. CLAESSON SAYS TO COMPAQ IS IF YOU

         8  REQUEST A PER-COPY LICENSE, THAT, QUOTE, WOULD BE VIEWED

         9  AS A MAJOR ISSUE AT MICROSOFT, CLOSED QUOTE.

        10  A.   THAT WAS COMPAQ'S VIEW.  IT'S NOT CLEAR THAT

        11  MR. CLAESSON SAID THAT.

        12  Q.   OKAY.  AND WHAT YOU'RE TESTIFYING TO IS, INSOFAR AS

        13  YOU ARE AWARE, YOU DON'T KNOW--YOU NEVER TALKED ABOUT THIS

        14  WITH MR. CLAESSON, AND YOU DON'T KNOW WHAT HE SAID?

        15  A.   I HAVE NO RECOLLECTION, AND IT'S SIX YEARS AGO, SO I

        16  JUST DON'T KNOW.

        17  Q.   ALL RIGHT.  WHILE WE ARE ON THIS DOCUMENT, LET ME

        18  JUST ASK YOU ABOUT THE OTHER PARAGRAPH THAT I ASKED

        19  MR. ROSE ABOUT WHEN I INQUIRED OF HIM ABOUT THIS DOCUMENT.

        20  THAT'S THE ONE NEXT TO ROYALTY.

        21           DO YOU SEE THAT?

        22  A.   YES.

        23  Q.   AND IT SAYS "JAN," REFERRING TO JAN CLAESSON,

        24  "PROVIDED VERY CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION ABOUT WINDOWS 95

        25  ROYALTIES IN REGARDS TO OTHER OEM'S.  THE BOTTOM-LINE
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         1  MESSAGE WAS THAT COMPAQ STILL HAD A SIGNIFICANT PRICE

         2  ADVANTAGE."

         3           DO YOU SEE THAT, SIR?

         4  A.   YES.

         5  Q.   WAS MR. CLAESSON AUTHORIZED TO PROVIDE THAT

         6  INFORMATION TO COMPAQ?

         7  A.   I DON'T THINK HE WAS.

         8  Q.   DID MR. CLAESSON EVER TELL YOU THAT HE WAS PROVIDING

         9  THAT INFORMATION TO COMPAQ?

        10  A.   THAT'S THE FIRST TIME I SEE THAT.

        11  Q.   DOES MICROSOFT HAVE ANY WRITTEN RULES OR REGULATIONS

        12  OR GUIDELINES AS TO WHAT INFORMATION CONCERNING PRICING

        13  WILL BE MADE AVAILABLE TO OEM'S AND UNDER WHAT

        14  CIRCUMSTANCES?

        15  A.   I CONSIDERED PRICES TO OTHER OEM'S CONFIDENTIAL, AND

        16  I THINK WE EDUCATE THE PEOPLE WHO WORK FOR ME NOT TO TALK

        17  ABOUT THEM WITH OTHER OEM'S.  SO, IF MR.--IF I WOULD HAVE

        18  KNOWN THIS AT THAT POINT IN TIME, I THINK MR. CLAESSON

        19  WOULD HAVE GOTTEN FIRED.

        20  Q.   MY INQUIRY TO YOU, SIR, WAS:  IS THERE ANYTHING IN

        21  WRITING?

        22  A.   I DON'T BELIEVE SO.

        23  Q.   ALL RIGHT.

        24  A.   BUT IT WAS WELL UNDERSTOOD.

        25  Q.   IT WAS WHAT?
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         1  A.   IT WAS WELL UNDERSTOOD.

         2  Q.   LET ME TURN TO WHAT I HOPE WILL BE MY LAST OR

         3  NEXT-TO-LAST SUBJECT.

         4           IN 1996, MICROSOFT UNDERTOOK AN EFFORT TO

         5  DETERMINE WHERE NETSCAPE WAS RECEIVING ITS REVENUES AND

         6  HOW MUCH REVENUES NETSCAPE RECEIVED FROM EACH OF ITS

         7  CHANNELS; CORRECT, SIR?

         8  A.   THAT MIGHT BE TRUE.

         9  Q.   WELL, WHEN YOU SAY IT MIGHT BE TRUE, DO YOU RECALL

        10  THAT IT IS TRUE?

        11  A.   I BELIEVE AT A CERTAIN POINT IN TIME IN THE COMPANY,

        12  WE STARTED REVIEWING OUR COMPETITORS IN A MORE FORMAL WAY.

        13  AND THE NUMBER OF COMPETITORS WE HAVE CHANGES, AS WE ALL

        14  UNDERSTAND, BECAUSE THE INDUSTRY IS CHANGING ALL THE TIME.

        15  SO, IT COULD HAVE BEEN THAT AT THAT POINT IN TIME SOMEBODY

        16  WANTED A COMPETITIVE REVIEW OF NETSCAPE.

        17  Q.   SIR, WAS THAT SOMEBODY MR. GATES?

        18  A.   I DON'T KNOW.  NORMALLY, WHAT I UNDERSTAND IS STEVE

        19  BALLMER IS ACTUALLY MORE INTERESTED ON THIS TYPE OF DATA

        20  THAN MR. GATES.  HE NORMALLY DETERMINES WHAT TYPE OF

        21  COMPETITORS WE REVIEW.

        22  Q.   LET ME BEGIN BY SHOWING YOU GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT 41,

        23  WHICH IS ALREADY IN EVIDENCE.

        24           (DOCUMENT HANDED TO THE WITNESS.)

        25  Q.   THIS IS AN ANALYSIS OF NETSCAPE PREPARED BY MR. GATES
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         1  AND SENT TO A LARGE NUMBER OF PEOPLE INCLUDING YOURSELF;

         2  CORRECT, SIR?

         3  A.   THAT LOOKS LIKE THAT IS CORRECT, YEAH.

         4  Q.   AND LET ME ASK YOU TO TURN FIRST TO THE NEXT-TO-LAST

         5  PAGE THAT BEARS THE PRODUCTION DOCUMENT NUMBER ENDING 955

         6  AT THE BOTTOM.

         7  A.   955, YES.

         8  Q.   AND UNDER THE HEADING "GRAVITY," THE FIRST SENTENCE

         9  SAYS, "GIVEN THE POSITIVE SPIRAL THAT NETSCAPE IS

        10  EXPERIENCING, WHAT COULD POSSIBLY SLOW THEM DOWN?  I LIST

        11  A NUMBER OF ISSUES, SOME OF WHICH WE CAN INFLUENCE."

        12           DO YOU SEE THAT?

        13  A.   YES.

        14  Q.   AND THEN THE THIRD PARAGRAPH AFTER THAT, WHICH IS ON

        15  THE NEXT PAGE--

        16  A.   YES.

        17  Q.   --BEGINS, "AT SOME POINT, FINANCIAL-MINDED ANALYSTS

        18  WILL BEGIN TO CONSIDER HOW MUCH OF A REVENUE STREAM

        19  NETSCAPE WILL BE ABLE TO GENERATE."

        20  A.   I SEE THAT.

        21  Q.   AND THIS WAS SENT AROUND BY MR. GATES ON MAY 19,

        22  1996; CORRECT?

        23  A.   IT LOOKS LIKE IT.

        24  Q.   NOW, LET ME ASK YOU TO LOOK NEXT AT GOVERNMENT

        25  EXHIBIT 343.
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         1           (DOCUMENT HANDED TO THE WITNESS.)

         2  Q.   AND THIS IS ALREADY IN EVIDENCE.

         3           AND IF YOU GO TO THE BOTTOM OF THE SECOND PAGE,

         4  YOU'LL SEE AN E-MAIL DATED AUGUST 27, 1996, FROM MR. NEHRU

         5  TO YOU AND OTHERS WITH RESPECT TO NETSCAPE REVENUE

         6  BREAKDOWN.

         7  A.   YES.

         8  Q.   AND IT SAYS AT THE BEGINNING, "STEVE BALLMER ASKED US

         9  TO COORDINATE A DRILL-DOWN ON NETSCAPE'S BROWSER REVENUES

        10  TO UNDERSTAND WHERE THEY MAKE MONEY AND GET BACK TO HIM IN

        11  TWO WEEKS."

        12           DO YOU SEE THAT?

        13  A.   I SEE THAT.

        14  Q.   AND THEN YOU REPLY NINE MINUTES LATER REFERRING,

        15  MR. KEMPIN, TO MR. AKERLIND; CORRECT?

        16  A.   THAT IS CORRECT.

        17  Q.   AND THEN GOING TO THE FIRST PAGE OF GOVERNMENT

        18  EXHIBIT 343, MR. AKERLIND, ON SEPTEMBER 23, 1996, REPLIES;

        19  CORRECT?

        20  A.   YES.

        21  Q.   AND IN THE SECOND PARAGRAPH--WELL, THE FIRST

        22  PARAGRAPH SAYS, "SORRY THIS TOOK QUITE SOME TIME.  THE

        23  TEAM HAS DONE A GREAT JOB DRILLING DOWN ON THIS.

        24  CUSTOMERS' ISP'S DON'T WANT TO TALK ABOUT IT BECAUSE THEY

        25  ALL KNOW WE ARE OUT TO GET THEM."
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         1           DO YOU SEE THAT?

         2  A.   YEAH.

         3  Q.   AND THEN IT GOES ON TO SAY, "WHAT WE FOUND IS THIS:

         4  NETSCAPE CAN NO LONGER MAKE ANY MONEY ON THE BROWSER IN

         5  THE OEM MARKET."

         6           WERE YOU AWARE OF THAT CONCLUSION BY MR. AKERLIND

         7  IN SEPTEMBER OF 1996?

         8  A.   I DON'T SEE MY NAME ON ANY OF THESE MEMOS, BUT I

         9  STILL WOULDN'T DENY THAT I MIGHT HAVE HEARD THAT.

        10  Q.   DID MICROSOFT, AFTER THIS, MAKE AN EFFORT TO REDUCE

        11  THE AMOUNT OF MONEY THAT NETSCAPE COULD EARN FROM ISP'S

        12  WHO WERE RECEIVING A SHARE OF THE REVENUES THAT OEM'S

        13  RECEIVED FROM THE ISP'S?

        14  A.   THAT'S A LONG QUESTION.

        15  Q.   I WILL BREAK IT DOWN.

        16  A.   COULD YOU BREAK IT DROWN, PLEASE?

        17  Q.   ABSOLUTELY.

        18           YOU KNEW IN SEPTEMBER OF 1996 THAT NETSCAPE

        19  RECEIVED MONEY FROM ISP'S WHO SIGNED UP WITH OEM'S;

        20  CORRECT, SIR?

        21  A.   FROM ISP'S WHO SIGNED UP WITH OEM'S?

        22  Q.   YES.

        23  A.   NO, I DID NOT.

        24  Q.   WELL, LOOK AT THE NEXT PARAGRAPH OF WHAT MR. AKERLIND

        25  WRITES.
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         1           AFTER SAYING, "NETSCAPE CAN NO LONGER MAKE ANY

         2  MONEY ON THE BROWSER IN THE OEM MARKET," MR. AKERLIND

         3  WRITES, "HOWEVER, NETSCAPE MAKES MONEY FROM ISP'S IN

         4  CONJUNCTION WITH OEM SHIPMENTS."

         5           YOU SEE THAT?

         6  A.   YEAH.

         7  Q.   WERE YOU AWARE OF THAT, SIR?

         8  A.   I WAS NOT.  AT LEAST I CAN'T RECALL THAT.

         9  Q.   DO YOU KNOW WHAT ACTIONS, IF ANY, MICROSOFT TOOK

        10  AFTER SEPTEMBER 23, 1996, THAT MADE IT MORE DIFFICULT FOR

        11  NETSCAPE TO CONTINUE TO MAKE MONEY FROM ISP'S IN

        12  CONJUNCTION WITH OEM SHIPMENTS?

        13  A.   I HAVE NO IDEA.

        14  Q.   DID THE LIMITATIONS ON OEM'S FROM INCLUDING NETSCAPE

        15  NAVIGATOR IN THEIR CHOICE OF BROWSERS OFFERED TO ISP'S

        16  AFFECT THE ABILITY OF NETSCAPE TO EARN MONEY FROM ISP'S OR

        17  OEM'S IN CONJUNCTION WITH SHIPMENTS BY OEM SUPPLIERS OF

        18  DESKTOPS WITH DESIGNATED ISP'S?

        19  A.   MR. BOIES, IT IS VERY LATE.  I WILL REALLY LIKE YOU

        20  TO BREAK THIS UP BECAUSE I CANNOT UNDERSTAND THAT

        21  QUESTION.

        22  Q.   SURE.  IT WAS A LONG QUESTION AND AWKWARD, AND I

        23  APOLOGIZE.  IT IS LATE.

        24           NETSCAPE MAKES MONEY FROM ISP'S IN CONJUNCTION

        25  WITH OEM SHIPMENTS, IS WHAT MR. AKERLIND SAYS.  AND I TAKE
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         1  IT, ALTHOUGH YOU DON'T RECALL THAT, YOU DON'T HAVE ANY

         2  REASON TO DISPUTE THAT?

         3  A.   HE MIGHT HAVE FOUND OUT ABOUT IT.

         4  Q.   OKAY.  NOW, DID THE EXCLUSION OF NETSCAPE FROM THE

         5  ISP SIGNUP PROCESS THAT OEM'S WERE PERMITTED TO USE, WAS

         6  THAT SOMETHING THAT AFFECTED NETSCAPE'S ABILITY TO MAKE

         7  MONEY FROM ISP'S IN CONJUNCTION WITH OEM SHIPMENTS, AS

         8  MR. AKERLIND SAYS HERE?

         9  A.   I HAVE NO KNOWLEDGE ABOUT THAT.

        10  Q.   OKAY.

        11           MR. BOIES:  YOUR HONOR, I HAVE ONE MORE BRIEF

        12  SUBJECT, AND THEN WE HAVE ABOUT MAYBE FIVE MINUTES IN THE

        13  CLOSED SESSION ON PRICING.

        14           THE COURT:  GO FORWARD.

        15  BY MR. BOIES:

        16  Q.   LET ME ASK THAT THE WITNESS BE HANDED GOVERNMENT

        17  EXHIBIT 176 AND GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT 304.

        18           (DOCUMENTS HANDED TO THE WITNESS.)

        19  Q.   EXHIBIT 176 IS ALREADY IN EVIDENCE.

        20           DID YOU PREPARE THIS DOCUMENT, SIR?

        21  A.   NO, I--NO.

        22  Q.   YOU DID NOT?  IS THAT YOUR TESTIMONY?

        23  A.   IT IS NOT.

        24           AND I ACTUALLY THINK IT'S THE FIRST TIME I HAVE

        25  SEEN THIS, SO--BUT I COULD BE WRONG, NATURALLY, BECAUSE
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         1  THERE ARE SO MANY DOCUMENTS.

         2  Q.   UNDER GOALS HERE, THE FIRST GOAL IS INCREASE END USER

         3  IE USAGE ON OEM SYSTEMS.

         4           DO YOU SEE THAT?

         5  A.   YEAH, I SEE THAT.

         6           MR. BOIES, BEFORE WE START THAT, I HAVE A HARD

         7  TIME TO UNDERSTAND WHEN THIS MEMO WAS WRITTEN, WHO WROTE

         8  IT, AND TO WHOM IT WAS ADDRESSED.

         9  Q.   IF WE COULD PROCEED WITH THE QUESTIONS, THAT MAY OR

        10  MAY NOT BECOME CLEAR TO YOU, SIR.  ALL I COULD TELL YOU IS

        11  IT WAS PRODUCED FROM BRAD CHASE'S ONLINE DOCUMENTS.  IT

        12  WAS PRODUCED BY MICROSOFT FROM MR. CHASE'S FILES.

        13  A.   OKAY.

        14  Q.   AND IN TERMS OF THE TIMING, IF YOU LOOK UNDER NUMBER

        15  THREE, IT SAYS, "IE AND OEM TODAY, IE 2 BUNDLED ON MOST

        16  SYSTEMS' DESKTOPS."

        17           DO YOU SEE THAT?

        18  A.   I SEE THAT.

        19  Q.   AND SO THAT INDICATES THAT THIS DOCUMENT WAS PREPARED

        20  DURING THE TIME THAT IE 2 WAS BUNDLED ON MOST SYSTEMS'

        21  DESKTOPS; CORRECT?

        22  A.   IT LOOKS LIKE IT.

        23  Q.   AND IF YOU LOOK AT THE NEXT ITEM, IT SAYS, "PROPOSAL

        24  FOR IE 3.0 AND OPK2."

        25           DO YOU SEE THAT?
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         1  A.   I SEE THAT.

         2  Q.   AND THIS SUGGESTS TO YOU THAT IT WAS PREPARED

         3  SOMEWHAT BEFORE IE 3.0 AND OPK2 WERE DISTRIBUTED; CORRECT?

         4  A.   THAT IS CORRECT.

         5  Q.   NOW, GOING BACK TO GOALS, THE FIRST GOAL IS INCREASED

         6  END USER IE USAGE ON OEM SYSTEMS.

         7           DO YOU SEE THAT?

         8  A.   THAT IS CORRECT.

         9  Q.   AND DID YOU UNDERSTAND THAT THAT WAS A GOAL AT THE

        10  TIME THAT IE 2 WAS BEING DISTRIBUTED?

        11  A.   I THINK THAT WAS WISHFUL THINKING OF MICROSOFT.

        12  Q.   UNDER THREAT, THE FIRST THREAT THAT IS LISTED THERE

        13  IS AT&T AND NETSCAPE GET ON MAJOR OEM'S' DESKTOPS.

        14           DO YOU SEE THAT?

        15  A.   I SEE THAT.

        16  Q.   DID YOU UNDERSTAND THAT MICROSOFT CONSIDERED THAT TO

        17  BE A THREAT AT THIS TIME?

        18  A.   WHOEVER WROTE THIS CONSIDERED IT AS A THREAT.  I

        19  DIDN'T.

        20  Q.   YOU DID NOT; IS THAT YOUR TESTIMONY?

        21  A.   THAT'S MY TESTIMONY.

        22  Q.   WERE YOU AWARE OF PEOPLE WHO DID CONSIDER NETSCAPE

        23  GETTING ON MAJOR OEM DESKTOPS AS A THREAT?

        24  A.   I MEAN, NETSCAPE COULD EASILY GET ON EVERY OEM

        25  SYSTEM, SO I DON'T KNOW WHY THIS WAS A THREAT TO US.  I
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         1  JUST DON'T KNOW.  AND IF SOME PEOPLE MIGHT HAVE WRITTEN IT

         2  LIKE THIS, MAYBE, YOU KNOW, THEY USED THE WRONG WORDS FOR

         3  THE WRONG SUBJECT.

         4  Q.   MY QUESTION TO YOU, SIMPLY, SIR, WAS WHETHER YOU KNEW

         5  PEOPLE THAT CONSIDERED NETSCAPE GETTING ON THE MAJOR OEM

         6  DESKTOPS AS A THREAT.

         7  A.   I CAN'T RECALL IT.

         8  Q.   THE NEXT ITEM SAYS, "IE AND OEM TODAY," AND THE FIRST

         9  ITEM SAYS, "IE 2.0 BUNDLED ON MOST SYSTEMS' DESKTOPS."

        10           DO YOU SEE THAT?

        11  A.   I SEE THAT.

        12  Q.   AND IS THAT CONSISTENT WITH WHAT YOUR UNDERSTANDING

        13  WAS?

        14  A.   PROBABLY.

        15  Q.   THE NEXT ITEM SAYS, "IE AND MSN ICONS HIDDEN BEHIND

        16  CUSTOM SHELLS ON CONSUMER PC'S.

        17           DO YOU SEE THAT?

        18  A.   I SEE THAT.

        19  Q.   AND IS THAT YOUR UNDERSTANDING OF WHAT WAS THE CASE

        20  AT THE TIME THAT IE 2.0 WAS BEING DISTRIBUTED?

        21  A.   YES.

        22           AND IF YOU WILL HAVE A CUSTOM SHELL AND YOU

        23  WOULD, TODAY, USE THAT CUSTOM SHELL, THAT WOULD BE THE

        24  SAME TODAY.  I MEAN, CUSTOM SHELLS COULD HIDE THESE ICONS,

        25  SO THERE IS NOTHING SURPRISING HERE IF YOU USE A FULL
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         1  SCREEN.

         2  Q.   WELL, SIR, WHETHER IT'S SURPRISING OR NOT, AFTER

         3  IE 2.0 WAS MARKETED AND AT ABOUT THE TIME IE 3.0 WAS GOING

         4  TO BE MARKETED, MICROSOFT TOOK ACTION TO LIMIT THE USE OF

         5  CUSTOM SHELLS; CORRECT, SIR?

         6  A.   NO, IT DID NOT.  NEVER DID.

         7  Q.   NEVER LIMITED THE USE OF CUSTOM SHELLS AT ALL; THAT'S

         8  YOUR TESTIMONY, SIR?

         9  A.   THAT IS MY TESTIMONY.

        10           THE ONLY THING WE DID IS WE PREVENTED THE OEM'S

        11  FROM BOOTING INTO THAT CUSTOM SHELL AT THE FIRST BOOT.

        12  THEY CAN PUT AS MANY CUSTOM SHELLS ON THAT DESKTOP.  AND I

        13  THINK MY VIDEOTAPE WITH SONY AND WITH ACER SHOWS CLEARLY

        14  THAT OEM'S STILL DO THAT TODAY.  WE DO NOT PREVENT THEM

        15  FROM PUTTING CUSTOM SHELLS ON THEIR DESKTOP.

        16  Q.   MR. KEMPIN, AT THE TIME THAT IE 2.0 WAS BEING

        17  DISTRIBUTED, OEM'S WERE AUTOMATICALLY BOOTING IN TO CUSTOM

        18  SHELLS; CORRECT?

        19  A.   THAT IS--SOME OF THEM WERE.

        20  Q.   SOME OF THEM WERE.

        21           IN FACT, ENOUGH SO THAT YOU WERE CONCERNED ABOUT

        22  IT; CORRECT?

        23  A.   CORRECT, BECAUSE THEY BUTCHERED WINDOWS IN DOING SO.

        24  Q.   NOW, WITHOUT NECESSARILY ENGAGING IN A DIGRESSION

        25  ABOUT WHAT "BUTCHERED" MEANS HERE, MY POINT IS THAT BEFORE
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         1  IE 3 CAME OUT, MICROSOFT TOOK ACTION TO PREVENT OEM'S FROM

         2  AUTOMATICALLY BOOTING INTO CUSTOM SHELLS; CORRECT?

         3  A.   TRUE STATEMENT.

         4  Q.   OKAY.  AND THAT REDUCED THE EXTENT TO WHICH OEM'S

         5  COULD HIDE IE'S ICON BEHIND A CUSTOM SHELL THAT WAS

         6  AUTOMATICALLY BOOTED INTO; CORRECT?

         7  A.   THAT IS CORRECT.  SO, BASICALLY, WE ARE TALKING ABOUT

         8  THE FIRST TEN OR TWELVE MINUTES OF WHEN YOU FIRST TIME

         9  BOOT YOUR COMPUTER.  IS THIS WHAT THIS IS ALL ABOUT?

        10  Q.   WELL, SIR, THAT WAS VERY IMPORTANT TO MICROSOFT, WAS

        11  IT NOT, SIR?

        12  A.   IT WAS VERY IMPORTANT TO MICROSOFT THAT THE USER

        13  COULD SEE OUR PRODUCTS AT THE FIRST BOOT THE WAY WE

        14  DESIGNED IT.

        15  Q.   AND THAT WAS BECAUSE YOU WANTED TO INCREASE YOUR

        16  USAGE SHARE OF IE ON OEM SYSTEMS; CORRECT, SIR?

        17  A.   I DO NOT SEE ANY CONTEXT THERE.  I THINK THIS IS

        18  TOTALLY WRONG.

        19  Q.   OKAY.  THEN LET'S LOOK UNDER THE NEXT HEADING OF THIS

        20  SAME DOCUMENT IN WHICH IT SAYS, QUOTE, IN ORDER TO PROTECT

        21  OUR POSITION ON THE DESKTOP AND INCREASE THE LIKELIHOOD

        22  THAT IE GETS THE PROMINENT POSITION WITH THE END USER, WE

        23  SHOULD MOVE THE SIGNUP WIZARD INTO THE BOOTUP SEQUENCE

        24  SOMEWHERE BEFORE WE GIVE CONTROL OVER TO THE OEM.

        25           DO YOU SEE THAT?
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         1  A.   I SEE THAT.

         2  Q.   WAS THAT DONE, SIR?

         3  A.   HOO, I DON'T THINK WE DID THAT AT IE 3, BUT I COULD

         4  BE MISTAKEN.

         5  Q.   WHEN WAS THE SIGNUP WIZARD MOVED INTO THE BOOTUP

         6  SEQUENCE?

         7  A.   I BELIEVE THAT WAS IN IE 4, BUT I JUST CAN'T RECALL

         8  THAT HUNDRED PERCENT.

         9  Q.   EITHER IN IE 3 OR IN IE 4, THE SIGNUP WIZARD WAS

        10  MOVED INTO THE BOOTUP SEQUENCE; CORRECT, SIR?

        11  A.   I BELIEVE SO.

        12  Q.   AND THE NEXT SENTENCE SAYS, "THIS WAY WE CAN INCREASE

        13  THE LIKELIHOOD THAT AN END USER GETS THE OPTION TO SIGN UP

        14  FOR SOLUTIONS THAT PROMOTE IE BEFORE THEY GET INTO THE

        15  DESKTOP OR ANY CUSTOMIZED SHELL THAT FEATURES OTHER

        16  BROWSER SOLUTIONS."

        17           DO YOU SEE THAT?

        18  A.   I SEE THAT.

        19  Q.   DID YOU BELIEVE THAT TO BE A TRUE STATEMENT, SIR?

        20  A.   I BELIEVE THAT THE WRITER--THAT WAS THE WRITER'S

        21  OPINION AT THAT POINT IN TIME.

        22           I PERSONALLY BELIEVE IT'S WISHFUL THINKING,

        23  BECAUSE, AGAIN, IF CUSTOMERS WANT TO USE ANOTHER BROWSER,

        24  THEY WOULD PICK THEIR BROWSER BASED ON THEIR MERITS AND

        25  LOAD IT DOWN FROM THE INTERNET, EVEN IF IT'S NOT ON THEIR
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         1  MACHINE.

         2  Q.   WHEN YOU SAY "LOAD IT DOWN FROM THE INTERNET," JUST

         3  TAKING 1998, DO YOU KNOW WHAT THE NET NUMBER OF PEOPLE WHO

         4  GOT THEIR BROWSER FROM DOWNLOADING IT FROM THE INTERNET

         5  WAS, EITHER IE OR NAVIGATOR?

         6  A.   I DON'T, BUT I BELIEVE IT'S SUBSTANTIAL.

         7  Q.   YOU BELIEVE IT'S SUBSTANTIAL?

         8           WOULD IT SURPRISE YOU, SIR, THAT FOR THE FIRST

         9  NINE MONTHS OF 1998 IT WAS NEGATIVE?

        10  A.   MEANING THEY SEND THEIR BROWSER BACK?

        11  Q.   OR THE PEOPLE WHO GOT IT FROM THE BROWSER--THEY MAY.

        12  A.   I MEAN, THIS DOESN'T MAKE MATHEMATIC LOGIC FOR ME.

        13  Q.   LET ME SEE IF I CAN MAKE MATHEMATIC LOGIC, SIR.  SOME

        14  PEOPLE WHO GOT THEIR BROWSER FROM THE INTERNET MIGHT BUY A

        15  NEW COMPUTER, AND ON THAT COMPUTER WOULD BE A BROWSER THAT

        16  THEY WOULD THEN USE; CORRECT?

        17  A.   NOT NECESSARILY.

        18  Q.   I KNOW "NOT NECESSARILY."  I'M SAYING THAT'S A

        19  POSSIBILITY.

        20  A.   IT'S A POSSIBILITY.

        21  Q.   OKAY.

        22  A.   BUT IT'S NOT CORRECT.

        23  Q.   WHAT?

        24  A.   IT'S NOT CORRECT IF IT'S ONLY A POSSIBILITY.

        25  Q.   WELL, SIR, A LOT OF PEOPLE IN THE FIRST NINE MONTHS
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         1  OF 1998 GOT WINDOWS 95 MACHINES, AND THE END OF THAT,

         2  WINDOWS 98 MACHINES, THAT HAD A BROWSER WITH IT; CORRECT?

         3  A.   THAT IS CORRECT, OR MAYBE TWO OR THREE.

         4  Q.   MAYBE TWO OR THREE.

         5  A.   THAT YOU SAW IN MY DEMONSTRATION.

         6  Q.   IN ANY EVENT, THEY GOT IE; CORRECT?

         7  A.   THEY GOT IE BECAUSE IT'S PART OF WINDOWS.

         8  Q.   AND YOU DON'T KNOW HOW MANY OF THEM ALSO GOT

         9  NAVIGATOR, DO YOU, SIR?

        10  A.   I DON'T.

        11  Q.   OKAY.  YOU DON'T EVEN KNOW APPROXIMATELY HOW MANY GOT

        12  NAVIGATOR?

        13  A.   THAT IS TRUE.

        14  Q.   NOW, WITH RESPECT TO THOSE PEOPLE WHO GOT IE WITH

        15  THEIR NEW COMPUTER, IF THEY USED IT AND USED IT IN PLACE

        16  OF A BROWSER THAT THEY HAD DOWNLOADED, THAT WOULD REDUCE

        17  THE TOTAL NUMBER OF PEOPLE USING DOWNLOADED BROWSERS;

        18  CORRECT?

        19  A.   I HAVE NEVER SEEN--THAT IS CORRECT.

        20  Q.   OKAY.

        21  A.   AT THE SAME TIME, I HAVE NEVER SEEN ANY DATA ABOUT

        22  IT.

        23  Q.   OKAY.

        24  A.   AND I HOPE THERE IS SOMEBODY RESEARCHING THAT.

        25  Q.   I COMMEND TO YOU TWO HANDWRITTEN CHARTS THAT WERE
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         1  INTRODUCED DURING THE EXAMINATION OF MR. CHASE THAT SET

         2  THAT FORTH IF YOU HAVE AN INTEREST IN IT.

         3  A.   I WILL LOOK IT UP.

         4  Q.   LET ME TURN TO A DOCUMENT THAT YOU DID WRITE, I

         5  THINK, WHICH IS GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT 304.

         6           DID YOU WRITE THIS, SIR?

         7  A.   I BELIEVE I EDITED IT.  THE PERSON WHO WROTE THIS WAS

         8  DAVE WRIGHT, WHO WAS WORKING FOR ME AT THAT POINT IN TIME.

         9  Q.   SO HE PREPARED A DRAFT, AND YOU EDITED IT, AND THEN

        10  YOU SENT IT AROUND?

        11  A.   I BELIEVE THAT IS CORRECT.

        12  Q.   AND AMONG THE PEOPLE YOU SENT IT TO WERE MR. GATES,

        13  MR. MARITZ, AND MR. BALLMER; CORRECT?

        14  A.   THAT IS CORRECT.

        15  Q.   AND IS IT FAIR TO SAY THAT BEFORE YOU SENT IT TO

        16  THESE TOP EXECUTIVES, YOU MADE EFFORTS TO BE SURE THAT

        17  THIS WAS AS ACCURATE AS YOU COULD MAKE IT?

        18  A.   I WOULD THINK SO.

        19  Q.   NOW, YOU BEGIN BY SAYING, "THE CURRENT `WINDOWS

        20  EXPERIENCE' GUIDELINES ARE BEING IMPLEMENTED."

        21           DO YOU SEE THAT?

        22  A.   I SEE THAT.

        23  Q.   WHEN WERE THE CURRENT "WINDOWS EXPERIENCE" GUIDELINES

        24  DISTRIBUTED BY MICROSOFT?

        25  A.   BEST RECOLLECTION IS LATE SPRING OR EARLY SUMMER OF
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         1  1996.  I CAN'T GIVE YOU A MONTH.  I JUST CAN'T.

         2  Q.   NOW, LET ME GO DOWN TO THE PARAGRAPH NEAR THE BOTTOM.

         3  IT BEGINS, "THE LAST POINT IS MORE TRICKY AND REQUIRES

         4  MORE THOUGHT.  MOST OF THE OEM'S HAVE NOT THOUGHT THIS

         5  THROUGH, BUT ONE DAY THEY WILL."

         6           DO YOU SEE THAT?

         7  A.   I'M NOT WITH YOU YET, BUT THAT'S OKAY.  I WILL FIND

         8  THIS.

         9  Q.   THIRD PARAGRAPH FROM THE BOTTOM.

        10  A.   YES, I SEE IT.

        11  Q.   AND YOU WRITE THERE, QUOTE, TODAY WE ARE TELLING

        12  EVERYBODY THAT THEY CANNOT REMOVE OUR ORIGINAL FEATURES,

        13  INCLUDING THE MSN FOLDER, THE ONLINE SERVICES FOLDER, THE

        14  ISP SERVICE FOLDER, OR IE.

        15           CORRECT?

        16  A.   THAT IS CORRECT.

        17  Q.   AND THAT WAS A TRUE STATEMENT AT THE TIME?

        18  A.   I BELIEVE IT WAS.

        19  Q.   AND THEN YOU GO ON TO SAY, "WITH THE APPEARANCE OF

        20  IE 4.0 AND BEYOND, WE WILL ADD MORE FEATURES TO THE

        21  STANDARD WINDOWS DESKTOP BY ADDING POINTCAST-LIKE

        22  THIRD-PARTY SERVICES AND/OR ADVERTISING."

        23           DO YOU SEE THAT?

        24  A.   THAT IS CORRECT.

        25  Q.   AND WAS THAT A TRUE STATEMENT?
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         1  A.   I BELIEVE AT THAT POINT IN TIME, IT WASN'T QUITE

         2  CLEAR WHAT WE WOULD DO, BUT I THINK THIS WAS THE BEST I

         3  COULD--I COULD SAY AT THAT POINT IN TIME.  I THINK WE WERE

         4  STILL DISCUSSING THIS.

         5  Q.   THE NEXT SENTENCE YOU SAY, "IN ALL CASES WE'RE

         6  PLANNING TO GIVE THIRD-PARTY SERVICE PROVIDERS AN

         7  ADVANTAGE TO BE PART OF THE ORIGINAL FEATURE SET IF THEY

         8  WORK CLOSELY WITH US TO PROMOTE OUR PLATFORMS AND, THUS,

         9  HELP US STRATEGICALLY."

        10           DO YOU SEE THAT?

        11  A.   I SEE THAT.

        12           WAIT A SECOND.  WAIT A SECOND.

        13           YES.

        14  Q.   AND WAS THAT A TRUE STATEMENT, SIR?

        15  A.   I BELIEVE IT WAS.

        16           MR. BOIES:  I HAVE NO MORE QUESTIONS, YOUR HONOR.

        17           THE COURT:  FOR OPEN SESSION?

        18           MR. BOIES:  FOR OPEN SESSION.  AND I LITERALLY

        19  HAVE ONLY FIVE MINUTES OR LESS IN CLOSED SESSION.

        20           THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.  WE WILL TAKE A

        21  FIVE-MINUTE RECESS WHILE WE CLOSE THE COURT, AND WE WILL

        22  RECONVENE IN CAMERA.

        23           (BRIEF RECESS.)

        24           (END OF PROCEEDINGS IN OPEN COURT.)

        25     (PAGES 126 THROUGH 129 UNDER SEAL)
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         1           (WHEREUPON, AT 6:10 P.M., THE HEARING WAS

         2  ADJOURNED UNTIL 10:00 A.M., THE FOLLOWING DAY.)

         3
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         1                   CERTIFICATE OF REPORTER

         2

         3           I, DAVID A. KASDAN, RMR, COURT REPORTER, DO

         4  HEREBY TESTIFY THAT THE FOREGOING PROCEEDINGS WERE

         5  STENOGRAPHICALLY RECORDED BY ME AND THEREAFTER REDUCED TO

         6  TYPEWRITTEN FORM BY COMPUTER-ASSISTED TRANSCRIPTION UNDER

         7  MY DIRECTION AND SUPERVISION; AND THAT THE FOREGOING

         8  TRANSCRIPT IS A TRUE RECORD AND ACCURATE RECORD OF THE

         9  PROCEEDINGS.

        10           I FURTHER CERTIFY THAT I AM NEITHER COUNSEL FOR,

        11  RELATED TO, NOR EMPLOYED BY ANY OF THE PARTIES TO THIS

        12  ACTION IN THIS PROCEEDING, NOR FINANCIALLY OR OTHERWISE

        13  INTERESTED IN THE OUTCOME OF THIS LITIGATION.

        14

                                    ______________________

        15                          DAVID A. KASDAN
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